
-





evwl©K

2018-2019 2018-2019

evYx 08-10

cwiPvjbv cl©` 11

Brief Profile of Directors 12-14

K‡c©v‡iU g¨v‡bR‡g›U 15-16

44Zg evwl©K mvaviY mfvi weÁwß 17

Notice of the 44th Annual General Meeting  18

†Kv¤úvwbi msw¶ß BwZnvm 19

†kqvi‡nvìvi‡`i D‡Ï‡k cwiPvjbv cl©‡`i cÖwZ‡e`b 20-44

Directors’ Report to the Shareholders  45-67

Value Added Statement 73

Audit Committee’s Report 74

Auditors’ Report to the shareholders 75-80

Statement of Financial Position 81

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other  82
Comprehensive Income 

Statement of Changes in Equity 83

Statement of Cash Flows  84

Notes to the Financial Statements 85-113

Contents
m~wPm~wP

evwl©K

2018-2019



evwl©K

2018-2019

10 Rvbyqvwi 1972
RvwZi RbK e½eÜz †kL gywReyi ingvb Gi

¯^‡`k cÖZ¨veZ©b|



evwl©K

2018-2019

RvwZi RbK e½eÜz
†kL gywReyi ingvb Gi
Rb¥ kZevwl©Kx



evwl©K

2018-2019



05

evwl©K

2018-2019

R¡v
jv

wb
 †Z

j 
MÖn

Y 
I 

mi
ei

v‡n
i 

cÖe
vn

wPÎ

d
Z

zj
ø v

w
P
j
g
v
i
x

m
v
P
b
v
 
e
v
R

v
i

e
v
N
v
e
v
w
o

i
s
c
yi

k
ªx
g
½
j

w
m
‡
j
U

b
v
‡
U
v
i

c
Öa
v
b
 
¯
’v
c
b
v
,
 
P
Æ
M
Öv
g

ˆ
f
i
e
 
e
v
R

v
i

P
uv
`
c
yi

¯
’v
b
x
q
 
M
¨
v
m
‡
¶

Î
 
I

 
d

«v
K

k
‡
b
k
b

c
øv
›
U
 
n
‡
Z

 
A

b
¨
v
b
¨
 
w
c
I

G
j
 
c
Y
¨

S
v
j
K

v
w
V

†
`
Š
j
Z

c
yi

e
w
i
k
v
j

c
w
i
‡
k
v
w
a
Z

B
A

v
i
G

j

i
v
R

k
v
n
x

c
v
e
©Z

x
c
yi

g
s
j
v
 
A

‡
q
j

B
b
÷

‡
j
k
b



06

evwl©K

2018-2019

To
All Shareholders
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission
Registrar of Joint Stock Companies and Firms
Dhaka Stock Exchange Ltd.
Chittagong Stock Exchange Ltd.
Central Depository Bangladesh Ltd. (CDBL)

Dear Sir (s)

Annual Report for the year ended 30 June, 2019

We are pleased to enclose a copy of the Annual Report  2018-2019 of 
Jamuna Oil Company Limited together with the Audited Financial 
Statements comprising of Statement of Financial Position, Statement 
of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of 
Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 30 
June, 2019 along with notes thereto for your kind information and 
record.

Yours Sincerely

(Md. Masudul Islam)
Company Secretary

OF
LETTER

TRANSMITTAL
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iƒcKí (Vision)

†`‡ki me©Î wbiew”Qbœfv‡e miKvi wba©vwiZ g~‡j¨ gvbm¤§Z †c‡Uªvwjqvg cY¨ mieiv‡ni gva¨‡g 

†`‡k R¡vjvwb wbivcËv wbwðZKiY|

Awfj¶¨ (Mission)

†c‡UªvwjqvgRvZ cY¨ µq, gRy`, weZiY I myôz e¨e¯’vcbvi gva¨‡g †`‡k R¡vjvwb †Z‡ji 

mieivn wbwðZKiY;

†c‡Uªvwjqvg mswkøó AeKvVv‡gvi Dbœqb;

wecYb I cwiPvjb Kvh©µ‡gi AvaywbwKKiY;

evRvi Pvwn`vi mv‡_ wgj †i‡L D™¢vebx e¨emv bxwZ Ges c‡Y¨i eûgywLZv Avbqb|

†KŠkjMZ D‡Ïk¨mg~n (Strategic Objectives)

evsjv‡`k †c‡Uªvwjqvg K‡c©v‡ikb (wewcwm) n‡Z cwi‡kvwaZ †c‡UªvwjqvgRvZ cY¨ MÖnY;

†`‡ki me©Î †c‡UªvwjqvgRvZ c‡Y¨i myôz wecYb;

†`‡ki R¡vjvwb wbivcËv wbwðZKi‡Yi j‡¶¨ †c‡UªvwjqvgRvZ c‡Y¨i gRy` I `¶ cwienb 

e¨e¯’vcbv wbwðZKiY|
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2018-2019

bmiæj nvwg`, Ggwc
cÖwZgš¿x

we`y¨r, R¡vjvwb I LwbR m¤ú` gš¿Yvjq

MYcÖRvZš¿x evsjv‡`k miKvi

bmiæj nvwg`, Ggwc

evYxevYx
 hgybv A‡qj †Kv¤úvbx wjwg‡UW-Gi 44Zg evwl©K mvaviY mfv AbywôZ n‡”Q †R‡b Avwg Avbw›`Z| 

2018-2019 A_© eQ‡ii evwl©K cÖwZ‡e`b cÖKv‡ki D‡`¨vM‡K Avwg ¯^vMZ RvbvB| Gi mv‡_ mswkøó mK‡ji 

cÖwZ iBj Avgvi AvšÍwiK ï‡f”Qv I Awfb›`b|

 †`‡ki A_©‰bwZK Dbœq‡b R¡vjvwbi f‚wgKv Acwimxg| †`‡ki µgea©gvb Dbœq‡bi Rb¨ R¡vjvwb 

†Z‡ji Pvwn`v DË‡ivËi e„w× cv‡”Q| G welqwU we‡ePbvq †i‡L miKvi mviv †`‡k wbiew”Qbœfv‡e R¡vjvwb 

mieiv‡ni Rb¨ KvR K‡i hv‡”Q| hgybv A‡qj †Kv¤úvbx wjwg‡UW †`‡ki Dbœqb I AMÖMwZi Rb¨ mviv †`‡k 

we`y¨r, K…wl, wkí I cwienb Lv‡Z R¡vjvwb †Z‡ji wbiew”Qbœfv‡e mieivn wbwðZ K‡i Avm‡Q| Avwg Avkv 

Kwi, AvMvgx w`b¸‡jv‡ZI G cÖwZôvbwUi mKj ¯Í‡ii Kg©KZ©v-Kg©PvixMY wbôvi mv‡_ Awc©Z `vwqZ¡ cvjb 

K‡i RvZxq A_©‰bwZK Dbœq‡b ¸iæZ¡c~Y© Ae`vb ivL‡e|

 Avwg, hgybv A‡qj †Kv¤úvbx wjwg‡UW-Gi 44 Zg evwl©K mvaviY mfv I cÖKvkbvi mvdj¨ Kvgbv 

KiwQ|

Rq evsjv, Rq e½eÜz

evsjv‡`k wPiRxex †nvK|

22 †cŠl 1426

06 Rvbyqvix 2020
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†gvt AvwbQzi ingvb
mwPe

R¡vjvwb I LwbR m¤ú` wefvM

we`y¨r, R¡vjvwb I LwbR m¤ú` gš¿Yvjq

MYcÖRvZš¿x evsjv‡`k miKvi|

evYxevYx

 hgybv A‡qj †Kv¤úvbx wjwg‡UW Gi 44Zg evwl©K mvaviY mfv Dcj‡ÿ 2018-2019 A_© erm‡ii 

evwl©K cÖwZ‡e`b cÖKvwkZ n‡Z hv‡”Q †R‡b Avwg Avbw›`Z| Avwg `„pfv‡e wek¦vm Kwi, G cÖKvkbvi gva¨‡g 

2018-2019 A_© eQ‡i m¤úvw`Z †Kv¤úvwbi Dbœqbg~jK Kg©KvÛ I A_©‰bwZK Kvh©vewji mvgwMÖK Z_¨ 

cÖwZdwjZ n‡e|

 GKwU †`‡ki A_©‰bwZK Dbœqb I mg„w× AR©‡b we`y¨r I R¡vjvwbi f‚wgKv Acwimxg| mKj Dbœq‡biB 

†Kvb bv †Kvb ch©v‡q R¡vjvwb cÖ‡qvRb nq| wewfbœ Drm n‡Z R¡vjvwb msMÖn I weZiY‡K miKvi AMÖvwaKvi 

w`‡q R¡vjvwb e¨e¯’vcbv AvaywbK Kivi cÖwµqv Ae¨vnZ †i‡L‡Q| evsjv‡`k †c‡Uªvwjqvg K‡c©v‡ik‡bi 

wbqš¿Yvaxb hgybv A‡qj †Kv¤úvbx wjwg‡UW †`‡ki Ab¨Zg miKvwi R¡vjvwb †Zj wecYbKvix cÖwZôvb wnmv‡e 

mviv †`‡k we`y¨r, K…wl, wkí I cwienb Lv‡Z R¡vjvwb †Z‡ji mieivn wbwðZ K‡i, †`‡ki A_©‰bwZK Dbœq‡b 

MwZkxjZv e„w×‡Z ¸iæZ¡c~Y© Ae`vb ivL‡Q| Avwg Avkv Kwi fwel¨‡ZI hgybv A‡qj †Kv¤úvbx wjwg‡UW 

R¡vjvwb †Z‡ji wbiew”Qbœ †hvMvb w`‡q Dbœqb mn‡hvMx wn‡m‡e KvR K‡i hv‡e|

 Avwg hgybv A‡qj †Kv¤úvbx wjwg‡UW Gi 44Zg evwl©K mvaviY mfvi mvwe©K mvdj¨ Kvgbv KiwQ|

Md. Anisur Rahman
Secretary

Energy & Mineral Resources Division
Ministry of Power, Energy & Mineral Resources

Government of the People’s Republic of Bangladesh

(†gvt AvwbQzi ingvb)
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†Pqvig¨vb
(miKv‡ii mwPe)

evsjv‡`k †c‡Uªvwjqvg K‡c©v‡ikb

evYxevYx

(†gvt mvgQzi ingvb) 

hgybv A‡qj †Kv¤úvbx wjwg‡UW-Gi 44Zg evwl©K mvaviY mfv Dcj‡ÿ 2018-2019 A_© eQ‡i 

†Kv¤úvwbi Avq-e¨q Ges Kvh©weeiYx m¤^wjZ Ôevwl©K cÖwZ‡e`bÕ cÖKv‡ki D‡`¨vM MÖnY Kivq Avwg Avbw›`Z|

evsjv‡`k †c‡Uªvwjqvg K‡c©v‡ik‡bi A½ cÖwZôvb wn‡m‡e hgybv A‡qj †Kv¤úvbx wjwg‡UW miKvi wba©vwiZ 

g~‡j¨ †`ke¨vcx †c‡Uªvwjqvg cY¨ mieivn wbwðZKi‡Y AMÖYx f‚wgKv cvjb K‡i _v‡K| we‡kl K‡i K…wl †mP 

†gŠmy‡g DËie½mn mgMÖ evsjv‡`‡k †mP Kv‡h©i gva¨‡g dmj Drcv`b Ae¨vnZ ivL‡Z K…l‡Ki †`vi‡Mvovq 

wbwe©Nœ wW‡Rj †cŠu‡Q †`qvi †ÿ‡Î D³ cÖwZôv‡bi Avqvmmva¨ f‚wgKv AZ¨šÍ cÖksmbxq|

†`‡ki µgea©gvb R¡vjvwb †Z‡ji Pvwn`v †gUv‡Z †`ke¨vcx mieivn I wecYb e¨e¯’vi m¤úªmviY I 

AvaywbKvqb K‡i Gi Kvh©µg AviI MwZkxj I myôzfv‡e m¤úv`‡bi Rb¨ G †Kv¤úvwb wewfbœ Dbœqb cwiKíbv 

MÖnY I ev¯Íevqb Ki‡Q †R‡b Avwg Avbw›`Z|

Av‡jvP¨ A_© eQ‡i G †Kv¤úvwbi 310.18 †KvwU UvKv Kic~e© gybvdv AR©b Ges g~mK, AvqKi I Ab¨vb¨ 

Lv‡Z miKvwi †KvlvMv‡i 94.61 †KvwU UvKv cwi‡kva Kivq †Kv¤úvwbi mKj ch©v‡qi kÖwgK-Kg©Pvix, Kg©KZ©v, 

MÖvnK I ïfvbya¨vqx‡`i Rb¨ iBj Awfb›`b|

hgybv A‡qj †Kv¤úvbx wjwg‡UW †mevg~jK bxwZ‡Z cwiPvwjZ nIqv m‡Ë¡I gybvdv AR©‡bi µgea©gvb aviv 

Ae¨vnZ †i‡L‡Q, hv cÖksmbxq I AbyKiYxq| AvMvgx w`‡bI hgybv A‡qj †Kv¤úvbx wjwg‡UW-Gi Kg©KZ©v, 

Kg©Pvix I kÖwgKe„›` wbijm cwikÖ‡gi gva¨‡g mviv‡`‡k R¡vjvwb †Zj mieivn Kvh©µg mdjfv‡e m¤úbœ K‡i 

cÖwZôv‡bi fveg~wZ© D¾¡j Kivi G cÖ‡Póv Ae¨vnZ ivL‡e Ges RvwZi wcZv e½eÜz †kL gywReyi ingv‡bi 

†mvbvi evsjv Movq wb‡ew`Z n‡e e‡j Avgvi `„p wek¦vm|

Avwg hgybv A‡qj †Kv¤úvbx wjwg‡UW-Gi DË‡ivËi AMÖMwZ I mvdj¨ Kvgbv KiwQ|
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cwiPvjbv cl©`

†gvt wMqvm DwÏb AvbPvix
cwiPvjK, †RIwmGj †evW©

I

e¨e¯’vcbv cwiPvjK

hgybv A‡qj †Kv¤úvbx wjwg‡UW

†gvt gvmy`yj Bmjvg
†Kv¤úvwb mwPe

hgybv A‡qj †Kv¤úvbx wjwg‡UW

†gvt miIqvi Avjg
cwiPvjK, †RIwmGj †evW©

cwiPvjK (Acvt I cwit)

evsjv‡`k †c‡Uªvwjqvg K‡c©v‡ikb

ksKi cÖmv` †`e
¯^vaxb cwiPvjK, †RIwmGj †evW©

AemicÖvß cwiPvjK (A_©)

evsjv‡`k †c‡Uªvwjqvg K‡c©v‡ikb

†gvt gÄyiæj nvwdR
cwiPvjK, †RIwmGj †evW©

Dc-mwPe

R¡vjvwb I LwbR m¤ú` wefvM

we`y¨r, R¡vjvwb I LwbR m¤ú` gš¿Yvjq

†gvjøv wgRvbyi ingvb
cwiPvjK, †RIwmGj †evW©

Dc-mwPe

R¡vjvwb I LwbR m¤ú` wefvM

we`y¨r, R¡vjvwb I LwbR m¤ú` gš¿Yvjq

†gvt †ivKb-Dj-nvmvb
cwiPvjK, †RIwmGj †evW©

Dc-mwPe

I

cÖwZgš¿xi GKvšÍ mwPe

we`y¨r, R¡vjvwb I LwbR m¤ú` gš¿Yvjq

mvBdzwÏb Avn‡g` f~uBqv
cwiPvjK, †RIwmGj †evW©

†gvt mvgQzi ingvb
†Pqvig¨vb (miKv‡ii mwPe), evsjv‡`k †c‡Uªvwjqvg K‡c©v‡ikb

I

†Pqvig¨vb, †RIwmGj †evW©

†gvt Ave`yj Rwjj nvIjv`vi
¯^vaxb cwiPvjK

†RIwmGj †evW©
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Brief Profile of Board of Directors
OF

Jamuna Oil Company Ltd.
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K‡c©v‡iU g¨v‡bR‡g›U

†gvt AvBqye †nv‡mb
gnve¨e¯’vcK (gv‡K©wUs)

KvRx †gvt gbRyi ingvb
gnve¨e¯’vcK (Acv‡ikÝ)

†gvt Rwmg DwÏb
Dc-gnve¨e¯’vcK (Acv‡ikÝ)

Avn‡g` b~i
Dc-gnve¨e¯’vcK (†mjm&)

†gvt wMqvm DwÏb AvbPvix
e¨e¯’vcbv cwiPvjK

†gvt gvmy`yj Bmjvg
Dc-gnve¨e¯’vcK (GKvD›Um)

†gvt gvmy` Kwig
Dc-gnve¨e¯’vcK (GgAvBGm GÛ AvBwU, GBPAvi)

†gvt gvwn`yi ingvb
Dc-gnve¨e¯’vcK (BwÄwbqvwis GÛ †Wfjvc‡g›U, wWGjI)

†gvnv¤§` Lmiæ AvRv`
Dc-gnve¨e¯’vcK (AwWU)
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e¨e¯’vcbvq

Rbve †gvt wMqvm DÏxb AvbPvix - e¨e¯’vcbv cwiPvjK
Rbve †gvt AvBqye †nv‡mb  - gnve¨e¯’vcK (gv‡K©wUs)
Rbve KvRx †gvt gbRyi ingvb  - gnve¨e¯’vcK (Acv‡ikÝ)
Rbve †gvt Rwmg DwÏb  - Dc-gnve¨e¯’vcK (Acv‡ikÝ)
Rbve Avn‡g` b~i  - Dc-gnve¨e¯’vcK (†mjm&)
Rbve †gvt gvmy` Kwig  - Dc-gnve¨e¯’vcK (GgAvBGm GÛ AvBwU, GBPAvi)
Rbve †gvt gvwn`yi ingvb  - Dc-gnve¨e¯’vcK (BwÄwbqvwis GÛ †Wfjvc‡g›U, wWGjI)
Rbve †gvnv¤§` Lmiæ AvRv`  - Dc-gnve¨e¯’vcK (AwWU)
Rbve †gvt gvmy`yj Bmjvg  - Dc-gnve¨e¯’vcK (GKvD›Um)

†Kv¤úvwb mwPe

Rbve †gvt gvmy`yj Bmjvg

 

AvBb Dc‡`óv

e¨vwi÷vi Kvgvj-Dj-Avjg  GW‡fv‡KU Ave`yi †i¾vK Luvb

e¨vwi÷vi ZvbwRe-Dj-Avjg  GW‡fv‡KU mi`vi wRbœvZ Avjx

GW‡fv‡KU bymivZ Avjg wP¯Íx

wbix¶Ke„›`

 

†gmvm© †nv`v fvmx †PŠayix GÛ †Kvs, PvU©vW© GKvD›U¨v›Um&

†gmvm© Avn‡g` Rv‡Ki GÛ †Kvs, PvU©vW© GKvD›U¨v›Um&

exgv

 

mvaviY exgv K‡c©v‡ikb

Rxeb exgv K‡c©v‡ikb

e¨vsK

 

†mvbvjx e¨vsK wjwg‡UW

AMÖYx e¨vsK wjwg‡UW

c~evjx e¨vsK wjwg‡UW

DËiv e¨vsK wjwg‡UW

iƒcvjx e¨vsK wjwg‡UW

e¨vsK Gwkqv wjwg‡UW

AvBGdAvBwm e¨vsK wjwg‡UW

Iqvb e¨vsK wjwg‡UW

WvP& evsjv e¨vsK wjwg‡UW

÷¨vÛvW© PvU©vW© e¨vsK

wmwU e¨vsK GbG

w` nsKs GÛ mvsnvB e¨vswKs K‡c©v‡ikb

B÷vY© e¨vsK wjwg‡UW

Gwe e¨vsK wjwg‡UW

eª¨vK e¨vsK wjwg‡UW

BDbvB‡UW Kgvwk©qvj e¨vsK wjwg‡UW

w` wmwU e¨vsK wjwg‡UW

mvD_B÷ e¨vsK wjwg‡UW

gv‡K©›UvBj e¨vsK wjwg‡UW

RbZv e¨vsK wjwg‡UW

†ewmK e¨vsK wjwg‡UW

Bb‡f÷‡g›U K‡c©v‡ikb Ae evsjv‡`k

Avj Avivdvn& Bmjvgx e¨vsK wjwg‡UW

†mvk¨vj Bmjvgx e¨vsK wjwg‡UW

b¨vkbvj e¨vsK wjwg‡UW

dv÷© wmwKDwiwU Bmjvgx e¨vsK wjwg‡UW

GbAviwe †Møvevj e¨vsK wjwg‡UW

hgybv e¨vsK wjwg‡UW

BDwbqb e¨vsK wjwg‡UW

Gw·g e¨vsK wjwg‡UW

wcÖwgqvi e¨vsK wjwg‡UW

evsjv‡`k Kgvm© e¨vsK wjwg‡UW
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2018-2019

Av‡jvP¨m~Px :
1. 02 †deªæqvwi 2019 wLª., 20 gvN, 1425 e½vã Zvwi‡L AbywôZ 43Zg evwl©K mvaviY mfvi Kvh©weeiYx I wm×všÍ 

wbwðZKiY;

2. 2019 mv‡ji 30 Ryb mgvß eQ‡ii wbixw¶Z Avw_©K weeiYx Ges Dnvi Dci †Kv¤úvwbi cwiPvjKgÛjxi cÖwZ‡e`b MÖnY 

Ges Aby‡gv`b;

3. 2019 mv‡ji 30 Ryb mgvß eQ‡ii Rb¨ jf¨vsk †NvlYv Aby‡gv`b;

4. evsjv‡`k †c‡Uªvwjqvg Ki‡cv‡ikb KZ©„K g‡bvbxZ cwiPvjK huviv †Kv¤úvwbi cwiPvjb wewa Abyhvqx Aemi MÖnY Ki‡Qb 

Zuv‡`i cybtwb‡qvM Aby‡gv`b Ges cwiPvjbv cl©` KZ…©K wb‡qvMcÖvß ¯^vaxb cwiPvjK Gi wb‡qvM Aby‡gv`b ;

5. 2020 mv‡ji 30 Ryb mgvc¨ eQ‡ii Rb¨ hyM¥ wbix¶K wb‡qvM I Zv‡`i cvwikªwgK wba©viY;

6. 2020 mv‡ji 30 Ryb mgvc¨ eQ‡ii Rb¨ †kqvi‡nvìvi‡`i D‡Ï‡k K‡c©v‡iU Mf©vi‡bÝ MvBWjvB‡bi kZ©vejx †g‡b Pjvi   

wel‡q cÖZ¨vqb c‡Îi Rb¨ †ckv`vi cÖwZôvb wb‡qvM I Zv‡`i cvwikªwgK wba©viY;

7. mfvcwZ g‡nv`‡qi AbygwZµ‡g Ab¨ †h †Kvb welq Av‡jvPbv|

`ªóe¨ :
1| eyK †K¬vRvi Gi cwie‡Z© †iKW© †WU 22 wW‡m¤^i, 2019| †iKW© †WU G †Kv¤úvwbi m`m¨ eB‡Z wbewÜZ A_ev 

wmwWweGj-G †iKW©f~³ †kqvi‡nvìviMY evwl©K mvaviY mfvq Dcw¯’Z _vKvi I Aby‡gvw`Z jf¨vsk cvIqvi †hvM¨ e‡j 

we‡ewPZ n‡eb|

2| m`m¨e„›` G mvaviY mfvq Dcw¯’Z _vK‡Z Ges †fvU cÖ`vb Ki‡Z cvi‡eb wKsev Zuvi c‡¶ Dcw¯’Z _vK‡Z Ges †fvU 

`v‡bi Rb¨ Ab¨ GKRb cÖw· wb‡qvM Ki‡Z cvi‡eb| mfv Abyôv‡bi Rb¨ wba©vwiZ mg‡qi 48 N›Uv c~‡e© cÖw· dig 

wbqgvbyhvqx ÷¨v¤ú mnKv‡i c~iY K‡i ‡Kv¤úvwbi †iwRóªvW© Awd‡m Aek¨B Rgv w`‡Z n‡e|

3| †KejgvÎ nvwRiv cÎ Dc¯’vcb mv‡c‡¶ mfvK‡¶ cÖ‡ek Kiv hv‡e|

4| †Kvb †kqvi‡nvìv‡ii wVKvbv cwieZ©b n‡j ZvÕ AvMvgx 23-01-2020 Zvwi‡Li g‡a¨ AvMÖvev`¯’ hgybv fe‡b Aew¯’Z 

†Kv¤úvwbi †kqvi Awd‡m AewnZ Kivi Rb¨ Aby‡iva Kiv n‡jv|

5| evsjv‡`k wmwKDwiwUR GÛ G·‡PÄ Kwgkb Gi wb‡`©kbv Abyhvqx evwl©K mvaviY mfvq Dcw¯’wZi Rb¨ †Kvbiƒc wMd&U/bM` 

myweav cÖ`v‡bi e¨e¯’v _vK‡e bv|

hgybv A‡qj †Kv¤úvbx wjwg‡UW
(evsjv‡`k †c‡Uªvwjqvg K‡c©v‡ikb Gi GKwU A½ cÖwZôvb)

hgybv feb, AvMÖvev` ev/G 

 †cvt e· bs : 694, PÆMÖvg|

†dvb : 88-031-720181-3, 2520134-9, 2520408

02 gvN, 1426 e½vã

16 Rvbyqvwi, 2020 wLª.

AvMÖvev`, PÆMÖvg|

†ev‡W©i wb‡`©kµ‡g

 

(†gvt gvmy`yj Bmjvg)
†Kv¤úvwb mwPe

44Zg evwl©K mvaviY mfvi weÁwß
GZØviv hgybv A‡qj †Kv¤úvbx wjwg‡UW Gi †kqvi‡nvìvie„‡›`i AeMwZi Rb¨ Rvbv‡bv hv‡”Q †h, AvMvgx 01 †deªæqvwi, 2020 

wLª. (18 gvN, 1426 e½vã), kwbevi mKvj 11-00 NwUKvq ÔÔB›Uvib¨vkbvj Kb‡fbkb †m›UviÓ, 281, P‡Æk¦ix †ivW, KvRxi 

†`Dox, PÆMÖvg -G wbgœwjwLZ welqvw` Av‡jvPbvK‡í †Kv¤úvwbi 44Zg evwl©K mvaviY mfv AbywôZ n‡e|
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AGENDA
1. To confirm the proceedings and minutes of the 43rd Annual General Meeting held  on 02nd  February 

2019 A.D, 20 Magh 1425 B.S;

2. To receive, consider and adopt the audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on 
June 30, 2019 together with the Auditors’ Report and Directors’ Report thereon ;

3. To approve dividend for the year ended on June 30, 2019 ; 

4. To re-elect Directors of the Company in the vacancies caused by retirement of the Directors nominated 
by Bangladesh Petroleum Corporation (BPC) and to approve appointment of Independent Director 
appointed by the Board of the Company ;

5. To appoint joint auditors for the year ended on June 30, 2020 and to fix their remuneration ;

6. To appoint professional to issue Certificate on Compliance of Conditions of Corporate Governance 
Guideline to The Shareholders for the year ended on June 30, 2020 and to fix their remuneration ;

7. Miscellaneous, if any, with the permission of the Chair.

Notes:
1. The Record Date in lieu of Book Closure shall be on 22 December, 2019. The shareholders whose names 

appear in the Share Register of the Company or in the Depository Register on the Record Date will be 
entitled to attend the AGM and receive the Dividend.

2. A shareholder entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting may appoint a proxy to attend 
and vote on his/her behalf. In order to be effective, Proxy Form duly signed and stamped must be 
received at the Company’s Registered Office, Jamuna Bhaban, Agrabad C/A, Chattogram-4100 of the 
Company not later than FORTY EIGHT HOURS before the Meeting.

3. Admission to the Meeting Room will be strictly on production of the attendance slip sent with the Notice.

4. Shareholders are requested to notify the changes of address, if any, to the company’s Share Office at 
Jamuna Bhaban, Agrabad, Chattogram by 23rd January’ 2020.

5. As per directive of Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC) no gift or benefit in cash or 
in kind shall be offered to the Shareholders in the Annual General Meeting.

02 Magh, 1426 BS
16 January, 2020 A.D
Agrabad, Chattogram.

By order of the Board

(Md. Masudul Islam)
Company Secretary

JAMUNA OIL COMPANY LIMITED
(A Subsidiary of Bangladesh Petroleum Corporation)

JAMUNA BHABAN, AGRABAD C/A, 
P.O. BOX No. : 694, CHATTOGRAM.

Tel : 88-031-720181-3, 2520134-9, 2520408

NOTICE OF THE 44th  ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 44th  Annual General Meeting of the shareholders of Jamuna Oil Company 
Limited will be held on 01st February 2020 A.D, 18 Magh 1426 B.S at 11.00 A. M. at “International         
Convention Centre”, 281 Chatteshwari Road, Kazir Dewri, Chattogram to transact the following business :
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†Kv¤úvwbi msw¶ß BwZnvm :
hgybv A‡qj †Kv¤úvbx wjwg‡UW (†RIwmGj) weMZ cuvP `kK a‡i R¡vjvwb †Zj wecY‡bi gva¨‡g RvwZ‡K †mev cÖ`vb K‡i Avm‡Q| 

†`‡ki Av_©-mvgvwRK AMÖMwZ‡Z m‡e©vËg f~wgKv ivL‡Z G †Kv¤úvwb A½xKvie×|

1964 mv‡j 2 (`yB) †KvwU UvKv gyjab wb‡q ZrKvjxb cvwK¯Ív‡bi cÖ_g RvZxq †Zj †Kv¤úvwb wn‡m‡e cvwK¯Ívb b¨vkbvj A‡qj wjwg‡UW 

(wcGbIGj) bvgK †Kv¤úvwbwU hvÎv ïiæ K‡i| 1971 mv‡j ¯^vaxbZv AR©‡bi ci evsjv‡`k A¨ve¨vbW¨vÛ †cÖvcvwU© (Kb‡Uªvj, g¨v‡bR‡g›U 

GÛ wWm&‡cvRvj) Av‡`k 1972 (wcI bs 16, 1972) e‡j cvwK¯Ívb b¨vkbvj A‡qj wjwg‡UW‡K cwiZ¨³ m¤úwË wn‡m‡e †NvlYv K‡i 

MYcÖRvZš¿x evsjv‡`k miKvi KZ©„K AwaMÖnY Kiv nq Ges Gi bvgKiY Kiv nq evsjv‡`k b¨vkbvj A‡qj&m wjwg‡UW| AZtci 13 

Rvbyqvwi, 1973 Zvwi‡Li GK miKvwi Av‡`k e‡j Gi cybt bvgKiY Kiv nq hgybv A‡qj †Kv¤úvbx wjwg‡UW (†RIwmGj)| cÖvK…wZK m¤ú` 

gš¿Yvj‡qi 21-04-73 Zvwi‡Li 21 Gg-4/76 (Gb Avi) weÁwß Abyhvqx G †Kv¤úvwb †c‡Uªvevsjvi AvIZvax‡b GKwU GWnK KwgwU (A‡qj 

†Kv¤úvwbR GWfvBRix KwgwU) Øviv cwiPvwjZ n‡Zv|  1975 m‡bi 12 gvP© †Kv¤úvwb AvBb 1913 (ms‡kvwaZ 1994) Gi Aax‡b m¤ú~Y© 

miKvwi gvwjKvbvaxb GKwU cÖvB‡fU †Kv¤úvwb wn‡m‡e hgybv A‡qj †Kv¤úvbx wjwg‡UW †iwRóªvi Ae R‡q›U ÷K †Kv¤úvwbR GÛ dvg©m G 

wbewÜZ nq,  hvi Aby‡gvw`Z g~jab 10 (`k) †KvwU UvKv Ges cwi‡kvwaZ g~jab 5 (cuvP) †KvwU UvKv| cieZ©xKv‡j 1976 mv‡ji wewcwm 

Aa¨v‡`k bs LXXXVIII (hv 13 b‡f¤^i 1976 Zvwi‡L evsjv‡`k †M‡RU G·Uªv AwW©bvix‡Z cÖKvwkZ nq) Gi 31 (wm) avivq ewY©Z 

ZvwjKvq G †Kv¤úvwbi m¤úwË I `vq-†`bv miKvi KZ…©K evsjv‡`k †c‡Uªvwjqvg K‡c©v‡ikb (wewcwm) Gi wbKU n¯ÍvšÍi Kiv nq| GQvov 

1986 mv‡ji 1 Rvbyqvwi Zvwi‡L B‡›`v-evg©v †c‡Uªvwjqvg †Kv¤úvwb wjwg‡UW (AvBwewcwmGj) Gi mg¯Í welq m¤úwË I ̀ vq-†`bv G †Kv¤úvwb 

KZ©„K M„nxZ nq| evsjv‡`k †c‡Uªvwjqvg K‡c©v‡ikb MV‡bi ci †_‡K hgybv A‡qj †Kv¤úvbx wjwg‡UW evsjv‡`k †c‡Uªvwjqvg K‡c©v‡ik‡bi 

GKwU mvewmwWqvix wn‡m‡e KvR K‡i Avm‡Q|

2005-2006 A_© eQ‡ii gybvdv †_‡K 5.00 †KvwU UvKv g~j¨gv‡bi †evbvm †kqvi Bmy¨ K‡i G †Kv¤úvwbi †gvU cwi‡kvwaZ g~jab 

10.00 †KvwU UvKvq DbœxZ Kiv nq| MZ 25-06-2007 Zvwi‡L G †Kv¤úvwb‡K cÖvB‡fU wjwg‡UW †Kv¤úvwb †_‡K cvewjK wjwg‡UW 

†Kv¤úvwb‡Z iƒcvšÍwiZ Kiv nq Ges Gi Aby‡gvw`Z g~jab 300.00 †KvwU UvKvq DbœxZ Kiv nq| cieZ©x‡Z 10-08-2007 Zvwi‡L 

cybivq 35.00 †KvwU UvKvi †evbvm †kqvi Bmy¨ K‡i cwi‡kvwaZ g~jab 45.00 †KvwU UvKvq DbœxZ Kiv nq| evsjv‡`k †c‡Uªvwjqvg 

K‡c©v‡ikb Zv‡`i gvwjKvbvaxb †kqvi †_‡K cÖwZwU 10.00 UvKv g~‡j¨i 1,35,00,000wU mvaviY †kqvi A_©vr; 13.50 †KvwU UvKvi 

†kqvi WvB‡i± wjw÷s c×wZi AvIZvq Ad-‡jvW Gi j‡¶¨ XvKv ÷K G·‡PÄ wjwg‡UW Ges PÆMÖvg ÷K G·‡PÄ wjwg‡UW G 

09-01-2008 Zvwi‡L ZvwjKvf~³ nq Ges h_vixwZ Dc‡iv³ †kqvi cyuwRevRv‡i Ad-†jvW Kiv nq| cieZ©x‡Z miKv‡ii wm×všÍ 

Abyhvqx Aewkó †kqvi n‡Z Av‡iv 17 kZvsk †kqvi MZ 25-07-2011 Zvwi‡L Ad-†jvW Kiv nq|

wewfbœ A_© eQ‡i †Kv¤úvwbi evwl©K mvaviY mfvq Aby‡gv`bµ‡g †evbvm †kqvi Bmy¨i gva¨‡g cwi‡kvwaZ g~jab 110.42 †KvwU UvKvq 

DbœxZ Kiv nq, hv cÖwZwU 10 UvKv g~‡j¨i 11,04,24,600wU †kqv‡i wef³| eZ©gv‡b evsjv‡`k †c‡Ævwjqvg K‡c©v‡ikb I mvaviY 

wewb‡qvMKvix‡`i gvwjKvbv h_vµ‡g 60.08% I 39.92%| 

GQvovI †RIwmGj evsjv‡`‡k wek¦gv‡bi gwej eª¨v‡Ûi jyweª‡K›U Ges wMÖR evRviRvZ K‡i _v‡K| †Kv¤úvwbi cÖavb Kvh©vjq PÆMÖv‡g 

Aew¯’Z| GQvov †`‡ki wewfbœ ¯’v‡b 4wU wefvMxq Awdm Ges 5wU AvÂwjK weµq Awdm i‡q‡Q|

†Kv¤úvwbi cÖavb ¯’vcbv PÆMÖv‡g Aew¯’Z Ges mviv †`‡k 16wU wW‡cv i‡q‡Q| †RIwmGj Gi we`¨gvb 735wU wdwjs †ókb, 1220wU 

G‡R›U, 274wU c¨vK&W c‡q›U wWjvi, 788wU GjwcwR wWjvi Ges 19wU †gwib wWjvi Øviv kw³kvjx †bUIqvK© Gi gva¨‡g 

wbiewPQbœfv‡e MÖvnK‡`i wbKU †c‡ÆvwjqvgRvZ cY¨ mieivn I †mev cÖ`vb K‡i _v‡K|

†Kv¤úvwb cwiPvjbvi Rb¨ eZ©gv‡b `k m`‡m¨i GKwU cwiPvjbv cl©` i‡q‡Q| cwiPvjbv cl©‡`i 7 Rb cwiPvjK wewcwm/miKvi KZ…©K 

g‡bvbxZ, 2 Rb ¯^vaxb cwiPvjK I 1 Rb †kqvi‡nvìvi cwiPvjK †evW© KZ©„K g‡bvbxZ huv‡`i wb‡qvM evwl©K mvaviY mfvq Aby‡gvw`Z 

nq| †Kv¤úvwbi mvwe©K Kg©KvÛ cwiPvjbv cl©‡`i Aby‡gv`bµ‡g m¤úvw`Z nq| G †¶‡Î miKvi bxwZwba©viK wn‡m‡e KvR K‡i, hv 

wewcwmÕi gva¨‡g ev¯ÍevwqZ nq|    

cÖavb Kvh©vjq : hgybv feb, †kL gywRe †ivW, AvMÖvev` evwYwR¨K GjvKv, PÆMÖvg, evsjv‡`k|

AvevwmK Kvh©vjq : wewUGgwm feb (11 Zjv), 7-9, KvIivb evRvi, XvKv-1215|

wefvMxq Kvh©vjq : PÆMÖvg, XvKv, Lyjbv I e¸ov|

cÖavb ¯’vcbv : ¸ßLvj, c‡Z½v, PÆMÖvg|

wW‡cv : mgMÖ †`‡k 16wU wW‡cv i‡q‡Q|

e¨emvi cÖK…wZ : †c‡UªvwjqvgRvZ cY¨, jyweª‡KwUs A‡qj I MÖxR, weUzwgb Ges Gjwc M¨vm msMÖn, gRyZKiY, mieivn I 

wecYb|

hgybv A‡qj †Kv¤úvbx wjwg‡UW
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Annexure-A
[As per condition No.1(5)(xxvi)]

Jamuna Oil Company Limited
Declaration by CEO and CFO

Date : 26 December 2019

The Board of Directors
Jamuna Oil Company Limited
Jamuna Bhaban, Sk. Mujib Road,
Agrabad C/A, Chattogram.

Subject : Declaration on Financial Statements for the year ended  30th June 2019

Dear Sirs,
Pursuant to the condition No.1(5)(xxvi) imposed vide the Commission’s Notification No-BSEC/CMR-
RCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80, Dated 03 June 2018 under section 2CC of the Securities and Exchange Ordinance, 
1969, we do hereby declare that:

(1) The Financial Statements of Jamuna Oil Company Limited for the year ended on 30th June 2019 have been 
prepared in compliance with International  Accounting Standards (IAS) or International Financial            
Reporting Standards (IFRS), as applicable in the Bangladesh and any departure there from has been 
adequately disclosed;

(2) The estimates and judgments related to the financial statements were made on a prudent and reasonable 
basis, in order for the financial statements to reveal a true and fair view;

(3) The form and substance of transactions and the Company’s state of affairs have  been reasonably and fairly 
presented in its financial statements;

(4) To ensure above, the Company has taken proper and adequate care in installing a system of internal control 
and maintenance of accounting records;

(5) Our internal auditors have conducted continuous audits to provide reasonable assurance that the established 
policies and procedures of the Company were consistently followed; and

(6) The management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements is 
appropriate and there exists no material uncertainty related to events or conditions that may cast significant 
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as going concern. 

In this regard, we also certify that:-

(i) We have reviewed the financial statements for the year ended on 30 June 2019 and  that to the best of 
our knowledge and belief:

(a)  these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain 
statements that might be misleading;

(b) These statements collectively present true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance 
with existing accounting standards and applicable laws.

(ii) There are, to the best of knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the 
year which are fraudulent, illegal or in violation of the code of conduct for the company’s Board of 
Directors or its members.

(Md. Gias Uddin Ansary)
Managing Director

Sincerely yours,

(Md. Nazmul Hoque)
DGM (Finance)
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Annexure-B
[As per condition No.1(5)(xxvii)]
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JAMUNA OIL COMPANY LIMITED
REPORT ON COMPLIANCE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE UNDER CONDITION NO. 9

Status of compliance with the conditions imposed by the Commission’s Notification No.BSEC/CMR-
RCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80, dated 3 June 2018 issued under section 2CC of the Securities and Exchange 
Ordinance, 1969 is as follows:

Title

Compliance status 
(Put in the 

appropriate column)
Complied Not 

complied
1 BOARD OF DIRECTORS

1(1)
Size of the Board of Directors :

Remarks
(if any)

Co
nd

iti
on

 N
o.

The total number of members of a company’s Board of Directors (hereinafter referred to as 
“Board”) shall not be less than 5 (five) and more than 20 (twenty).

The JOCL Board is 
comprised of 10 
(Ten) Directors.

1(2)

1(2) (a)

Independent Directors





All companies shall have effective representation of independent directors on their Boards, so 
that the Board, as a group, includes core competencies considered relevant in the context of 
each company; for this purpose, the companies shall comply with the following:-

At least one-fifth (1/5) of the total number of directors in the company’s Board shall be 
independent directors; any fraction shall be considered to the next integer or whole number 
for calculating number of independent director(s);

1(2)(b) For the purpose of this clause “independent director” means a director -

There are two 
Independent Director 

in JOCL Board.

1(2)(b)(i) 
who either does not hold any share in the company or holds less than one percent (1%) shares 
of the total paid-up shares of the company;

The Independent
Directors have declared 

their compliances.

The Independent 
Directors have 
declared their 
compliances.

1(2)(b) (ii)



who is not a sponsor of the company or is not connected with the company’s any sponsor or 
director or nominated director or shareholder of the company or any of its associates, sister 
concerns, subsidiaries and parents or holding entities who holds one percent (1%) or more 
shares of the total paid-up shares of the company on the basis of family relationship and his 
or her family members also shall not hold above mentioned shares in the company: Provided 
that spouse, son, daughter, father, mother, brother, sister, son-in-law and daughter-in-law 
shall be considered as family members;

Do

1(2)(b) (iii) 
who has not been an executive of the company in immediately preceding 2 (two) financial 
years;

Do

1(2)(b) (iv) 
who does not have any other relationship, whether pecuniary or otherwise, with the company 
or its subsidiary or associated companies;

Do

1(2)(b) (v) 
who is not a member or TREC (Trading Right Entitlement Certificate) holder, director or 
officer of any stock exchange;

Do

1(2)(b) (vi) 
who is not a shareholder, director excepting independent director or officer of any member or 
TREC holder of stock exchange or an intermediary of the capital market;

Do

Do

1(2)(b) (vii) 
who is not a partner or an executive or was not a partner or an executive during the preceding 
3 (three) years of the concerned company’s statutory audit firm or audit firm engaged in 
internal audit services or audit firm conducting special audit or professional certifying 
compliance of this Code;

1(2)(b) (viii) who is not independent director in more than 5 (five) listed companies;

Do1(2)(b) (ix) who has not been convicted by a court of competent jurisdiction as a defaulter in payment of 
any loan or any advance to a bank or a Non-Bank Financial Institution (NBFI); and

Do

Do

No vacancy occurred.

1(2)(b) (x) who has not been convicted for a criminal offence involving moral turpitude;

1(2)(c) The independent director(s) shall be appointed by the Board and approved by the shareholders 
in the Annual General Meeting (AGM);

1(2)(d) The post of independent director(s) cannot remain vacant for more than 90 (ninety) days; and

1(2)(e)



The tenure of office of an independent director shall be for a period of 3 (three) years, which 
may be extended for 1 (one) tenure only: 
Provided that a former independent director may be considered for reappointment for another 
tenure after a time gap of one tenure, i.e., three years from his or her completion of                 
consecutive two tenures [i.e. six years]: 
Provided further that the independent director shall not be subject to retirement by rotation as 
per the †Kv¤úvbx AvBb, 1994 (1994 m‡bi 18 bs AvBb)(Companies Act, 1994).
Explanation: For the purpose of counting tenure or term of independent director, any partial 
term of tenure shall be deemed to be a full tenure.

Annexure-C
[As per condition No.1(5)(xxvii)]
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N/A

N/A

Title

Compliance status 
(Put in the 

appropriate column)
Complied Not 

complied
1(3) Qualification of Independent Director.-
1(3)(a)

Remarks
(if any)

Co
nd

iti
on

 N
o.

Independent director shall be a knowledgeable individual with integrity who is able to ensure 
compliance with financial laws, regulatory requirements and corporate laws and can make 
meaningful contribution to the business;

The qualifications and 
background of Independent 

Director’s justify their 
abilities as such.

No such event occurred 
during the reporting period. 

1(3)(b)(i) Business Leader who is or was a promoter or director of an unlisted company having 
minimum paid-up capital of Tk. 100.00 million or any listed company or a member of any 
national or international chamber of commerce or business association; or

1(3)(b)(ii) Corporate Leader who is or was a top level executive not lower than Chief Executive Officer 
or Managing Director or Deputy Managing Director or Chief Financial Officer or Head of 
Finance or Accounts or Company Secretary or Head of Internal Audit and Compliance or 
Head of Legal Service or a candidate with equivalent position of an unlisted company having 
minimum paid-up capital of Tk. 100.00 million or of a listed company; or
Explanation: Top level executive includes Managing Director (MD) or Chief Executive 
Officer (CEO), Additional or Deputy Managing Director (AMD or DMD), Chief Operating 
Officer (COO), Chief Financial Officer (CFO), Company Secretary (CS), Head of Internal 
Audit and Compliance (HIAC), Head of Administration and Human Resources or equivalent 
positions and same level or ranked or salaried officials of the company. 





1(3)(b)(iii) Former official of government or statutory or autonomous or regulatory body in the position 
not below 5th Grade of the national pay scale, who has at least educational background of 
bachelor degree in economics or commerce or business or Law; or



1(3)(b)(iv) University Teacher who has educational background in Economics or Commerce or Business 
Studies or Law; or 

1(3)(b)(v) Professional who is or was an advocate practicing at least in the High Court Division of 
Bangladesh Supreme Court or a Chartered Accountant or Cost and Management Accountant 
or Chartered Financial Analyst or Chartered Certified Accountant or Certified Public Account-
ant or Chartered Management Accountant or Chartered Secretary or equivalent qualification;



1(3)(c) The independent director shall have at least 10 (ten) years of experiences in any field 
mentioned in clause (b); 



1(3)(d) In special cases, the above qualifications or experiences may be relaxed subject to prior 
approval of the Commission.

1(4)(a) The positions of the Chairperson of the Board and the Managing Director (MD) and/or Chief 
Executive Officer (CEO) of the company shall be filled by different individuals;

1(4)(b) The Managing Director (MD) and/or Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of a listed company shall 
not hold the same position in another listed company;

1(4)(c) The Chairperson of the Board shall be elected from among the non-executive directors of the 
company;

1(4)(d) The Board shall clearly define respective roles and responsibilities of the Chairperson and the 
Managing Director and/or Chief Executive Officer;


1(4)(e) In the absence of the Chairperson of the Board, the remaining members may elect one of 

themselves from nonexecutive directors as Chairperson for that particular Board’s meeting; 
the reason of absence of the regular Chairperson shall be duly recorded in the minutes.

1(5)(i) An industry outlook and possible future developments in the industry;

1(5)(ii) The segment-wise or product-wise performance;

1(5)(iii) Risks and concerns including internal and external risk factors, threat to sustainability and 
negative impact on environment, if any;

1(5)(iv) A discussion on Cost of Goods sold, Gross Profit Margin and Net Profit Margin, where 
applicable;

1(5)(v) A discussion on continuity of any extraordinary activities and their implications (gain or loss);

A statement of all related 
party transaction is disclosed 
under  Notes to the Financial 

Statements no. 34

1(5)(vi) A detailed discussion on related party transactions along with a statement showing amount, 
nature of related party, nature of transactions and basis of transactions of all related party 
transactions;

1(5) The Board of the company shall include the following additional statements or disclosures in the Directors’ Report prepared under section 
184 of the Companies Act, 1994 (Act No. XVIII of 1994):-

1(3)(b) Independent director shall have following qualifications:

1(4) Duality of Chairperson of the Board of Directors and Managing Director or Chief Executive Officer.-

The Directors’ Report to Shareholders
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Disclosed under  Notes 
to the Financial 

Statements no. 30

No Significant 
doubts have 

occurred.

No Shareholders 
holding ten percent 

(10%) or more votes’ 
interest.

N/A

N/A

Title

Compliance status 
(Put in the 

appropriate column)
Complied Not 

complied
1(5)(vii)

Remarks
(if any)

Co
nd

iti
on

 N
o.

A statement of utilization of proceeds raised through public issues, rights issues and/or any 
other instruments;

N/A1(5)(viii) An explanation if the financial results deteriorate after the company goes for Initial Public 
Offering (IPO), Repeat Public Offering (RPO), Rights Share Offer, Direct Listing, etc.;

1(5)(ix) An explanation on any significant variance that occurs between Quarterly Financial 
performances and Annual Financial Statements; 

1(5)(x) A statement of remuneration paid to the directors including independent directors; 

1(5)(xi) A statement that the financial statements prepared by the management of the issuer company 
present fairly its state of affairs, the result of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity; 

1(5)(xii) A statement that proper books of account of the issuer company have been maintained; 
1(5)(xiii) A statement that appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation 

of the financial statements and that the accounting estimates are based on reasonable and 
prudent judgment;



1(5)(xiv) A statement that International Accounting Standards (IAS) or International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRS), as applicable in Bangladesh, have been followed in preparation 
of the financial statements and any departure there from has been adequately disclosed;



1(5)(xv) A statement that the system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively 
implemented and monitored; 

1(5)(xvi) A statement that minority shareholders have been protected from abusive actions by, or in the 
interest of, controlling shareholders acting either directly or indirectly and have effective 
means of redress;



1(5)(xvii) A statement that there is no significant doubt upon the issuer company’s ability to continue as 
a going concern, if the issuer company is not considered to be a going concern, the fact along 
with reasons there of shall be disclosed;

1(5)(xviii) An explanation that significant deviations from the last year’s operating results of the issuer 
company shall be highlighted and the reasons thereof shall be explained; 

1(5)(xix) A statement where key operating and financial data of at least preceding 5 (five) years shall be 
summarized; 



1(5)(xx) An explanation on the reasons if the issuer company has not declared dividend (cash or stock) 
for the year;

1(5)(xxi) Board’s statement to the effect that no bonus share or stock dividend has been or shall be 
declared as interim dividend;

1(5)(xxii) The total number of Board meetings held during the year and attendance by each director;

1(5)(xxiii)(a) Parent or Subsidiary or Associated Companies and other related parties (name-wise details);

1(5)(xxiii)(b) Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary, Chief Financial Officer, Head of 
Internal Audit and Compliance and their spouses and minor children (name-wise details);

1(5)(xxiii)(c) Executives; and

1(5)(xxiii)(d) Shareholders holding ten percent (10%) or more voting interest in the company (name-wise 
details);
Explanation: For the purpose of this clause, the expression “executive” means top 5 (five) 
salaried employees of the company, other than the Directors, Chief Executive Officer, 
Company Secretary, Chief Financial Officer and Head of Internal Audit and Compliance.

1(5)(xxiv)(a) a brief resume of the director;

1(5)(xxiv)(b) nature of his or her expertise in specific functional areas; and

1(5)(xxiv)(c) names of companies in which the person also holds the directorship and the membership of 
committees of the Board;

1(5)(xxv)(a) accounting policies and estimation for preparation of financial statements;

1(5)(xxv)(b) changes in accounting policies and estimation, if any, clearly describing the effect on financial 
performance or results and financial position as well as cash flows in absolute figure for such 
changes;

1(5)(xxv) A Management’s Discussion and Analysis signed by CEO or MD presenting detailed analysis of the company’s position and 
operations along with a brief discussion of changes in the financial statements, among others, focusing on

1(5)(xxiv) In case of the appointment or reappointment of a director, a disclosure on the following information to the shareholders:-

1(5)(xxiii) A report on the pattern of shareholding disclosing the aggregate number of shares (along with name-wise details where stated 
below) held by:-
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comparative analysis (including effects of inflation) of financial performance or results and 
financial position as well as cash flows for current financial year with immediate preceding 
five years explaining reasons thereof;



1(5)(xxv)(d) compare such financial performance or results and financial position as well as cash flows 
with the peer industry scenario; 

1(5)(xxv)(e) briefly explain the financial and economic scenario of the country and the globe; 
1(5)(xxv)(f) risks and concerns issues related to the financial statements, explaining such risk and concerns 

mitigation plan of the company; and 
1(5)(xxv)(g) future plan or projection or forecast for company’s operation, performance and financial 

position, with justification thereof, i.e., actual position shall be explained to the shareholders 
in the next AGM;



1(5)(xxvi) Declaration or certification by the CEO and the CFO to the Board as required under condition 
No. 3(3) shall be disclosed as per Annexure-A; and 

1(5)(xxvii) The report as well as certificate regarding compliance of conditions of this Code as required 
under condition No. 9 shall be disclosed as per Annexure-B and Annexure-C.

1(7)(a) The Board shall lay down a code of conduct, based on the recommendation of the Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee (NRC) at condition No. 6, for the Chairperson of the Board, 
other board members and Chief Executive Officer of the company;

JOCL does not have any 
subsidiary company.

2(a) Provisions relating to the composition of the Board of the holding company shall be made 
applicable to the composition of the Board of the subsidiary company;

2(b) At least 1 (one) independent director on the Board of the holding company shall be a director 
on the Board of the subsidiary company;

1(7)(b) The code of conduct as determined by the NRC shall be posted on the website of the company 
including, among others, prudent conduct and behavior; confidentiality; conflict of interest; 
compliance with laws, rules and regulations; prohibition of insider trading; relationship with 
environment, employees, customers and suppliers; and independency.


1(6) Meetings of the Board of Directors

The company shall conduct its Board meetings and record the minutes of the meetings as well 
as keep required books and records in line with the provisions of the relevant Bangladesh 
Secretarial Standards (BSS) as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Secretaries of 
Bangladesh (ICSB) in so far as those standards are not inconsistent with any condition of this 
Code.









1(7) Code of Conduct for the Chairperson, other Board members and Chief Executive Officer

2. Governance of Board of Directors of Subsidiary Company.-

3. Managing Director (MD) or Chief Executive Officer (CEO), Chief Financial Officer (CFO), Head of Internal Audit and Compliance 
(HIAC) and Company Secretary (CS).-

3(1) Appointment

N/A

2(c) The minutes of the Board meeting of the subsidiary company shall be placed for review at the 
following Board meeting of the holding company;

N/A

2(d) The minutes of the respective Board meeting of the holding company shall state that they have 
reviewed the affairs of the subsidiary company also;

N/A

2(e) The Audit Committee of the holding company shall also review the financial statements, in 
particular the investments made by the subsidiary company.

3(1)(a) The Board shall appoint a Managing Director (MD) or Chief Executive Officer (CEO), a 
Company Secretary (CS), a Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and a Head of Internal Audit and 
Compliance (HIAC);

3(1)(b) The positions of the Managing Director (MD) or Chief Executive Officer (CEO), Company 
Secretary (CS), Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and Head of Internal Audit and Compliance 
(HIAC) shall be filled by different individuals;

3(1)(c) The MD or CEO, CS, CFO and HIAC of a listed company shall not hold any executive 
position in any other company at the same time;

3(1)(d) The Board shall clearly define respective roles, responsibilities and duties of the CFO, the 
HIAC and the CS;

3(1)(e) The MD or CEO, CS, CFO and HIAC shall not be removed from their position without 
approval of the Board as well as immediate dissemination to the Commission and stock 
exchange(s).

3(2) Requirement to attend Board of Directors’ Meetings
The MD or CEO, CS, CFO and HIAC of the company shall attend the meetings of the Board:
Provided that the CS, CFO and/or the HIAC shall not attend such part of a meeting of the 
Board which involves consideration of an agenda item relating to their personal matters.

N/A
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The MD or CEO and CFO shall certify to the Board that they have reviewed financial 
statements for the year and that to the best of their knowledge and belief: 

3(3)(a)(i) These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or 
contain statements that might be misleading; and 

3(3)(a)(ii) These statements together present a true and fair view of the company’s affairs and are in 
compliance with existing accounting standards and applicable laws; 

3(3)(b) The MD or CEO and CFO shall also certify that there are, to the best of knowledge and belief, 
no transactions entered into by the company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or in 
violation of the code of conduct for the company’s Board or its members;



3(3)(c) The certification of the MD or CEO and CFO shall be disclosed in the Annual Report

4(i) Audit Committee; and 



5(1)(a) The company shall have an Audit Committee as a subcommittee of the Board; 
5(1)(b) The Audit Committee shall assist the Board in ensuring that the financial statements reflect 

true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and in ensuring a good monitoring 
system within the business;

5(1)(c) The Audit Committee shall be responsible to the Board; the duties of the Audit Committee 
shall be clearly set forth in writing.





5(2)(a) The Audit Committee shall be composed of at least 3 (three) members;

5(2)(b) The Board shall appoint members of the Audit Committee who shall be non-executive 
directors of the company excepting Chairperson of the Board and shall include at least 1 (one) 
independent director;





5(2)(c) All members of the audit committee should be “financially literate” and at least 1 (one) 
member shall have accounting or related financial management background and 10 (ten) years 
of such experience;
Explanation: The term “financially literate” means the ability to read and understand the 
financial statements like statement of financial position, statement of comprehensive income, 
statement of changes in equity and cash flows statement and a person will be considered to 
have accounting or related financial management expertise if he or she possesses professional 
qualification or Accounting or Finance graduate with at least 10 (ten) years of corporate 
management or professional experiences.



5(2)(d) When the term of service of any Committee member expires or there is any circumstance 
causing any Committee member to be unable to hold office before expiration of the term of 
service, thus making the number of the Committee members to be lower than the prescribed 
number of 3 (three) persons, the Board shall appoint the new Committee member to fill up the 
vacancy immediately or not later than 1 (one) month from the date of vacancy in the Commit-
tee to ensure continuity of the performance of work of the Audit Committee;



5(2)(e) The company secretary shall act as the secretary of the Committee; 
5(2)(f) The quorum of the Audit Committee meeting shall not constitute without at least 1 (one) 

independent director.


5(3)(a) The Board shall select 1 (one) member of the Audit Committee to be Chairperson of the Audit 
Committee, who shall be an independent director;

5(4)(a) The Audit Committee shall conduct at least its four meetings in a financial year: 
Provided that any emergency meeting in addition to regular meeting may be convened at the 
request of any one of the members of the Committee;


5(3)(b) In the absence of the Chairperson of the Audit Committee, the remaining members may elect 

one of themselves as Chairperson for that particular meeting, in that case there shall be no 
problem of constituting a quorum as required under condition No. 5(4)(b) and the reason of 
absence of the regular Chairperson shall be duly recorded in the minutes.



5(3)(c) Chairperson of the Audit Committee shall remain present in the Annual General 
Meeting (AGM): 
Provided that in absence of Chairperson of the Audit Committee, any other member from the 
Audit Committee shall be selected to be present in the annual general meeting (AGM) and 
reason for absence of the Chairperson of the Audit Committee shall be recorded in the 
minutes of the AGM.






4(ii) Nomination and Remuneration Committee. 

4. Board of Directors’ Committee.-
For ensuring good governance in the company, the Board shall have at least following sub-committees:

5. Audit Committee.-
5(1) Responsibility to the Board of Directors.

5(2) Constitution of the Audit Committee

5(3) Chairperson of the Audit Committee

5(4) Meeting of the Audit Committee

The board have 
appointed members 
in due time and no 
vacancy occurred.

3(3) Duties of Managing Director (MD) or Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and Chief Financial Officer (CFO)
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The quorum of the meeting of the Audit Committee shall be constituted in presence of either 
two members or two-third of the members of the Audit Committee, whichever is higher, 
where presence of an independent director is a must.



5(5)(a) Oversee the financial reporting process; 
5(5)(b) monitor choice of accounting policies and principles; 
5(5)(c) Monitor Internal Audit and Compliance process to ensure that it is adequately resourced, 

including approval of the Internal Audit and Compliance Plan and review of the Internal 
Audit and Compliance Report;



5(5)(d) Oversee hiring and performance of external auditors; 

5(5)(h) Review the adequacy of internal audit function; 
5(5)(i) Review the Management’s Discussion and Analysis before disclosing in the Annual Report; 
5(5)(j) Review statement of all related party transactions submitted by the management; 
5(5)(k) Review Management Letters or Letter of Internal Control weakness issued by statutory 

auditors;

5(6)(a)(i) The Audit Committee shall report on its activities to the Board.

5(6)(a)(ii)(a) Report on conflicts of interests;


5(5)(l) Oversee the determination of audit fees based on scope and magnitude, level of expertise 

deployed and time required for effective audit and evaluate the performance of external 
auditors; and



5(5)(m) Oversee whether the proceeds raised through Initial Public Offering (IPO) or Repeat Public 
Offering (RPO) or Rights Share Offer have been utilized as per the purposes stated in relevant 
offer document or prospectus approved by the Commission: 
Provided that the management shall disclose to the Audit Committee about the uses or 
applications of the proceeds by major category (capital expenditure, sales and marketing 
expenses, working capital, etc.), on a quarterly basis, as a part of their quarterly declaration of 
financial results: 
Provided further that on an annual basis, the company shall prepare a statement of the 
proceeds utilized for the purposes other than those stated in the offer document or prospectus 
for publication in the Annual Report along with the comments of the Audit Committee.



5(5)(e) Hold meeting with the external or statutory auditors for review of the annual financial 
statements before submission to the Board for approval or adoption;


5(5)(f) Review along with the management, the annual financial statements before submission to the 

Board for approval;


5(5)(g) Review along with the management, the quarterly and half yearly financial statements before 
submission to the Board for approval;



5(5) Role of Audit Committee
The Audit Committee shall:-

5(6) Reporting of the Audit Committee

5(6)(b) Reporting to the Authorities:

5(7) Reporting to the Shareholders and General Investors

6. Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC).-
6(1) Responsibility to the Board of Directors

5(6)(a) Reporting to the Board of Directors

5(6)(a)(ii) The Audit Committee shall immediately report to the Board on the following findings, if any:-
N/A

5(6)(a)(ii)(b) Suspected or presumed fraud or irregularity or material defect identified in the internal audit 
and compliance process or in the financial statements;

N/A

5(6)(a)(ii)(c) suspected infringement of laws, regulatory compliances including securities related laws, 
rules and regulations; and

N/A

5(6)(a)(ii)(d) any other matter which the Audit Committee deems necessary shall be disclosed to the Board 
immediately;

6(1)(a) The company shall have a Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) as a sub-  
committee of the Board;

If the Audit Committee has reported to the Board about anything which has material impact 
on the financial condition and results of operation and has discussed with the Board and the 
management that any rectification is necessary and if the Audit Committee finds that such 
rectification has been unreasonably ignored, the Audit Committee shall report such finding to 
the Commission, upon reporting of such matters to the Board for three times or completion of 
a period of 6 (six) months from the date of first reporting to the Board, whichever is earlier.

Report on activities carried out by the Audit Committee, including any report made to the 
Board under condition No. 5(6)(a)(ii) above during the year, shall be signed by the             
Chairperson of the Audit Committee and disclosed in the annual report of the issuer company.

N/A

N/A

Under process
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The NRC shall assist the Board in formulation of the nomination criteria or policy for 
determining qualifications, positive attributes, experiences and independence of directors and 
top level executive as well as a policy for formal process of considering remuneration of 
directors, top level executive;

Under process

6(1)(c) The Terms of Reference (ToR) of the NRC shall be clearly set forth in writing covering the 
areas stated at the condition No. 6(5)(b).

6(2)(a) The Committee shall comprise of at least three members including an independent director;
6(2)(b) All members of the Committee shall be non-executive directors;
6(2)(c) Members of the Committee shall be nominated and appointed by the Board;

Under process

Under process
Under process
Under process

6(2)(d) The Board shall have authority to remove and appoint any member of the Committee; Under process
6(2)(e) In case of death, resignation, disqualification, or removal of any member of the Committee or 

in any other cases of vacancies, the board shall fill the vacancy within 180 (one hundred 
eighty) days of occurring such vacancy in the Committee;

Under process

6(2)(f) The Chairperson of the Committee may appoint or co-opt any external expert and/or 
member(s) of staff to the Committee as advisor who shall be non-voting member, if the 
Chairperson feels that advice or suggestion from such external expert and/or member(s) of 
staff shall be required or valuable for the Committee;

Under process

6(2)(g) The company secretary shall act as the secretary of the Committee; Under process
6(2)(h) The quorum of the NRC meeting shall not constitute without attendance of at least an 

independent director;
Under process

6(2)(i) No member of the NRC shall receive, either directly or indirectly, any remuneration for any 
advisory or consultancy role or otherwise, other than Director’s fees or honorarium from the 
company.

Under process

6(3)(a) The Board shall select 1 (one) member of the NRC to be Chairperson of the Committee, who 
shall be an independent director;

6(4)(a) The NRC shall conduct at least one meeting in a financial year;

Under process

6(3)(b) In the absence of the Chairperson of the NRC, the remaining members may elect one of 
themselves as Chairperson for that particular meeting, the reason of absence of the regular 
Chairperson shall be duly recorded in the minutes;

Under process

6(3)(c) The Chairperson of the NRC shall attend the annual general meeting (AGM) to answer the 
queries of the shareholders:
Provided that in absence of Chairperson of the NRC, any other member from the NRC shall 
be selected to be present in the annual general meeting (AGM) for answering the sharehold-
er’s queries and reason for absence of the Chairperson of the NRC shall be recorded in the 
minutes of the AGM.

Under process

Under process
6(4)(b) The Chairperson of the NRC may convene any emergency meeting upon request by any 

member of the NRC;
Under process

6(4)(c) The quorum of the meeting of the NRC shall be constituted in presence of either two members 
or two third of the members of the Committee, whichever is higher, where presence of an 
independent director is must as required under condition No. 6(2)(h);

Under process

6(4)(d) The proceedings of each meeting of the NRC shall duly be recorded in the minutes and such 
minutes shall be confirmed in the next meeting of the NRC

Under process

6(5)(a) NRC shall be independent and responsible or accountable to the Board and to the                 
shareholders;

Under process

6(5)(b) NRC shall oversee, among others, the following matters and make report with recommenda-
tion to the Board:

Under process

6(5)(b)(i) formulating the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of 
a director and recommend a policy to the Board, relating to the remuneration of the directors, 
top level executive, considering the following:

6(5)(b)(i)(a) the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and 
motivate suitable directors to run the company successfully;

Under process

Under process

6(5)(b)(i)(b) the relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance 
benchmarks; and

Under process

6(5)(b)(i)(c) remuneration to directors, top level executive involves a balance between fixed and incentive 
pay reflecting short and long-term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the 
company and its goals;

Under process

6(5)(b)(ii) devising a policy on Board’s diversity taking into consideration age, gender, experience, 
ethnicity, educational background and nationality;

Under process

6(2) Constitution of the NRC

6(3) Chairperson of the NRC

6(4) Meeting of the NRC

6(5) Role of the NRC
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identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in top 
level executive position in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend their 
appointment and removal to the Board;

Under process

6(5)(b)(v) identifying the company’s needs for employees at different levels and determine their 
selection, transfer or replacement and promotion criteria; and

Under process

6(5)(b)(vi) developing, recommending and reviewing annually the company’s human resources and 
training policies;

Under process

6(5)(c) The company shall disclose the nomination and remuneration policy and the evaluation 
criteria and activities of NRC during the year at a glance in its annual report.

7(1) The issuer company shall not engage its external or statutory auditors to perform the following services of the company, namely:-

Under process

6(5)(b)(iv) formulating the criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors and the Board;

7(1)(i) appraisal or valuation services or fairness opinions;

7(1)(ii) financial information systems design and implementation;

Under process

7. External or Statutory Auditors.

8. Maintaining a website by the Company.-

9. Reporting and Compliance of Corporate Governance.-

Do

7(1)(iii) book-keeping or other services related to the accounting records or financial statements; Do

7(1)(iv) broker-dealer services; Do

7(1)(v) actuarial services; Do

7(1)(vi) internal audit services or special audit services; Do
7(1)(vii) any service that the Audit Committee determines; Do

7(1)(viii) audit or certification services on compliance of corporate governance as required under 
condition No. 9(1); and

Do

7(1)(ix) any other service that creates conflict of interest. Do

7(2) No partner or employees of the external audit firms shall possess any share of the company 
they audit at least during the tenure of their audit assignment of that company; his or her 
family members also shall not hold any shares in the said company: 
Provided that spouse, son, daughter, father, mother, brother, sister, son-in-law and 
daughter-in-law shall be considered as family members.

Do

7(3) Representative of external or statutory auditors shall remain present in the Shareholders’ 
Meeting (Annual General Meeting or Extraordinary General Meeting) to answer the queries 
of the shareholders.

Do















8(1) The company shall have an official website linked with the website of the stock exchange. 
8(2) The company shall keep the website functional from the date of listing. 
8(3) The company shall make available the detailed disclosures on its website as required under 

the listing regulations of the concerned stock exchange(s).


9(1) The company shall obtain a certificate from a practicing Professional Accountant or Secretary 
(Chartered Accountant or Cost and Management Accountant or Chartered Secretary) other 
than its statutory auditors or audit firm on yearly basis regarding compliance of conditions of 
Corporate Governance Code of the Commission and shall such certificate shall be disclosed 
in the Annual Report.



Recommended the 
professional for due 
appointment by the 
shareholders in 44th 

AGM

9(2) The professional who will provide the certificate on compliance of this Corporate Governance 
Code shall be appointed by the shareholders in the annual general meeting.



Status of             
Compliance will be 
published with the 

Director’s Report as 
required.

9(3) The directors of the company shall state, in accordance with the Annexure-C attached, in the 
directors’ report whether the company has complied with these conditions or not.



Complied
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mshyw³-I

Avw_©K weeiYxi Dci cÖwZ‡e`b :

Avw_©K weeiYxmg~n †Kv¤úvwbi Avw_©K Ae ’̄v, cwiPvjb djvdj, †kqvi‡nvìvi‡`i Znwej cwieZ©b I bM` 

cÖevn Gi mwVK I wbLyuZ wPÎ Dc ’̄vcb K‡i‡Q|

AvBbvbyhvqx h_vh_ wnmv‡ei eB msi¶Y Kiv n‡q‡Q|

Avw_©K weeiYx cÖYq‡b h_vh_ wnmve bxwZgvjv AbymiY Kiv n‡q‡Q Ges wnmv‡ei cÖv°jb wgZe¨wq I 

b¨vqmsMZ wQj|

AvšÍ©RvwZK wnmve gvbmg~n (AvBGGm) I AvšÍ©RvwZK Avw_©K cÖwZ‡e`b gvb (AvBGdAviGm) AbymiY 

K‡i Avw_©K weeiYxmg~n cÖ ‘̄Z Kiv n‡q‡Q|

Af¨šÍixY wbqš¿Y e¨e ’̄v DËgiƒ‡c cÖYqb, Kvh©Kifv‡e cÖ‡qvM I Z`viKx Kiv n‡q‡Q|

‡Kv¤úvwb Pjgvb cÖwZôvb wn‡m‡e we`¨gvb _vKvi wel‡q †Kvb †gŠwjK m‡›`n bvB|

cÖZ¨ÿ ev c‡ivÿfv‡e weivRgvb wbqš¿YKvix †kqvi‡nvìvi‡`i ¯̂v‡_© ev Zv‡`i Øviv msL¨vjNy 

†kqvi‡nvìvi‡`i Rb¨ ÿwZKi Kvh©µg n‡Z myiÿv cÖ`vb Kiv n‡q‡Q Ges Kvh©Ki cÖwZKvi cÖvwßi weavb 

ejeZ i‡q‡Q|

mshyw³-II

2018-2019 mv‡j AbywôZ †evW© mfvi msL v̈ I cwiPvjKe„‡›̀ i Dcw̄ ’wZ wb¤œiƒc :

cwiPvjKe„‡›`i bvg c`ex AbywôZ mfv Dcw ’̄wZ

Rbve †gvt AvKivg Avj nvmvb †Pqvig¨vb 02 02

Rbve †gvt mvgQzi ingvb †Pqvig¨vb 09 09

Rbve ksKi cÖmv` †`e

¯̂vaxb cwiPvjK 11 09

Rbve †gvt Ave ỳi iv¾vK

cwiPvjK 10 09

Rbve †gvt miIqvi Avjg

cwiPvjK 11

11

Rbve Avt Lv‡jK gwjøK

cwiPvjK 11 08

Rbve ‡gvt Aveyy BDmyd wgqv

cwiPvjK 11 11

Rbve †gvRv‡¤§j nK f~uBqv

†kqvi‡nvìvi cwiPvjK 11 10

Rbve mvBdzwÏb Avn‡g` f~uBqv

cwiPvjK

11 08

Rbve †gvt Ave ỳj Rwjj nvIjv`vi

¯̂vaxb cwiPvjK

03 03

Rbve †gvt gÄyiæj nvwdR

cwiPvjK

01 01

Rbve †gvt Kvgiæj nvmvb

e¨e ’̄vcbv cwiPvjK

02 02

Rbve wMqvm DwÏb AvbPvix 

e¨e ’̄vcbv cwiPvjK

09 09
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mshyw³-III

1| 30 Ryb, 2019 Zvwi‡L †kqvi‡nvwìs Gi wPÎ :

µwgK bs ‡kqvi‡nvìvi †kqvi msL¨v kZvsk gšÍe¨

(K) evsjv‡`k †c‡Uªvwjqvg K‡c©v‡ikb 6,63,46,774 60.08

(L) cÖwZôvb 3,10,72,221 28.14

(M) e¨w³ 1,30,05,605 11.78

11,04,24,600 100.00

2| cwiPvjK, cÖavb wbe©vnx Kg©KZ©v, †Kv¤úvwb mwPe, cÖavb A_©
Kg©KZ©v (wmGdI), Avf¨šÍixY wbix¶v cÖavb Ges Zv‡`i †cvl¨MY|

cwiPvjK:
Rbve ‡gvt mvgQyi ingvb - -

Rbve ksKi cÖmv` †`e - -

Rbve ‡gvt miIqvi Avjg - -

Rbve ‡gvt Aveyy BDmyd wgqv - -

Rbve Avt Lv‡jK gwjøK - -

Rbve †gvt gÄyiæj nvwdR - -

Rbve mvBdzwÏb Avn‡g` f~uBqv - -

Rbve †gvt Ave ỳj Rwjj nvIjv`vi - -

Rbve †gvRv‡¤§j nK f~uBqv - -

Rbve ‡gvt wMqvm DwÏb AvbPvix - -

cÖavb wbe©vnx Kg©KZ©v, Zvnvi †cvl¨ I AcÖvß eq¯‹ mšÍvb:
Rbve ‡gvt wMqvm DwÏb AvbPvix - -

‡Kv¤úvwb mwPe  Zvnvi †cvl¨ I AcÖvß eq¯‹ mšÍvb:
Rbve †gvt bvRgyj nK - -

wm&GdI Zvnvi †cvl¨ I AcÖvß eq¯‹ mšÍvb:
Rbve ‡gvt bvRgyj nK - -

Avf¨šÍixY wbix¶v cÖavb, Zvnvi †cvl¨ I AcÖvß eq¯‹ mšÍvb:

Rbve ‡gvnv¤§` Lmiæ AvRv` - -

3| wbe©vnxMY (cÖavb wbe©vnx Kg©KZ©v, cÖa

4| †kqvi‡nvìvi hvi 10% ev Z‡ZvwaK †fvUvwaKvi i‡q‡Q :
evsjv‡`k †c‡Uªvwjqvg K‡c©v‡ikb (wewcwm)

vb A_© Kg©KZ©v (wmGdI), †Kv¤úvwb mwPe,
Avf¨šÍixb wbix¶v cÖavb e¨ZxZ m‡e©v”P cuvP Rb †eZb‡fvMx Kg©KZ©v):
1.  Rbve †gvt AvBqye †nv‡mb - gnve¨e ’̄vcK (wecYb) - -
2.  Rbve KvRx gbRyi ingvb - gnve¨e ’̄vcK (cwiPvjb) - -
3.  Rbve †gvt Rwmg DwÏb - Dc-gnve¨e ’̄vcK (cwiPvjb) - -
4.  Rbve Avn‡g` byi - Dc-gnve¨e ’̄vcK (weµq) - -
5.  Rbve †gvt gvmy` Kwig - Dc-gnve¨e ’̄vcK (GBPAvi, GgAvBGm GÛ AvBwU) - -

hgybv A‡qj †Kv¤úvbx wjwg‡UW 

evsjv‡`k †c‡Uªvwjqvg K‡c©v‡ik‡bi

GKwU A½ cÖwZôvb|

6,63,46,774 60.08%
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¸iæZ¡c~Y© cwiPvjb I Avw_©K Z_¨vejx

weeiY 2018-2019 2017-2018 2016-2017 2015-2016 2014-2015

e¨emvwqK djvdj
c‡Y¨i n¨vÛwjs (j¶ †gwUªK Ub)

17.47 18.34 16.68 16.05 16.34

†c‡UªvwjqvgRvZ c‡Y¨i bxU Avq (j¶ UvKvq) 13,067.52 13,409.62 12,414.84 8,719.96 17,329.92

Ab¨vb¨ cwiPvjb Avq                      Ó 3,430.23 3,402.59 3,971.47 4,958.08 4,120.59

Ifvi †nWm/Dcwi LiP                    Ó 11,261.78 10,734.99 13,217.74 10,374.97 9,783.69

cwiPvjb gybvdv/(¶wZ)                    Ó 5,235.97 6,077.22 3,168.57 3,303.07 11,666.82

wewea Avq                                   Ó 27,170.12 32,845.32 28,194.35 24,079.64 19,903.98

bxU gybvdv/(ÿwZ)                          Ó 32,406.09 38,922.54 31,362.92 27,382.71 31,570.80

kªwgK‡`i gybvdvq Askx`vwiZ¡ Znwej Ó 1,620.30 1,946.13 1,568.15 1,369.14 1,578.54

mn‡hvMx cÖwZôv‡bi Av‡qi Ask (Ki cieZx©)  ÕÕ 232.55 173.98 -- -- --

AvqKi c~e© gybvdv/(ÿwZ)                   Ó 31,018.34 37,150.39 29,794.77 26,013.57 29,992.26

AvqKi eve` eivÏ              Ó 7,622.54 9,043.03 7,368.66 6,423.36 7,460.38

AvqKi cieZx© gybvdv                     Ó 23,395.80 28,107.36 22,426.11 19,590.21 22,531.88

Avw_©K Z_¨vejx
cwi‡kvwaZ g~jab (j¶ UvKvq)

11,042.46 11,042.46 11,042.46 11,042.46 11,042.46

‡kqvi msL¨v       (j¶ ‡kqv‡i)

1,104.25 1,104.25 1,104.25 1,104.25 1,104.25

bxU cwim¤ú`/†kqvi‡nvìvi‡`i Znwej (j¶ UvKvq)

185,078.93 179,330.70 184,384.73 158,387.89 150,997.88

†kqvi cÖwZ bxU m¤ú` g~j¨ (UvKv)

167.61 162.40 166.98 143.44 136.74

†kqvi cÖwZ Avq (UvKv)

21.19 25.45 20.31 17.74 20.40

†kqvi cÖwZ jf¨vsk - bM` (UvKv)

- ÷K

13.00

-

13.00

-

11.00

-

10.00

-

10.00

-

PjwZ cwim¤ú` (j¶ UvKv)

394,025.61 429,013.76 440,086.82 339,438.10 283,599.61

PjwZ `vq   Ó 262,494.62 371,544.37 397,999.42 375,050.36 259,897.30

PjwZ AbycvZ 1.50 1.15 1.11 0.91 1.09

†kqvi‡nvìvi‡`i Znwe‡ji wecix‡Z cÖvwß (%) 12.64 15.67 14.16 12.97 18.94

‡gvU Rb m¤ú` (msL¨v)            507 522 533 540 559
Kg©KZ©v 123 131 134 125 130

kÖwgK I Kg©Pvix 384 391 399 415 429
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44th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
DIRECTORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

JAMUNA OIL COMPANY LIMITED

Bismillahir Rahmanir Rahim
Esteemed Shareholders,
Assalamu Alaikum Warahmatullahe Wabarakatuhu.

On behalf of the Board of Directors and on my behalf, I welcome all of you to the 44th Annual General        
Meeting of Jamuna Oil Company Limited. I extend a very warm felicitation and congratulation to you for 
attending this occasion.

This Annual Report & Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended  30th June, 2019  prepared in 
adherence to the provision of section 184 of the Companies Act 1994, Rule 12 of the Securities & Exchange 
Rules 1987 and International Accounting Standards (IAS) & International Financial Reporting Standards 
(IFRS) are presented formally for your kind consideration and approval.

Business outlook :

Jamuna Oil Company Limited, a subsidiary of Bangladesh Petroleum Corporation, markets fuel i.e. petroleum 
products. The overall aim and purpose of the company is to ensure the supply of fuel oil, LPG, bitumen and 
lube oil at the doorstep of the people at a timely basis by good management and to carry out the marketing 
activities smoothly. The company has been making significant contributions to the overall economic progress 
and development of the country by continuous supply of petroleum oils, such as Octane, Petrol, Diesel, 
Furnace Oil, Kerosene, Jute Batching Oil and MTT in remote areas of the country at the price fixed by the 
government. The company is also marketing other products such as lube and grease, bitumen and LPG. 

Overall sales of the company's products during the year have decreased over the past year. The sale of Diesel 
and Furnace Oil will be subject to further challenges in the future, as the opportunity to import both Diesel and 
Furnace Oils into its own management of energy-based government/private power plants and to start using 
LNG for power generation. Demand and sales of Kerosene are diminishing day by day as the production of 
electricity in the country is increasing and new areas are brought under electricity. With the opening of the 
Lube and Grease, LPG and Bitumen business at the private level, the company is facing direct challenges in 
marketing products as the supply of these products increases at the private level and the price is being more 
competitive. With the introduction of Auto Gas, the demand for Petrol and Octane may decrease. However, all 
efforts to promote marketing of Lube Oil and other fuel oils through the company's well-established sales 
network and efficient human resources development are continuing. It is hoped that in the near future, the  
company will be able to generate optimum returns from all sectors, in addition to playing a leading role in the 
sale of Lube & Grease, Bitumen and LPG along with all types of fuel oil.
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From the above table it is noteworthy that the sales of petroleum products of the company during the financial 
year 2018-2019 was 17,46,639 M. Tons which is overall 87,320 M. Tons or 4.76% less. Total marketed 
products of the company for the financial year 2018-2019, contains 17,25,261 (98.78%) M. Tons and other 
products are 21,378 (1.22%) M. Tons. Of the marketed petroleum oils, the main Diesel is 13,33,375 (76.34%) 
M. Tons and followed by Furnace Oil with 1,75,137 (10.03%) M. Tons. Besides, marketing shares of other 
products are Kerosene 2.49%, Petrol 5.65%, Octane 4.07%, Jute Batching Oil 0.20%, Bitumin 0.71%, Lube & 
Grease 0.25% and LPG 0.26% respectively. Information on the sale of the mentioned petroleum products is 
also displayed through the pie chart below:

From the comparison of the above mentioned sales, it is seen that sales of Petrol, Octane, Bitumen and LPG 
increased by 11.38%, 16.13%, 11.99% and 18.61% respectively over the previous year. Sales of Petrol and 
Octane have increased significantly due to government restrictions on the sale of Octane and Petrol illegally by 
various fractionation plants. Besides, sales of Bitumen and LPG have increased as a result of normal marketing 
activities. On the other hand SKO sale decreased by 10.84% compared to previous year because of increase of 
production of electricity and enhancement of electricity network i.e. electrification of new areas of the country. 
Diesel sales have declined by 2.98% due to decrease of demand resulting from use of LNG by the power 
plants. Sales of Furnace Oil have decreased by 26.6% in the financial year from 2018-2019 years due to the 
decrease in demand for Furnace Oil at Government / Private level power plants. In addition, the decline or 
increase in sales of other products was normal.

Marketing activates: 

The Statement of product marketed by the company during the year 2018-19 and the comparison with the  
previous year:

Particulars 2018-2019 2017-2018 Gain/(Loss) %
M. Ton M. Ton M. Ton

HOBC (Octane) 71,112 61,234 9,878 16.13
MS (Petrol) 98,665 88,584 10,081 11.38
SKO (Kerosene) 43,427 48,706 (5,279) (10.84)
HSD (Diesel) 13,33,375 13,74,315 (40,940) (2.98)
FO (Furnace Oil) 175,137 2,36,866 (61,729) (26.06)
JBO (Jute Batching Oil) 3,545 4,832 (1,287) (26.63)
MTT (Mineral Turpentine) - 14 (14) (100)
Total Petroleum oil 17,25,261 18,14,551 (89,290) (4.92)
Lube & Grease 4,354 4,437 (83) (1.87)
Bitumen 12,410 11,081 1,329 11.99
LPG 4,614 3,890 724 18.61
Total Other Product 21,378 19,408 1970 10.15
Grand Total 17,46,639 18,33,959 (87,320) (4.76)

PRODUCT WISE SALE IN THE YEAR 2018-2019
HOBC (Octane) 
MS (Petrol) 
SKO (Kerosene) 
HSD (Diesel) 
FO (Furnace Oil) 
JBO (Jute Batching Oil) 
MTT (Mineral Turpentine)
Lube & Grease
Bitumen 
LPG 
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Operating income decreased in the financial year 2018-2019 compared to previous year as a result of decrease 
in sales volume as well as decrase in markating margin.The total expenditure in the fiscal year 2018-2019 
increased by Tk 5.27 crores or 4.91% over the previous year. Expenses have increased due to inflation and 
other normal causes. Due to the reduction of operating income and the increase in expenditure, the profitability 
of the financial year has decreased by Tk 8.41 crore or 13.84% over the previous year. Other income decreased 
by Tk 56.75 crore in the year 2018-2019  as compared to 2017-2018 and as a result of this reduction, the net 
profit before provision for workers profit participition and wellfare fund for the year 2018-2019 has decreased 
by Tk 65.16 crore or 16.74% over the previous year. It should be noted that the annual results did not differ          
significantly with the quarterly financial results in the year under review.

The Pre-tax Net Profit for the year excluding the allocation of 5% for workers profit participition and wellfare 
fund and adding to the profit of associate company Omera Fuels Limited arrived at Tk.310.18 crores. Net Profit 
after Tax considering provision for income tax arrived at Tk.233.96 crores which is Tk 47.12 crore or 16.76% 
less than the previous year. Similarly, the Earnings Per Share (EPS) arrived at Tk 21.19 in the year 2018-2019 
which is Tk 4.26 less than last year's Tk.25.45. On June 30, 2019 the company's Net Assets Value (NAV) per 
share rose to Tk 167.61, which is Tk 5.21 or  3.21% higher than previous years NAV of Tk.162.40 on June 30, 
2018. 

Important Information regarding financial results : Figure in Taka

Particulars 2018-2019 2017-2018 Incr./(Decr.) Incr./(Decr.)
Rate (%)

Total Operating Income 164,97,74,552.00 168,12,21,260.00 (3,14,46,708.00) (1.87)
Total Cost 112,61,77,811.00 107,34,99,199.00 5,26,78,612.00 4.91
Operating Profit 52,35,96,741.00 60,77,22,061.00 (8,41,25,320.00) (13.84)
Others Income 271,70,12,074.00 328,45,31,471.00 (56,75,19,397.00) (17.28)
Net Profit 324,06,08,815.00 389,22,53,532.00 (65,16,44,717.00) (16.74)
Provision for Workers’ Profit participation (5%) 16,20,30,441.00 19,46,12,677.00 (3,25,82,236.00) (16.74)
Associate company’s profit  2,32,54,873.00 173,98,431.00 58,56,442.00 33.66
Profit before Income Tax 310,18,33,247.00 371,50,39,286.00 (61,32,06,039.00) (16.51)
Provision for Income Tax 76,22,53,619.00 90,43,03,185.00 (14,20,49,566.00) (15.71)
Profit after Income Tax 233,95,79,628.00 281,07,36,101.00 (47,11,56,473.00) (16.76)
Earnings Per Share 21.19 25.45 (4.26) (16.74)
Net Asset 18,507,893,043.00 1793,30,70,240.00 57,48,22,803.00 3.21
Net Asset Per Share 167.61 162.40 5.21 3.21

PROFIT BEFORE TAX AND PROFIT AFTER TAX FOR LAST 5 YEARS

Profit before Tax
Profit After Tax

2014-15
299.92
225.32

2015-16
260.13
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2016-17
297.95
224.26

2017-18
371.50
281.07
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Transactions with related parties:

Transactions with related parties of Jamuna Oil Company Limited have been stated in the notes no. 2.10 and 
34 to the audited financial statements for the year 2018-2019 enclosed herewith.

Investment:

Investment in Associate Company:

Jamuna Oil Company Limited signed a JV Agreement with Mobil South Asia Investments Limited with regard 
to formation of Mobil Jamuna Fuels Limited (MJFL) on 26 July, 1998 and attained partnership in the            
company. Jamuna Oil Company Limited invested a total tune of Tk. 8.77 Crore against 25% share in the 
company. Subsequently Mobil Jamuna Fuels Limited (MJFL) has been renamed as Omera Fuels Limited 
(OFL). The company (JOCL) has 25% ownership in Omera Fuels Limited (OFL) against investment of Tk. 
8.77 Crore as 87,70,000 shares of Tk. 10.00 each. As per the proportional claim of a 25% stake in Omera Fuels 
Limited in the year under discussion, an investment of Tk.10.00 crore has been made for 50,00,000 shares of 
Tk 20 (with a premium of Tk 10) each. At the end of the year under review, total investment by the company 
in Omera Fuels Limited was Tk 18,33,45,533 (Notes to the Audited Accounts no: 5.3).

Investment in Omera Fuels Limited (OFL) has been accounted for under Equity Accounting Method in the 
year 2018-2019 under review considering OFL as associated company as Jamuna Oil Company Limited has 
25% stake in OFL and participates in management decision making process. Omera Fuels Limited (OFL) 
earned net profit after tax of Tk.9,30,19,490.00 for the year ended on 30th June 2019 and hence 25% profit i.e. 
Tk.2,32,54,873.00  has been included with the profit of this company. Net Asset Value (NAV) of each share 
of OFL was Tk. 69.94 each as per audited financial accounts ended on 30th June, 2019. It is expected that 
JOCL will earn more profit from Omera Fuels Limited (OFL) in future. 

Investment in Shares :

Jamuna Oil Company Limited signed a JV Agreement with Mobil South Asia Investments Limited with regard 
to formation of Mobil Jamuna Lubricants Limited (MJLL) on 26 July, 1998 and attained partnership in the 
company. Jamuna Oil Company Limited invested a total tune of Tk. 8.77 Crore against 25% shares in the 
company. Subsequently the company has been renamed as MJL Bangladesh Ltd. MJL Bangladesh Limited 
issued an IPO valued at Tk. 40.00 (forty) crore and was listed on the Dhaka and Chittagong Stock Exchange 
on September 2011. The shareholding position of the company at MJL Bangladesh Limited fell to 19.45% 
after the issue of shares of Tk. 40.00 (Tk.4,00,00,000 shares at a price of Tk.10 each) crore.

MJL Bangladesh Limited started commercial production on 08 May, 2003. Since inception to 30 June, 2019 
JOCL earned cash dividend of Tk. 13,296.03 Lakh and 5,28,21,900 nos. bonus shares from MJL Bangladesh 
Ltd. On June 30, 2019 the total number of shares, including bonus shares, owned by the Jamuna Oil Company, 
stood at 6,16,21,900 shares of Tk. 10.00 each with a total market value of Tk.5,54,59,71,000.00 (market value 
of Tk.90.00 each as on 30-06-2019). MJL Bangladesh Limited approved 45% cash and 5% stock dividend for 
the financial year ended June 30, 2018. According to the declared dividends, the company has earned Tk. 
26,40,93,858.00 as cash dividend and 29,34,376 bonus shares as stock dividends in the financial year 
2018-2019. In addition, MJL Bangladesh Limited has announced a cash dividend of 45% for the financial year 
ending June 30, 2019. From this, the company will earn Tk. 27,72,98,550.00 as cash dividend in the financial 
year 2019-2020.
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Share Capital Structure of the Company TAKA

Authorized Capital:
30,00,00,000 ordinary shares of Tk. 10 each 3,00,00,00,000.00
Paid-Up Capital:
11,04,24,600 Ordinary Shares of Tk. 10 each 1,104,246,000.00

Classification of Shareholders :

Particulars
Shareholding position as on 30 June 2019

No. of 
Shareholders No. of Share %

a) Bangladesh Petroleum Corporation 1 66,346,774 60.08
b) Institutions (Financial & Others) 291 31,072,221 28.14

Local 279 29,562,021 26.77
Foreign 12 1,510,200 1.37

c) Individuals 8,612 13,005,605 11.78
Local 8,543 12,909,001 11.69
Non-Resident Bangladeshi 55 63,928 0.06
Foreign 14 32,676 0.03

Total : 8,904 110,424,600 100

SHAREHOLDING POSITION AS ON 30 JUNE 2019

Bangladesh Petroleum Corporation 60.08%

Institutions (Local) 26.77%

Institutions (Foreign) 1.37%

Individuals (Local) 11.69%

Individuals (NRB) 0.03%

Individuals (Foreign) 0.06%

Financial Results & Appropriation:

a) Financial results:

b) Recommendation for appropriation:

Particular 2018-2019
130% Cash Dividend on share capital of Tk.110,42,46,000.00 143,55,19,800.00
Undistributed balance carried forward 117,57,63,790.00
Total = 261,12,83,590.00

Particular 2018-2019
Net Profit before Income Tax 310,18,33,247.00
Provision for Income Tax 76,22,53,619.00
Net Profit after Income Tax 233,95,79,628.00
Balance of undistributed profit of the previous year 27,17,03,962.00
Profit available for distribution 261,12,83,590.00



50
2018-2019

Dividend:

Reviewing the interests of honourable shareholders, current year's activities, future plans and capital expendi-
tures, the Board of Directors recommended a cash dividend of 130% per share for the financial year 2018-2019 
that is Tk.13.00 per share.  The payment of dividend will require Tk.143,55,19,800.00 in the year 2019-2020. 
The Company has not declared any stock dividend as an interim dividend and will not declare in the future.

Payments to the Government Exchequer:

Item wise statement of contribution to government exchequer for the year 2018-2019 and 2017-2018 is as 
under: 

During the year 2018-2019, the company deposited a total of Tk. 9,461.42 lakh in government exchequer as 
Value Added Tax (VAT), Income Tax and others. In the last 2017-2018 financial year the amount was Tk 
8,660.40 lakh, which means that Taka 801.02 lakh has been deposited more in the National Treasury this year 
compared to last year.

Taka in Lakh

Financial yearCash Bonus

150%

100%

50%

0%

100% 100% 110% 130%

2014-15 2015-16 2017-182016-17 2018-19 (Proposed)

130%

DIVIDEND PER SHARE IN LAST 5 YEARS

Financial Year 2018-2019 2017-2018
Value Added Tax 710.11 563.07
Income Tax 8,532.18 7,910.65
Others 219.13 186.68
Total 9,461.42 8,660.40

VAT Income TaxOthersFinancial Year Total

PAYMENT OT THE NATIONAL EXCHEQUER
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employees participated in various training and workshops in the country and abroad. In this regard, the officials 
of Japan Co-operation Centre, Petroleum (JCCP), Bangladesh Petroleum Institute, Industrial Relations           
Education (IRI) and a2i Program of the Hon'ble Prime Minister's Office made special contributions.

Environment Protection and welfare activities :
To protect the environment, trees have been planted at the company's main installations and depots. This year, 
various entertainment programs like picnic, sports, cultural events etc. have been organized. The company 
observes various national days sincerely. On the other hand, prizes were distributed among the children of the 
employees for good academic results to encourage them to do even better in future. Company authorities have 
always been vigilant to ensure that river pollution or any other type of environmental pollution does not occur 
as a result of fuel oil transport activities and has ensured infrastructural facilities. 

Explanation Pertaining to Audit Report :
Joint external auditors put observations on 4 (four) nos. matters in their audit report for the year ended on 30th 
June 2019. The Board of Directors clarifications on the observations are given below for kind information of 
the shareholder.

1) To settle outstanding dues of Bangladesh                
Petroleum Corporation the Company encashed FDR 
with various banks prior to maturity incurring Loss of 
Interest to the tune of Tk. 171,481,506. The principal 
amount of FDR (encashed) was Tk. 2,100,000,000. 
Out of total loss of Tk. 171,481,506 an amount of Tk. 
4,129,452 was accounted for as accrued interest 
during the year 2016-2017 and Tk. 75,625,000 during 
2017-2018. Balance Tk.91,727,054 On account of 
2018-2019 has not been taken into account. In         
consequence of such premature encashment          
Company’s retained earnings was overstated during 
aforestated previous years by the amount of loss of 
interest income. (Note-5.2)

2) The Company’s Trade Receivables are carried 
forward in the statement of financial position amount-
ing to Tk. 1,722,013,356. Out of which Tk. 
134,578,955, Tk. 50,100,405 and Tk. 5,770,737 
remaining as receivable from Power Development 
Board, Bangladesh Chemical Industries Corporation 
and Chattogram City Corporation respectively since 
long time. The company made correspondences with 
parties to realise the outstanding balances but the 
amount are yet to be realized. (Note-8) 

Bangladesh Petroleum Corporation's dues on fuel oils are due to 
be repaid on an emergency basis within 15-03-2019 and, due to 
lack of sufficient status as SND, all outstanding payments of 
BPCs have been made on the due date by encashing the fixed 
deposits before expiry. In this regard, the auditor commented on 
the loss of interest.

Company’s joint auditors sent letters to various government and 
autonomous organizations to confirm balances lying on 30 
June, 2019 but the parties have not yet confirmed the balances. 
Balances with sundry debtors are stated below.

All efforts to realize the outstanding balances through BPC are 
continuing. By this time amounting Taka 72,71,88,248.00 Taka 
12,92,19,697.00 & Taka 35,36,07,669.00 have been realized 
from Bangladesh Railway, Chittagong Port Authority & 
Defense respectively. Now Taka 51,77,82,068.00 is

Name of Parties Amount (Taka)
Bangladesh Power Development Board- 13,45,78,955.00
Bangladesh Railway- 9,43,806,872.00
Bangladesh Chemical Industries Corpn.- 5,01,00,405.00
Defense- 39,93,36,412.00
Chittagong Port Authority - 12,92,19,697.00
Chattogram City Corporation- 57,70,737.00
Balaka Filing Station- 4,43,71,237.00
Coral Shipping Lines- 1,46,94,567.00
Others- 59,18,800.00
Total:  172,77,97,682.00
Less: Provision for doubtful debts- 57,84,326.00
Net Total:                                                   172,20,13,356.00

Observations of Joint External Auditors Clarification of Company Authority
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outstanding after deducting total realized amount of  taka 
121,00,15,614.00. Money suit is pending with Rangpur district 
judge court against amount of Taka 4,43,71,237.00 lying with 
Balaka filing Station and also a Case against Coral Shipping 
Lines is pending in the high court to recover amount lying with 
them. All efforts are continuing to recover the outstanding 
amounts

A detailed schedule of fixed assets of the company has been 
produced to the external auditors but they demanded compre-
hensive register of fixed assets of the company. The company 
maintains assets card along with detailed schedule of fixed 
assets. In future necessary actions will be taken as per advice of 
the external auditors.

3) Property, Plant and Equipment of Tk. 
174,25,16,415 has carried forward without              
maintaining any comprehensive records. We could 
not obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence 
relating to the location and existence of opening 
carrying amount of Property, Plant and Equipment. 
(Note-3.1)

Registration of land measuring 2.30 acres is delaying due to 
misprinting of Dag No in the gazette notification for acquisition 
of land. Necessary steps have been taken to complete                    
registration of the land by rectifying the Dag No in the gazette 
notification. The land is in the possession of the Company. 
Company owned land measuring 2.10 acres has been occupying 
and using by Chittagong Dry Dock Ltd. since long.                     
Subsequently 1.7116 acres (74,558 sft.) of land has been found 
by physical measurement occupied by the Chittagong Dry Dock 
Ltd. Chittagong Dry Dock Ltd. paid full rent up to the year 2000 
and partial rent for the period from 2001 to 2012 for using this 
land. The company communicated several times with Chittagong 
Dry Dock Ltd. to pay the outstanding rent and sign a lease 
agreement. Signing of lease agreements to settle the issue is 
under process. The remaining land measuring 0.3859 acres has 
been used by CDA for construction and extension of airport road 
and recovery of compensation from CDA is under process. 

4) The Company has total 59.9703 acres of freehold 
land valued at BDT. 2,78,49,084, out of which land  
measuring 2.30 acres are yet to be registered in the 
name of the company. Out of the freehold land, land 
measuring 1.7116 acres possessed by Chittagong Dry 
Dock Ltd and 0.3859 acres of land acquired by the 
Chittagong Development Authority for constructing 
Airport road without payment of compensation to the 
company. The company has no agreement with 
Chittagong Dry Dock Ltd for using possession 
although the company sent several reminders to 
Chittagong Dry Dock Ltd. to execute lease agreement 
or to return the possession of the land. Eventually, the 
Company is deprived economic benefit that could 
have been generated from said asset (Note-3.2). 

Audit Committee:
An audit committee was formed in accordance with the provisions of the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange 
Commission. The purpose of the formation of the Audit Committee is to develop the Company's internal 
financial control system and to inform the Board of Directors of the Company's updated financial information. 
Audit committee meetings were held to analyse the annual budget, quarterly and annual financial reports of the 
company, and such reports were presented by the audit committee to the company's board of directors. The 
Audit Committee has been given full authority to examine the financial and other matters of the Company. A 
total of 8 nos. meetings of the Audit Committee were held in this financial year. The meeting examines and 
reviews quarterly and annual final accounts, budgets and other matters. The audit committee report is included 
in the company's annual report.

Retirement and Nomination of Directors:
One third of the directors retire on the basis of seniority at the Annual General Meeting, in accordance with the 
rules of Articles 139, 140, 141 and 143 of this Company's Articles of Association. In this general meeting, Mr. 
Md. Samsur Rahman, Mr. Md. Sarwar Alam and Mr. Saifuddin Ahmed Bhuiyan will retire from the board of 
directors. Mr. Md.  Shamsur Rahman, Mr. Md. Sarwar Alam and Mr. Saifuddin Ahmed Bhuiyan are eligible 
for re-election, so they are proposed to be re-elected. 

According to Corporate Governance Code issued by Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission BSEC/C-
MR-RCD/2009-193/217/Admin/90 Date: May 21, 2019, the position of shareholder director of the company has 
been vacated. The Board of Directors is in the process of filling the vacant post of shareholder director.

Observations of Joint External Auditors Clarification of Company Authority
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Depot. In addition, consultants have been appointed to manage Tanker, Tank lorry and Tank wagon loading-un-
loading and product delivery management activities at the Main Installation / Depots in mechanized and 
automated systems. Construction of the oil installation at Mongla, under the supervision of BPC, has been 
completed and the company has spent one-third of the cost.

At present the following development Project/Works are in progress:

 

The Board of Directors hope that company’s business activities and income will increase remarkably after 
implementation of development projects in progress and future plans, especially Jamuna Bhaban, Dhaka.

Description Cost
Jamuna Office Bhaban  construction project,  Dhaka  (2nd phase-3rd to 20th floor) 12,383.00
Construction of storage tank with capacity of 6750 M. Tons at Main Installation, Chattogram, 759.16
Renovation of storage tank with capacity of 8000 M. Tons at Main Installation, Chattogram, 160.00
The design, drawing and estimation of fireworks for modernization of the fire extinguisher at Main Installation, Chattogram, 34.99
Construction of generator room at Main Installation, main electrical switch and operator sitting room renovation work 58.99
Jetty Renovation work at Fatulla Depot 181.81
Construction and renovation of the boundary wall at Fatulla Depot 29.17
Renovation of old office building at Daulatpur Depot 45.18
Fire hydration type firefighting system design, engineering, supply, installation, testing and commissioning 
work at Daulatpur depot.

186.84

Installation of new 100 KVA diesel generator at Chandpur depot 19.90
Construction of Retaining Wall Cum Boundary Wall at Chandpur Depot 24.62
Construction of boundary wall at Chandpur depot. 27.24
Reconstruction of Jetty at Barishal Depot 195.86
Construction of Internal Road at Barishal Depot 81.65
Renovation of Jetty & construction of approach road at Baghabari Depot 33.30
Boundary wall construction and renovation work on newly leased land at Bhairab Bazar Depot 44.95
Installation of 100 KVA diesel generator at Bhairab Bazar Depot. 19.95
Installation of Semi Buried Horizontal Steel Storage Tank at Parbatipur Depot (For 1st Class Petroleum 
Octane storage)

36.67

lakh Taka.

Future planning:
Installation of Six model petrol pumps on the occasion of the birth anniversary of Father of the Nation   
Bangabandhu Sheikh Mujibur Rahman.
Construction of a storage tank with capacity of 13000 M.Tons tons at Main Installation to increase storage 
Capacity.
Construction of a storage tank with capacity 7000 M.Tons tons at Fatulla Depot to increase storage capacity.
Construction of dolphin oil/RCC Pucca jetty in place of pontoon jetty/LJ-3 at Main Installation, Potenga, 
Chattogram to increase operational capacity.
Undertaking development projects for the management of mechanized and automated systems at Main 
Installation /Depots at tanker, tank lory and tank wagon loading-unloading and product delivery management 
activities.
Implementation of financially viable projects on unused land at various places owned by the company.
Construction of Depots by the river Sitolokshya at Rupgonj and at Potuakhali near paira port. 
Construction of permanent depot instead of Shachnabazar barge depot in Sunamganj.
Construction of a full depot at a convenient location in Jhalakathi district by purchasing land instead of barge 
depot in Jhalakathi.
Undertaking a project to set up a fully new depot at Bhairab Bazar.
Automation of all regional offices/ depot fuel oil management, sales and accounting activities of the         
company. 
Modernization of firefighting facilities at Main Installations and Depots.
Taking up development projects to utilize advanced information technology in the daily activities of the 
company.
Establish and control modern security technology with all major depots to strengthen monitoring activities.
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JAMUNA OIL COMPANY LIMITED
REPORT ON COMPLIANCE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE UNDER CONDITION NO. 9

Status of compliance with the conditions imposed by the Commission’s Notification No.BSEC/CMR-
RCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80, dated 3 June 2018 issued under section 2CC of the Securities and Exchange 
Ordinance, 1969 is as follows:

Title

Compliance status 
(Put in the 

appropriate column)
Complied Not 

complied
1 BOARD OF DIRECTORS

1(1)
Size of the Board of Directors :

Remarks
(if any)

Co
nd

iti
on

 N
o.

The total number of members of a company’s Board of Directors (hereinafter referred to as 
“Board”) shall not be less than 5 (five) and more than 20 (twenty).

The JOCL Board is 
comprised of 10 
(Ten) Directors.

1(2)

1(2) (a)

Independent Directors





All companies shall have effective representation of independent directors on their Boards, so 
that the Board, as a group, includes core competencies considered relevant in the context of 
each company; for this purpose, the companies shall comply with the following:-

At least one-fifth (1/5) of the total number of directors in the company’s Board shall be 
independent directors; any fraction shall be considered to the next integer or whole number 
for calculating number of independent director(s);

1(2)(b) For the purpose of this clause “independent director” means a director -

There are two 
Independent Director 

in JOCL Board.

1(2)(b)(i) 
who either does not hold any share in the company or holds less than one percent (1%) shares 
of the total paid-up shares of the company;

The Independent
Directors have declared 

their compliances.

The Independent 
Directors have 
declared their 
compliances.

1(2)(b) (ii)



who is not a sponsor of the company or is not connected with the company’s any sponsor or 
director or nominated director or shareholder of the company or any of its associates, sister 
concerns, subsidiaries and parents or holding entities who holds one percent (1%) or more 
shares of the total paid-up shares of the company on the basis of family relationship and his 
or her family members also shall not hold above mentioned shares in the company: Provided 
that spouse, son, daughter, father, mother, brother, sister, son-in-law and daughter-in-law 
shall be considered as family members;

Do

1(2)(b) (iii) 
who has not been an executive of the company in immediately preceding 2 (two) financial 
years;

Do

1(2)(b) (iv) 
who does not have any other relationship, whether pecuniary or otherwise, with the company 
or its subsidiary or associated companies;

Do

1(2)(b) (v) 
who is not a member or TREC (Trading Right Entitlement Certificate) holder, director or 
officer of any stock exchange;

Do

1(2)(b) (vi) 
who is not a shareholder, director excepting independent director or officer of any member or 
TREC holder of stock exchange or an intermediary of the capital market;

Do

Do

1(2)(b) (vii) 
who is not a partner or an executive or was not a partner or an executive during the preceding 
3 (three) years of the concerned company’s statutory audit firm or audit firm engaged in 
internal audit services or audit firm conducting special audit or professional certifying 
compliance of this Code;

1(2)(b) (viii) who is not independent director in more than 5 (five) listed companies;

Do1(2)(b) (ix) who has not been convicted by a court of competent jurisdiction as a defaulter in payment of 
any loan or any advance to a bank or a Non-Bank Financial Institution (NBFI); and

Do

Do

No vacancy occurred.

1(2)(b) (x) who has not been convicted for a criminal offence involving moral turpitude;

1(2)(c) The independent director(s) shall be appointed by the Board and approved by the shareholders 
in the Annual General Meeting (AGM);

1(2)(d) The post of independent director(s) cannot remain vacant for more than 90 (ninety) days; and

1(2)(e)



The tenure of office of an independent director shall be for a period of 3 (three) years, which 
may be extended for 1 (one) tenure only: 
Provided that a former independent director may be considered for reappointment for another 
tenure after a time gap of one tenure, i.e., three years from his or her completion of                 
consecutive two tenures [i.e. six years]: 
Provided further that the independent director shall not be subject to retirement by rotation as 
per the †Kv¤úvbx AvBb, 1994 (1994 m‡bi 18 bs AvBb)(Companies Act, 1994).
Explanation: For the purpose of counting tenure or term of independent director, any partial 
term of tenure shall be deemed to be a full tenure.

Annexure-C
[As per condition No.1(5)(xxvii)]
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N/A

N/A

Title

Compliance status 
(Put in the 

appropriate column)
Complied Not 

complied
1(3) Qualification of Independent Director.-
1(3)(a)

Remarks
(if any)

Co
nd

iti
on

 N
o.

Independent director shall be a knowledgeable individual with integrity who is able to ensure 
compliance with financial laws, regulatory requirements and corporate laws and can make 
meaningful contribution to the business;

The qualifications and 
background of Independent 

Director’s justify their 
abilities as such.

No such event occurred 
during the reporting period. 

1(3)(b)(i) Business Leader who is or was a promoter or director of an unlisted company having 
minimum paid-up capital of Tk. 100.00 million or any listed company or a member of any 
national or international chamber of commerce or business association; or

1(3)(b)(ii) Corporate Leader who is or was a top level executive not lower than Chief Executive Officer 
or Managing Director or Deputy Managing Director or Chief Financial Officer or Head of 
Finance or Accounts or Company Secretary or Head of Internal Audit and Compliance or 
Head of Legal Service or a candidate with equivalent position of an unlisted company having 
minimum paid-up capital of Tk. 100.00 million or of a listed company; or
Explanation: Top level executive includes Managing Director (MD) or Chief Executive 
Officer (CEO), Additional or Deputy Managing Director (AMD or DMD), Chief Operating 
Officer (COO), Chief Financial Officer (CFO), Company Secretary (CS), Head of Internal 
Audit and Compliance (HIAC), Head of Administration and Human Resources or equivalent 
positions and same level or ranked or salaried officials of the company. 





1(3)(b)(iii) Former official of government or statutory or autonomous or regulatory body in the position 
not below 5th Grade of the national pay scale, who has at least educational background of 
bachelor degree in economics or commerce or business or Law; or



1(3)(b)(iv) University Teacher who has educational background in Economics or Commerce or Business 
Studies or Law; or 

1(3)(b)(v) Professional who is or was an advocate practicing at least in the High Court Division of 
Bangladesh Supreme Court or a Chartered Accountant or Cost and Management Accountant 
or Chartered Financial Analyst or Chartered Certified Accountant or Certified Public Account-
ant or Chartered Management Accountant or Chartered Secretary or equivalent qualification;



1(3)(c) The independent director shall have at least 10 (ten) years of experiences in any field 
mentioned in clause (b); 



1(3)(d) In special cases, the above qualifications or experiences may be relaxed subject to prior 
approval of the Commission.

1(4)(a) The positions of the Chairperson of the Board and the Managing Director (MD) and/or Chief 
Executive Officer (CEO) of the company shall be filled by different individuals;

1(4)(b) The Managing Director (MD) and/or Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of a listed company shall 
not hold the same position in another listed company;

1(4)(c) The Chairperson of the Board shall be elected from among the non-executive directors of the 
company;

1(4)(d) The Board shall clearly define respective roles and responsibilities of the Chairperson and the 
Managing Director and/or Chief Executive Officer;


1(4)(e) In the absence of the Chairperson of the Board, the remaining members may elect one of 

themselves from nonexecutive directors as Chairperson for that particular Board’s meeting; 
the reason of absence of the regular Chairperson shall be duly recorded in the minutes.

1(5)(i) An industry outlook and possible future developments in the industry;

1(5)(ii) The segment-wise or product-wise performance;

1(5)(iii) Risks and concerns including internal and external risk factors, threat to sustainability and 
negative impact on environment, if any;

1(5)(iv) A discussion on Cost of Goods sold, Gross Profit Margin and Net Profit Margin, where 
applicable;

1(5)(v) A discussion on continuity of any extraordinary activities and their implications (gain or loss);

A statement of all related 
party transaction is disclosed 
under  Notes to the Financial 

Statements no. 34

1(5)(vi) A detailed discussion on related party transactions along with a statement showing amount, 
nature of related party, nature of transactions and basis of transactions of all related party 
transactions;

1(5) The Board of the company shall include the following additional statements or disclosures in the Directors’ Report prepared under section 
184 of the Companies Act, 1994 (Act No. XVIII of 1994):-

1(3)(b) Independent director shall have following qualifications:

1(4) Duality of Chairperson of the Board of Directors and Managing Director or Chief Executive Officer.-

The Directors’ Report to Shareholders
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Disclosed under  Notes 
to the Financial 

Statements no. 30

No Significant 
doubts have 

occurred.

No Shareholders 
holding ten percent 

(10%) or more votes 
interest.

N/A

N/A

Title

Compliance status 
(Put in the 

appropriate column)
Complied Not 

complied
1(5)(vii)

Remarks
(if any)

Co
nd

iti
on

 N
o.

A statement of utilization of proceeds raised through public issues, rights issues and/or any 
other instruments;

N/A1(5)(viii) An explanation if the financial results deteriorate after the company goes for Initial Public 
Offering (IPO), Repeat Public Offering (RPO), Rights Share Offer, Direct Listing, etc.;

1(5)(ix) An explanation on any significant variance that occurs between Quarterly Financial 
performances and Annual Financial Statements; 

1(5)(x) A statement of remuneration paid to the directors including independent directors; 

1(5)(xi) A statement that the financial statements prepared by the management of the issuer company 
present fairly its state of affairs, the result of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity; 

1(5)(xii) A statement that proper books of account of the issuer company have been maintained; 
1(5)(xiii) A statement that appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation 

of the financial statements and that the accounting estimates are based on reasonable and 
prudent judgment;



1(5)(xiv) A statement that International Accounting Standards (IAS) or International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRS), as applicable in Bangladesh, have been followed in preparation 
of the financial statements and any departure there from has been adequately disclosed;



1(5)(xv) A statement that the system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively 
implemented and monitored; 

1(5)(xvi) A statement that minority shareholders have been protected from abusive actions by, or in the 
interest of, controlling shareholders acting either directly or indirectly and have effective 
means of redress;



1(5)(xvii) A statement that there is no significant doubt upon the issuer company’s ability to continue as 
a going concern, if the issuer company is not considered to be a going concern, the fact along 
with reasons there of shall be disclosed;

1(5)(xviii) An explanation that significant deviations from the last year’s operating results of the issuer 
company shall be highlighted and the reasons thereof shall be explained; 

1(5)(xix) A statement where key operating and financial data of at least preceding 5 (five) years shall be 
summarized; 



1(5)(xx) An explanation on the reasons if the issuer company has not declared dividend (cash or stock) 
for the year;

1(5)(xxi) Board’s statement to the effect that no bonus share or stock dividend has been or shall be 
declared as interim dividend;

1(5)(xxii) The total number of Board meetings held during the year and attendance by each director;

1(5)(xxiii)(a) Parent or Subsidiary or Associated Companies and other related parties (name-wise details);

1(5)(xxiii)(b) Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary, Chief Financial Officer, Head of 
Internal Audit and Compliance and their spouses and minor children (name-wise details);

1(5)(xxiii)(c) Executives; and

1(5)(xxiii)(d) Shareholders holding ten percent (10%) or more voting interest in the company (name-wise 
details);
Explanation: For the purpose of this clause, the expression “executive” means top 5 (five) 
salaried employees of the company, other than the Directors, Chief Executive Officer, 
Company Secretary, Chief Financial Officer and Head of Internal Audit and Compliance.

1(5)(xxiv)(a) a brief resume of the director;

1(5)(xxiv)(b) nature of his or her expertise in specific functional areas; and

1(5)(xxiv)(c) names of companies in which the person also holds the directorship and the membership of 
committees of the Board;

1(5)(xxv)(a) accounting policies and estimation for preparation of financial statements;

1(5)(xxv)(b) changes in accounting policies and estimation, if any, clearly describing the effect on financial 
performance or results and financial position as well as cash flows in absolute figure for such 
changes;

1(5)(xxv) A Management’s Discussion and Analysis signed by CEO or MD presenting detailed analysis of the company’s position and 
operations along with a brief discussion of changes in the financial statements, among others, focusing on

1(5)(xxiv) In case of the appointment or reappointment of a director, a disclosure on the following information to the shareholders:-

1(5)(xxiii) A report on the pattern of shareholding disclosing the aggregate number of shares (along with name-wise details where stated 
below) held by:-
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The company has laid down 
a detailed Code of Conduct.

Title

Compliance status 
(Put in the 

appropriate column)
Complied Not 

complied
1(5)(xxv)(c)

Remarks
(if any)

Co
nd

iti
on

 N
o.

comparative analysis (including effects of inflation) of financial performance or results and 
financial position as well as cash flows for current financial year with immediate preceding 
five years explaining reasons thereof;



1(5)(xxv)(d) compare such financial performance or results and financial position as well as cash flows 
with the peer industry scenario; 

1(5)(xxv)(e) briefly explain the financial and economic scenario of the country and the globe; 
1(5)(xxv)(f) risks and concerns issues related to the financial statements, explaining such risk and concerns 

mitigation plan of the company; and 
1(5)(xxv)(g) future plan or projection or forecast for company’s operation, performance and financial 

position, with justification thereof, i.e., actual position shall be explained to the shareholders 
in the next AGM;



1(5)(xxvi) Declaration or certification by the CEO and the CFO to the Board as required under condition 
No. 3(3) shall be disclosed as per Annexure-A; and 

1(5)(xxvii) The report as well as certificate regarding compliance of conditions of this Code as required 
under condition No. 9 shall be disclosed as per Annexure-B and Annexure-C.

1(7)(a) The Board shall lay down a code of conduct, based on the recommendation of the Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee (NRC) at condition No. 6, for the Chairperson of the Board, 
other board members and Chief Executive Officer of the company;

JOCL does not have any 
subsidiary company.

2(a) Provisions relating to the composition of the Board of the holding company shall be made 
applicable to the composition of the Board of the subsidiary company;

2(b) At least 1 (one) independent director on the Board of the holding company shall be a director 
on the Board of the subsidiary company;

1(7)(b) The code of conduct as determined by the NRC shall be posted on the website of the company 
including, among others, prudent conduct and behavior; confidentiality; conflict of interest; 
compliance with laws, rules and regulations; prohibition of insider trading; relationship with 
environment, employees, customers and suppliers; and independency.


1(6) Meetings of the Board of Directors

The company shall conduct its Board meetings and record the minutes of the meetings as well 
as keep required books and records in line with the provisions of the relevant Bangladesh 
Secretarial Standards (BSS) as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Secretaries of 
Bangladesh (ICSB) in so far as those standards are not inconsistent with any condition of this 
Code.









1(7) Code of Conduct for the Chairperson, other Board members and Chief Executive Officer

2. Governance of Board of Directors of Subsidiary Company.-

3. Managing Director (MD) or Chief Executive Officer (CEO), Chief Financial Officer (CFO), Head of Internal Audit and Compliance 
(HIAC) and Company Secretary (CS).-

3(1) Appointment

N/A

2(c) The minutes of the Board meeting of the subsidiary company shall be placed for review at the 
following Board meeting of the holding company;

N/A

2(d) The minutes of the respective Board meeting of the holding company shall state that they have 
reviewed the affairs of the subsidiary company also;

N/A

2(e) The Audit Committee of the holding company shall also review the financial statements, in 
particular the investments made by the subsidiary company.

3(1)(a) The Board shall appoint a Managing Director (MD) or Chief Executive Officer (CEO), a 
Company Secretary (CS), a Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and a Head of Internal Audit and 
Compliance (HIAC);

3(1)(b) The positions of the Managing Director (MD) or Chief Executive Officer (CEO), Company 
Secretary (CS), Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and Head of Internal Audit and Compliance 
(HIAC) shall be filled by different individuals;

3(1)(c) The MD or CEO, CS, CFO and HIAC of a listed company shall not hold any executive 
position in any other company at the same time;

3(1)(d) The Board shall clearly define respective roles, responsibilities and duties of the CFO, the 
HIAC and the CS;

3(1)(e) The MD or CEO, CS, CFO and HIAC shall not be removed from their position without 
approval of the Board as well as immediate dissemination to the Commission and stock 
exchange(s).

3(2) Requirement to attend Board of Directors’ Meetings
The MD or CEO, CS, CFO and HIAC of the company shall attend the meetings of the Board:
Provided that the CS, CFO and/or the HIAC shall not attend such part of a meeting of the 
Board which involves consideration of an agenda item relating to their personal matters.

N/A
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Title

Compliance status 
(Put in the 

appropriate column)
Complied Not 

complied

3(3)(a)

Remarks
(if any)

Co
nd

iti
on

 N
o.

The MD or CEO and CFO shall certify to the Board that they have reviewed financial 
statements for the year and that to the best of their knowledge and belief: 

3(3)(a)(i) These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or 
contain statements that might be misleading; and 

3(3)(a)(ii) These statements together present a true and fair view of the company’s affairs and are in 
compliance with existing accounting standards and applicable laws; 

3(3)(b) The MD or CEO and CFO shall also certify that there are, to the best of knowledge and belief, 
no transactions entered into by the company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or in 
violation of the code of conduct for the company’s Board or its members;



3(3)(c) The certification of the MD or CEO and CFO shall be disclosed in the Annual Report

4(i) Audit Committee; and 



5(1)(a) The company shall have an Audit Committee as a subcommittee of the Board; 
5(1)(b) The Audit Committee shall assist the Board in ensuring that the financial statements reflect 

true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and in ensuring a good monitoring 
system within the business;

5(1)(c) The Audit Committee shall be responsible to the Board; the duties of the Audit Committee 
shall be clearly set forth in writing.





5(2)(a) The Audit Committee shall be composed of at least 3 (three) members;

5(2)(b) The Board shall appoint members of the Audit Committee who shall be non-executive 
directors of the company excepting Chairperson of the Board and shall include at least 1 (one) 
independent director;





5(2)(c) All members of the audit committee should be “financially literate” and at least 1 (one) 
member shall have accounting or related financial management background and 10 (ten) years 
of such experience;
Explanation: The term “financially literate” means the ability to read and understand the 
financial statements like statement of financial position, statement of comprehensive income, 
statement of changes in equity and cash flows statement and a person will be considered to 
have accounting or related financial management expertise if he or she possesses professional 
qualification or Accounting or Finance graduate with at least 10 (ten) years of corporate 
management or professional experiences.



5(2)(d) When the term of service of any Committee member expires or there is any circumstance 
causing any Committee member to be unable to hold office before expiration of the term of 
service, thus making the number of the Committee members to be lower than the prescribed 
number of 3 (three) persons, the Board shall appoint the new Committee member to fill up the 
vacancy immediately or not later than 1 (one) month from the date of vacancy in the Commit-
tee to ensure continuity of the performance of work of the Audit Committee;



5(2)(e) The company secretary shall act as the secretary of the Committee; 
5(2)(f) The quorum of the Audit Committee meeting shall not constitute without at least 1 (one) 

independent director.


5(3)(a) The Board shall select 1 (one) member of the Audit Committee to be Chairperson of the Audit 
Committee, who shall be an independent director;

5(4)(a) The Audit Committee shall conduct at least its four meetings in a financial year: 
Provided that any emergency meeting in addition to regular meeting may be convened at the 
request of any one of the members of the Committee;


5(3)(b) In the absence of the Chairperson of the Audit Committee, the remaining members may elect 

one of themselves as Chairperson for that particular meeting, in that case there shall be no 
problem of constituting a quorum as required under condition No. 5(4)(b) and the reason of 
absence of the regular Chairperson shall be duly recorded in the minutes.



5(3)(c) Chairperson of the Audit Committee shall remain present in the Annual General 
Meeting (AGM): 
Provided that in absence of Chairperson of the Audit Committee, any other member from the 
Audit Committee shall be selected to be present in the annual general meeting (AGM) and 
reason for absence of the Chairperson of the Audit Committee shall be recorded in the 
minutes of the AGM.






4(ii) Nomination and Remuneration Committee. 

4. Board of Directors’ Committee.-
For ensuring good governance in the company, the Board shall have at least following sub-committees:

5. Audit Committee.-
5(1) Responsibility to the Board of Directors.

5(2) Constitution of the Audit Committee

5(3) Chairperson of the Audit Committee

5(4) Meeting of the Audit Committee

The board have 
appointed members 
in due time and no 
vacancy occurred.

3(3) Duties of Managing Director (MD) or Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and Chief Financial Officer (CFO)
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No such incident 
took place

No such matter to 
report on.

Title

Compliance status 
(Put in the 

appropriate column)
Complied Not 

complied
5(4)(b)

Remarks
(if any)

Co
nd

iti
on

 N
o.

The quorum of the meeting of the Audit Committee shall be constituted in presence of either 
two members or two-third of the members of the Audit Committee, whichever is higher, 
where presence of an independent director is a must.



5(5)(a) Oversee the financial reporting process; 
5(5)(b) monitor choice of accounting policies and principles; 
5(5)(c) Monitor Internal Audit and Compliance process to ensure that it is adequately resourced, 

including approval of the Internal Audit and Compliance Plan and review of the Internal 
Audit and Compliance Report;



5(5)(d) Oversee hiring and performance of external auditors; 

5(5)(h) Review the adequacy of internal audit function; 
5(5)(i) Review the Management’s Discussion and Analysis before disclosing in the Annual Report; 
5(5)(j) Review statement of all related party transactions submitted by the management; 
5(5)(k) Review Management Letters or Letter of Internal Control weakness issued by statutory 

auditors;

5(6)(a)(i) The Audit Committee shall report on its activities to the Board.

5(6)(a)(ii)(a) Report on conflicts of interests;


5(5)(l) Oversee the determination of audit fees based on scope and magnitude, level of expertise 

deployed and time required for effective audit and evaluate the performance of external 
auditors; and



5(5)(m) Oversee whether the proceeds raised through Initial Public Offering (IPO) or Repeat Public 
Offering (RPO) or Rights Share Offer have been utilized as per the purposes stated in relevant 
offer document or prospectus approved by the Commission: 
Provided that the management shall disclose to the Audit Committee about the uses or 
applications of the proceeds by major category (capital expenditure, sales and marketing 
expenses, working capital, etc.), on a quarterly basis, as a part of their quarterly declaration of 
financial results: 
Provided further that on an annual basis, the company shall prepare a statement of the 
proceeds utilized for the purposes other than those stated in the offer document or prospectus 
for publication in the Annual Report along with the comments of the Audit Committee.



5(5)(e) Hold meeting with the external or statutory auditors for review of the annual financial 
statements before submission to the Board for approval or adoption;


5(5)(f) Review along with the management, the annual financial statements before submission to the 

Board for approval;


5(5)(g) Review along with the management, the quarterly and half yearly financial statements before 
submission to the Board for approval;



5(5) Role of Audit Committee
The Audit Committee shall:-

5(6) Reporting of the Audit Committee

5(6)(b) Reporting to the Authorities:

5(7) Reporting to the Shareholders and General Investors

6. Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC).-
6(1) Responsibility to the Board of Directors

5(6)(a) Reporting to the Board of Directors

5(6)(a)(ii) The Audit Committee shall immediately report to the Board on the following findings, if any:-
N/A

5(6)(a)(ii)(b) Suspected or presumed fraud or irregularity or material defect identified in the internal audit 
and compliance process or in the financial statements;

N/A

5(6)(a)(ii)(c) suspected infringement of laws, regulatory compliances including securities related laws, 
rules and regulations; and

N/A

5(6)(a)(ii)(d) any other matter which the Audit Committee deems necessary shall be disclosed to the Board 
immediately;

6(1)(a) The company shall have a Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) as a sub-  
committee of the Board;

If the Audit Committee has reported to the Board about anything which has material impact 
on the financial condition and results of operation and has discussed with the Board and the 
management that any rectification is necessary and if the Audit Committee finds that such 
rectification has been unreasonably ignored, the Audit Committee shall report such finding to 
the Commission, upon reporting of such matters to the Board for three times or completion of 
a period of 6 (six) months from the date of first reporting to the Board, whichever is earlier.

Report on activities carried out by the Audit Committee, including any report made to the 
Board under condition No. 5(6)(a)(ii) above during the year, shall be signed by the             
Chairperson of the Audit Committee and disclosed in the annual report of the issuer company.

N/A

N/A

Under process
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(Put in the 

appropriate column)
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complied
6(1)(b)
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(if any)
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iti
on

 N
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The NRC shall assist the Board in formulation of the nomination criteria or policy for 
determining qualifications, positive attributes, experiences and independence of directors and 
top level executive as well as a policy for formal process of considering remuneration of 
directors, top level executive;

Under process

6(1)(c) The Terms of Reference (ToR) of the NRC shall be clearly set forth in writing covering the 
areas stated at the condition No. 6(5)(b).

6(2)(a) The Committee shall comprise of at least three members including an independent director;
6(2)(b) All members of the Committee shall be non-executive directors;
6(2)(c) Members of the Committee shall be nominated and appointed by the Board;

Under process

Under process
Under process
Under process

6(2)(d) The Board shall have authority to remove and appoint any member of the Committee; Under process
6(2)(e) In case of death, resignation, disqualification, or removal of any member of the Committee or 

in any other cases of vacancies, the board shall fill the vacancy within 180 (one hundred 
eighty) days of occurring such vacancy in the Committee;

Under process

6(2)(f) The Chairperson of the Committee may appoint or co-opt any external expert and/or 
member(s) of staff to the Committee as advisor who shall be non-voting member, if the 
Chairperson feels that advice or suggestion from such external expert and/or member(s) of 
staff shall be required or valuable for the Committee;

Under process

6(2)(g) The company secretary shall act as the secretary of the Committee; Under process
6(2)(h) The quorum of the NRC meeting shall not constitute without attendance of at least an 

independent director;
Under process

6(2)(i) No member of the NRC shall receive, either directly or indirectly, any remuneration for any 
advisory or consultancy role or otherwise, other than Director’s fees or honorarium from the 
company.

Under process

6(3)(a) The Board shall select 1 (one) member of the NRC to be Chairperson of the Committee, who 
shall be an independent director;

6(4)(a) The NRC shall conduct at least one meeting in a financial year;

Under process

6(3)(b) In the absence of the Chairperson of the NRC, the remaining members may elect one of 
themselves as Chairperson for that particular meeting, the reason of absence of the regular 
Chairperson shall be duly recorded in the minutes;

Under process

6(3)(c) The Chairperson of the NRC shall attend the annual general meeting (AGM) to answer the 
queries of the shareholders:
Provided that in absence of Chairperson of the NRC, any other member from the NRC shall 
be selected to be present in the annual general meeting (AGM) for answering the sharehold-
er’s queries and reason for absence of the Chairperson of the NRC shall be recorded in the 
minutes of the AGM.

Under process

Under process
6(4)(b) The Chairperson of the NRC may convene any emergency meeting upon request by any 

member of the NRC;
Under process

6(4)(c) The quorum of the meeting of the NRC shall be constituted in presence of either two members 
or two third of the members of the Committee, whichever is higher, where presence of an 
independent director is must as required under condition No. 6(2)(h);

Under process

6(4)(d) The proceedings of each meeting of the NRC shall duly be recorded in the minutes and such 
minutes shall be confirmed in the next meeting of the NRC

Under process

6(5)(a) NRC shall be independent and responsible or accountable to the Board and to the                 
shareholders;

Under process

6(5)(b) NRC shall oversee, among others, the following matters and make report with recommenda-
tion to the Board:

Under process

6(5)(b)(i) formulating the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of 
a director and recommend a policy to the Board, relating to the remuneration of the directors, 
top level executive, considering the following:

6(5)(b)(i)(a) the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and 
motivate suitable directors to run the company successfully;

Under process

Under process

6(5)(b)(i)(b) the relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance 
benchmarks; and

Under process

6(5)(b)(i)(c) remuneration to directors, top level executive involves a balance between fixed and incentive 
pay reflecting short and long-term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the 
company and its goals;

Under process

6(5)(b)(ii) devising a policy on Board’s diversity taking into consideration age, gender, experience, 
ethnicity, educational background and nationality;

Under process

6(2) Constitution of the NRC

6(3) Chairperson of the NRC

6(4) Meeting of the NRC

6(5) Role of the NRC
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The Statutory Auditor has 
declared their compliances.

Proper certification 
has been obtained 
from M/s. Shafiq 

Basak & Co. 
Chartered Account-
ants for the period 
from 1st July, 2018 
to  30th June, 2019

Title

Compliance status 
(Put in the 

appropriate column)
Complied Not 

complied
6(5)(b)(iii)

Remarks
(if any)
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 N
o.

identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in top 
level executive position in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend their 
appointment and removal to the Board;

Under process

6(5)(b)(v) identifying the company’s needs for employees at different levels and determine their 
selection, transfer or replacement and promotion criteria; and

Under process

6(5)(b)(vi) developing, recommending and reviewing annually the company’s human resources and 
training policies;

Under process

6(5)(c) The company shall disclose the nomination and remuneration policy and the evaluation 
criteria and activities of NRC during the year at a glance in its annual report.

7(1) The issuer company shall not engage its external or statutory auditors to perform the following services of the company, namely:-

Under process

6(5)(b)(iv) formulating the criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors and the Board;

7(1)(i) appraisal or valuation services or fairness opinions;

7(1)(ii) financial information systems design and implementation;

Under process

7. External or Statutory Auditors.

8. Maintaining a website by the Company.-

9. Reporting and Compliance of Corporate Governance.-

Do

7(1)(iii) book-keeping or other services related to the accounting records or financial statements; Do

7(1)(iv) broker-dealer services; Do

7(1)(v) actuarial services; Do

7(1)(vi) internal audit services or special audit services; Do
7(1)(vii) any service that the Audit Committee determines; Do

7(1)(viii) audit or certification services on compliance of corporate governance as required under 
condition No. 9(1); and

Do

7(1)(ix) any other service that creates conflict of interest. Do

7(2) No partner or employees of the external audit firms shall possess any share of the company 
they audit at least during the tenure of their audit assignment of that company; his or her 
family members also shall not hold any shares in the said company: 
Provided that spouse, son, daughter, father, mother, brother, sister, son-in-law and 
daughter-in-law shall be considered as family members.

Do

7(3) Representative of external or statutory auditors shall remain present in the Shareholders’ 
Meeting (Annual General Meeting or Extraordinary General Meeting) to answer the queries 
of the shareholders.

Do















8(1) The company shall have an official website linked with the website of the stock exchange. 
8(2) The company shall keep the website functional from the date of listing. 
8(3) The company shall make available the detailed disclosures on its website as required under 

the listing regulations of the concerned stock exchange(s).


9(1) The company shall obtain a certificate from a practicing Professional Accountant or Secretary 
(Chartered Accountant or Cost and Management Accountant or Chartered Secretary) other 
than its statutory auditors or audit firm on yearly basis regarding compliance of conditions of 
Corporate Governance Code of the Commission and shall such certificate shall be disclosed 
in the Annual Report.



Recommended the 
professional for due 
appointment by the 
shareholders in 44th 

AGM

9(2) The professional who will provide the certificate on compliance of this Corporate Governance 
Code shall be appointed by the shareholders in the annual general meeting.



Status of             
Compliance will be 
published with the 

Director’s Report as 
required.

9(3) The directors of the company shall state, in accordance with the Annexure-C attached, in the 
directors’ report whether the company has complied with these conditions or not.



Complied
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ANNEXURE–I :

Compliances about Financial Statements

The financial statements of the company present a true and fair view of the company’s state of affairs, 
result of its operations, changes in equity and cash flows.

Proper books of accounts as required by law have been maintained.

Appropriate accounting policies have been followed in formulating the financial statements and 
accounting estimates were reasonable and prudent.

The financial statements were prepared in accordance with International Accounting Standards (IAS) and 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

The Internal Control System is sound in design and effectively implemented and monitored. 

There are no significant doubts upon the company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Minority shareholders have been protected from abusive action by or in the interest of controlling 
shareholders acting either directly or indirectly and have effective means of redress. 

ANNEXURE–II :

The number of board meeting and the attendance of Directors during the year 2018-2019were as follows: 

Name of Directors Position Meeting held Attended
Mr. Md. Akram Al Hossain Chairman 02 02
Mr. Md. Shamsur Rahman Chairman 09 09

Mr. Shankar Prasad Dev Independent Director 11 09

Mr. Md. Abdur Razzaque Director 10 09
Mr. Md. Sarwar Alam Director 11 11

Mr. A. Khaleque Mullick Director 11 08
Mr. Md. Abu Yousuf Miah Director 11 11

Mr. Mozammel Haque Bhuiyan Shareholder Director 11 10

Mr. Saifuddin Ahmed Bhuiyan Director 11 08

Mr. Md. Abdul Jalil Howladar Independent Director 03 03

Mr. Md. Manjurul Hafiz Director 01 01

Mr. Md. Quamrul Hasan Managing Director 02 02

Mr. Md. Gias Uddin Ansary Managing Director 09 09
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ANNEXURE- III :

(i) Pattern of shareholding as on 30 June, 2019

Sl.No. Shares held by No. of share % Remarks

A. Bangladesh Petroleum Corporation 6,63,46,774 60.08  

B. Institutions 3,10,72,221 28.14

C. Individuals 1,30,05,605 11.78
11,04,24,600 100.00

(ii) Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary,
Chief Financial Officer (CFO), Head of Internal Audit
and their spouses:

Directors:
Mr. Md. Shamsur Rahman - -
Mr. Shankar Prasad Dev - -
Mr. Md. Sarwar Alam - -
Mr. Md. Abu Yousuf Miah - -
Mr. A. Khaleque Mullick - -
Mr. Md. Manjurul Hafiz - -
Mr. Saifuddin Ahmed Bhuiyan - -
Mr. Md. Abdul Jalil Howladar - -
Mr. Mozammel Haque Bhuiyan - -
Mr. Md. Gias Uddin Ansary - -
Chief Executive Officer and his spouses & minor children
Mr. Md. Gias Uddin Ansary - -
Company Secretary and his spouses & minor children
Mr. Md. Nazmul Hoque - -
CFO and their spouses & minor children
Mr. Md. Nazmul Hoque - -
Head of Internal Audit and his spouses & minor children
Mr. Mohammed Khasru Azad - -

(iii) Executive (Top five salaried person other then CEO,CFO,CS,HIA)
1. Mr. Md. Ayub Hossain GM (Marketing) - -
2. Mr. Q. M. Monzur Rahman GM (Operations) - -
3. Mr. Md. Jashim Uddin DGM (Operations) - -
4. Mr. Ahmed Noor DGM (Sales) - -
5. Mr. Md. Masud Karim DGM (HR, MIS & IT) - -

(iv) Shareholder having ten percent (10%) or more voting
interest in the company:

Bangladesh Petroleum Corporation (BPC) 6,63,46,774 60.08%

Jamuna Oil Company Ltd. is
a subsidiary company
of Bangladesh
Petroleum Corporation.
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ANNEXURE – IV :

IMPORTANT OPERATIONAL & FINANCIAL DATA

Particulars 2018-2019 2017-2018 2016-2017 2015-2016 2014-2015

CORPORATE OPERATIONAL RESULT

Product Handling : Quantity (Lac Metric Ton) 17.47 18.34 16.68 16.05 16.34
Net Earnings on Petroleum Products (Lac Tk.) 13,067.52 13,409.62 12,414.84 8,719.96 17,329.92
Other Operating Income                        ’’             3,430.23 3,402.59 3,971.47 4,958.08 4,120.59
Overheads/Expenses                             ’’ 11,261.78 10,734.99 13,217.74 10,374.97 9,783.69
Operating Profit/(Loss)                ’’ 5,235.97 6,077.22 3,168.57 3,303.07 11,666.82
Other Income                                       ’’ 27,170.12 32,845.32 28,194.35 24,079.64 19,903.98
Net Profit/(Loss) before WPP & WF         ’’ 32,406.09 38,922.54 31,362.92 27,382.71 31,570.80
Contribution to WPP & WF                     ’’ 1,620.30 1,946.13 1,568.15 1,369.14 1,578.54
Share of profit of associates (Net of tax)  ’’           232.55 173.98 -- -- --
Profit/(Loss) before Tax                         ’’ 31,018.34 37,150.39 29,794.77 26,013.57 29,992.26
Provision for Income Tax                       ’’ 7,622.54 9,043.03 7,368.66 6,423.36 7,460.38

Net Profit after Tax                               ’’ 23,395.80 28,107.36 22,426.11 19,590.21 22,531.88

KEY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Paid-up Capital         (Fig. in Lac Taka) 11,042.46 11,042.46 11,042.46 11,042.46 11,042.46
Number of Shares     (Fig. in Lac Shares) 1,104.25 1,104.25 1,104.25 1,104.25 1,104.25
Net Assets/Shareholders Fund  (Fig. in Lac Tk.) 185,078.93 179,330.70 184,384.73 158,387.89 150,997.88
Net Assets Per Share   (Taka) 167.61 162.40 166.98 143.44 136.74
Earning Per Share   (Taka) 21.19 25.45 20.31 17.74 20.40
Dividend Per Share – Cash   (Taka) 13.00 13.00 11.00 10.00 10.00

- Stock - - - - -
Current Assets           (Fig. in Lac Taka) 394,025.61 429,013.76 440,086.82 339,438.10 283,599.61

Current Liabilities       (Fig. in Lac Taka) 262,494.62 371,544.37 397,999.42 375,050.36 259,897.30

Current Ratio 1.50 1.15 1.11 0.91 1.09
Return on Shareholders’ Funds (%) 12.64 15.67 14.16 12.97 18.94

TOTAL HUMAN RESOURCES 507 522 533 540 559
Executive & Officers 123 131 134 125 130
Staff & Workers 384 391 399 415 429



68

evwl©K

2018-2019

wbg©vYvaxb hgybv feb

KvIivb evRvi, XvKv|

†Kv¤úvwbi cwiPvjbv cl©`

KZ…©K AbywôZ †evW© mfv|

hgybvi wgicyi¯’

†i÷ nvDm|



69

evwl©K

2018-2019

cwiPvjbv cl©‡`i

bewbhy³ cwiPvjK

Rbve †gvjøv wgRvbyi ingvb †K

eiY|

cwiPvjbv cl©‡`i

bewbhy³ cwiPvjK

Rbve †ivKb-Dj-nvmvb †K

eiY|

cwiPvjbv cl©‡`i

bewbhy³ cwiPvjK

Rbve †gvt gÄyiæj nvwdR †K

eiY|



70

evwl©K

2018-2019

43Zg evwl©K mvaviY mfvq

m¤§vwbZ cwiPvjKe„›`|

43Zg evwl©K mvaviY mfvq

Dcw¯’Z

†kqvi‡nvìvie„‡›`i GKvsk|

43Zg evwl©K mvaviY mfvq

†Pqvig¨vb g‡nv`q

e³e¨ ivL‡Qb|



71

evwl©K

2018-2019

43 Zg evwl©K mvaviY mfvq

Dcw¯’Z †kqvi‡nvìviM‡Yi

wbeÜb Kvh©µ‡gi GKvsk|

43 Zg evwl©K mvaviY mfvq

m¤§vwbZ †kqvi‡nvìvi

KZ…©K wm×všÍ MÖn‡Y

cÖ¯Íve I mg_©b|

43 Zg evwl©K mvaviY mfvq

m¤§vwbZ †kqvi‡nvìvie„›`

e³e¨ ivL‡Qb|



72

evwl©K

2018-2019

weRq w`e‡mi Abyôv‡b

gvbbxq wkÿv Dcgš¿x Rbve

gwneyj nvmvb †PŠayix Gg.wc Gi wbKU

n‡Z hgybv A‡qj †Kv¤úvbx wjwg‡UW

Gi c‡ÿ †µ÷ MÖnY Ki‡Qb †Kv¤úvwbi

wWwRGg (GBPAvi)

cÖ‡KŠkjx Rbve †gv: gvmy` Kwig|

evsjv‡`k †c‡Uªvwjqvg K‡c©v‡ikb

I hgybv A‡qj †Kv¤úvbx wjwg‡UW Gi

g‡a¨ evwl©K Kg©m¤úv`b Pzw³ (GwcG)

¯^vÿi Abyôvb|

hgybv A‡qj †Kv¤úvbx wjwg‡UW

KZ…©K Av‡qvwRZ

RvwZi RbK

e½eÜz †kL gywReyi ingvb Gi

44Zg kvnv`vZ evwl©Kx

Dcj‡ÿ wgjv` I †`vqv gvnwdj|



73
2018-2019

Value Added Statement
For the year ended 30 June 2019

 Taka in Lakh

 2018-2019 % 2017-2018 %
     
    
Value Added - Net Earning on Petroleum Products & Others 43,900.42 100.00 49,831.51 100.00

APPLICATIONS :    
Government Revenue & Taxes 7,885.06 17.96 9,271.69 18.61 
Salaries & Benefits to Employees 5,602.27 12.76 5,624.64 11.29
Administrative & Other Expenses 2,208.84 5.03 2,044.20 4.10
Financial Expenses 2,038.30 4.65 1,810.04 3.63
Workers Profit Participation & Welfare Fund 1,620.30 3.69 1,946.13 3.90
Dividend to Shareholders (Proposed) 14,355.20 32.70 14,355.20 28.81
Retained by The Company 10,190.45 23.21 14,779.61 29.66
 43,900.42 100.00 49,831.51 100.00

Value Added for The Year 2018-2019

Retained by the 
Company

Government Revenue & Tax

Dividend to 
Shareholders 
(Proposed)

Workers Profit Participation & Welfare Fund 

Salaries & Benefits to Employees

Administrative & Other Expenses

Financial Expenses

Value Added for The Year 2017-2018

Retained by the 
Company

Government Revenue & Tax

Dividend to 
Shareholders 
(Proposed) Workers Profit Participation & Welfare Fund 

Salaries & Benefits to Employees

Administrative & Other Expenses

Financial Expenses
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AUDIT COMMITTEE’S REPORT

An Audit Committee Comprising of the following members of the Board of Directors was formed in 
compliance with the Bangladesh Securities & Exchange Commission Notification No.            
BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated 3 June, 2018 :-

Members of the Audit Committee
Mr. Shankar Prasad Dev, Independent Director -------  Chairman
Mr. Md. Monjurul Hafiz, Director   -------  Member
Mr. Md. Rokon-Ul-Hasan, Director   -------  Member
Mr. Md. Nazmul Hoque, Company Secretary -------  Secretary

The purpose of the Audit Committee is to ensure and to improve the adequacy of internal control 
system and provide the update information to the Board of Directors. The committee is empowered 
to examine the matter relating to the financial and other affairs of the Company.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee cover all matters specified under clause-5(5) of the 
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission Notification dated 03 June 2018, which also 
includes the following :-

(a) Oversee the financial reporting process;
(b) monitor choice of accounting policies and principles;
(c) monitor Internal Audit and Compliance process to ensure that it is adequately resourced,            

including approval of the Internal Audit and Compliance Plan and review of the Internal Audit 
and Compliance Report;

(d) oversee hiring and performance of external auditors;
(e) hold meeting with the external of statutory auditors for review of the annual financial               

statements before submission to the Board for approval or adoption;
(f) review along with the management, the annual financial statements before submission to the 

Board for approval;
(g) review along with the management, the quarterly and half yearly financial statements before 

submission to the Board of approval;
(h) review the adequacy of internal audit function.
(i) review the Management’s discussion and analysis before disclosing in the Annual Report;
(j) review statement of all related party transactions submitted by the management;
(k) review Management Letters of Letter of Internal Control weakness issued by statutory                

auditors;
(l) oversee the determination of audit fees based on scope and magnitude, level of expertise 

deployed and time required for effective audit and evalute the performance of external               
auditors; and

The Audit Committee carried out their responsibilities as per the above BSEC’s Notification and 
submitted their report to the Board of Directors.

(Shankar Prasad Dev)
Chairman

Audit Committee
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Jamuna Oil Company Limited
Statement of Financial Position

As at  30 June 2019
30 June 2019 30 June 2018

ASSETS Taka Taka
NON CURRENT ASSETS

Property, Plant & Equipment 3 948,870,607 805,413,280
Capital Work-in-Progress 4 199,063,496 147,307,041
Long Term Investment 5 5,545,971,000 12,740,028,676
Investment in Associate 5.3 183,345,533 60,090,660

6,877,250,636 13,752,839,657
CURRENT ASSETS

Short Term Investment 6 14,451,521,043 7,684,595,962
Inventories 7 10,594,828,067 10,297,476,066
Accounts & Other Receivable 8 2,106,979,128 2,448,234,406
Advances, Deposits & Pre-payments 9 4,345,765,079 5,490,674,048
Cash and Cash Equivalents 10 7,903,467,533 16,980,395,148

39,402,560,850 42,901,375,630

TOTAL ASSETS 46,279,811,486 56,654,215,287
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Share Capital 11 1,104,246,000 1,104,246,000
Capital Reserve 12 152,833,103 152,833,103
General Reserve 13 10,000,000,000 10,000,000,000
Fair Value Gain On Investment 4,639,530,350 4,968,767,375
Retained Earnings 2,611,283,590 1,707,223,762

TOTAL EQUITY 18,507,893,043 17,933,070,240

NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
Provision for Gratuity 14 863,750,437 857,076,990
Deferred Tax Liability 15 658,706,191 709,630,973

1,522,456,628 1,566,707,963
CURRENT LIABILITIES

Creditors & Accruals 16 23,768,500,831 33,414,219,225
Creditors For Other Finance 17 339,444,096 434,132,242
Income Tax Payable 18 2,108,859,107 3,277,635,152
Unclaimed Dividend 19 32,657,781 28,450,465

26,249,461,815 37,154,437,084

TOTAL LIABILITIES 27,771,918,443 38,721,145,047

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 46,279,811,486 56,654,215,287

Contingent Liabilities, Assets and Commitments 35

Net Assets Value (NAV) Per Share 26 167.61 162.40

and were signed on its behalf by :

Signed in terms of our separate report of even date annexed

Note(s)

These financial statements should be read in conjunction with the annexed notes
and were approved by the Board of Directors on 13 November 2019

Chattogram,                                Ahmed Zaker  & Co.                                  Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co.
                                                 Chartered Accountants                                      Chartered Accountants

Company Secretary                        Managing Director                           Director                                 Chairman

Dated : 14 Nov 2019
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Jamuna Oil Company Limited
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 30 June 2019

30 June 2019 30 June 2018
Taka Taka

Net Earnings on Petroleum Products     20 1,306,751,345 1,340,962,092
Other Operating Income 21 343,023,207 340,259,168
Total Income 1,649,774,552 1,681,221,260

Expenses

Administrative, Selling and Distribution Expenses 22 (807,363,218) (789,749,677)
Financial Expenses 23 (203,829,593) (181,004,309)
Depreciation 3.1 (114,985,000) (102,745,213)

(1,126,177,811) (1,073,499,199)
Operating Profit / (Loss) 523,596,741 607,722,061

Other Income 24 2,717,012,074 3,284,531,471
Net Profit 3,240,608,815 3,892,253,532

Contribution to Workers' Profit Participation and
Welfare Fund @ 5% of Net Profit (162,030,441) (194,612,677)

23,254,873 17,398,431
Profit before Income Tax 3,101,833,247 3,715,039,286

Income Tax (Expenses) / Benefits:

Current 18 (755,077,750) (919,968,204)
Deferred 15 (7,175,869) 15,665,019

(762,253,619) (904,303,185)
Profit after Income Tax 2,339,579,628 2,810,736,101
Other Comprehensive Income

Unrealized Gains/(Loss) on Available-for-Sale 
Financial Assets 5.1 (387,337,676) (1,179,619,232)
Deferred Tax on Un-Realized Gain/ Loss 58,100,651 176,942,885
Total Comprehensive Income 2,010,342,603 1,808,059,754

Earnings Per Share (EPS) 25 21.19 25.45

Signed in terms of our separate report of even date annexed

These financial statements should be read in conjunction with the annexed notes
and were approved by the Board of Directors on 13 November 2019

and were signed on its behalf by :

Note(s)

Share of Profit of Associates (Net Off Tax)

Chattogram,                                Ahmed Zaker  & Co.                                  Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co.
                                                 Chartered Accountants                                      Chartered Accountants

Company Secretary                        Managing Director                           Director                                 Chairman

Dated : 14 Nov 2019
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Jamuna Oil Company Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Share
Capital         Capital Reserve  General

Reserve  

Fair Value
Gain on

Investment 
(Restated)

Retained
Earnings Total

Taka Taka Taka Taka Taka Taka

Balance as on 01 July 2018 1,104,246,000 152,833,103 10,000,000,000 4,968,767,375 1,707,223,762 17,933,070,240

Final Cash Dividend for 2018 - - - - (1,435,519,800) (1,435,519,800)

Other Comprehensive Income - - - (387,337,676) - (387,337,676)

Net Profit for the Year - - - - 2,339,579,628 2,339,579,628

Transferred to General Reserve - - - - - -

Deferred Tax on Un-Realized Gain - - - 58,100,651 - 58,100,651

Transferred to General Reserve - - - - - -

- - - (329,237,025) 904,059,828 574,822,803

Balance as at 30 June 2019 1,104,246,000 152,833,103 10,000,000,000 4,639,530,350 2,611,283,590 18,507,893,043

Balance as on 01 July 2017 1,104,246,000 152,833,103 8,660,000,000 7,025,227,909 1,496,166,032 18,438,473,044

Final Cash Dividend for 2017 - - - - (1,214,670,600) (1,214,670,600)

Other Comprehensive Income - - - (1,179,619,233) - (1,179,619,233)

Net Profit for the Year - - - - 2,810,736,101 2,810,736,101
Prior Period Adjustment (Deferred 
tax on unrealized gain) - - - (1,053,784,186) - (1,053,784,186)

Deferred Tax on Un-Realized loss - - - 176,942,885 - 176,942,885

Transferred to General Reserve - - 1,340,000,000 - (1,340,000,000) -

Prior Period Adjustment (Associate) - - - - (45,007,771) (45,007,771)

- - 1,340,000,000 (2,056,460,534) 211,057,730 (505,402,804)

Balance as at 30 June 2018 1,104,246,000 152,833,103 10,000,000,000 4,968,767,375 1,707,223,762 17,933,070,240

and were approved by the Board of Directors on 13 November 2019
and were signed on its behalf by :

Particulars

These financial statements should be read in conjunction with the annexed notes

Signed in terms of our separate report of even date annexed

Chattogram,                                Ahmed Zaker  & Co.                                  Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co.
                                                 Chartered Accountants                                      Chartered Accountants

Company Secretary                        Managing Director                           Director                                 Chairman

Dated : 14 Nov 2019
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Jamuna Oil Company Limited
Statement Of Cash Flows

For the year ended 30 June 2019

30 June 2019 30 June 2018
Taka Taka

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Collection from Sales & Other Income 129,749,223,479 134,926,679,935
Payment for Cost and Other Expenses                    (139,052,525,346) (139,788,421,516)
Bank Charges (3,183,979) (4,137,494)
Income Tax Paid (853,281,085) (791,065,295)
Cash Inflow/(Outflow) from Operating Activities (A) (10,159,766,931) (5,656,944,370)

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition of Property, Plant & Equipment (75,779,115) (48,468,332)
Capital Work-in-Progress (234,489,304) (121,590,251)
Investment in Fixed Deposit Receipt 39,794,919 5,423,485,320
Interest on Fixed Deposit 1,633,894,600 1,122,386,888
Interest on SND 1,081,055,351 1,608,548,206
Dividend Receipt 264,093,858 264,093,858

(100,000,000) -
Proceed from sale of Property, Plant & Equipment 269,637 261,677
Cash Inflow/(Outflow) from Investing Activities (B) 2,608,839,946 8,248,717,366

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Dividend paid (1,431,312,484) (1,212,473,135)
Creditors For Other Finance (94,688,146) 1,420,135
Cash Inflow/(Outflow) from Financing Activities (C) (1,526,000,630) (1,211,053,000)

(9,076,927,615) 1,380,719,996

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 16,980,395,148 15,599,675,152
- -

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 7,903,467,533 16,980,395,148

Net Operating Cash Flow Per Share 27 (92.01) (51.23)

Unrealized Gain or Loss on Foreign Currency Transaction

These financial statements should be read in conjunction with the annexed notes
and were approved by the Board of Directors on 13 November 2019

and were signed on its behalf by :

Note(s)

Investment in OFL (Right Share)

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents for the 
Year (A+B+C)

Signed in terms of our separate report of even date annexed

Chattogram,                                Ahmed Zaker  & Co.                                  Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co.
                                                 Chartered Accountants                                      Chartered Accountants

Company Secretary                        Managing Director                           Director                                 Chairman

Dated : 14 Nov 2019
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30 June 2019 30 June 2018
Taka Taka

3 PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT

A. Cost
Opening Balance 1,742,516,415 1,629,139,129

Addition during the year 258,511,964 114,177,286
2,001,028,379 1,743,316,415

Deletion during the year (3,203,803) (800,000)
Closing Balance (A) 1,997,824,576 1,742,516,415

B. Accumulated Depreciation
Opening Balance 937,103,135 835,157,921

Depreciation Charged during the year 114,985,000 102,745,213
1,052,088,135 937,903,134

Adjusted during the year (3,134,166) (799,999)
Closing Balance (B) 1,048,953,969 937,103,135

Written Down Value  (WDV) [A-B]        948,870,607         805,413,280
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30 June 2019 30 June 2018
Taka Taka

Opening Balance 147,307,041 91,425,744
Expenditure incurred during the year - note 4.1 234,489,304 121,590,251

381,796,345 213,015,995
Capitalized during the year - note 4.1 (182,732,849) (65,708,954)

Closing Balance 199,063,496 147,307,041

4.1 The break up of Capital Work-in-Progress - note 4

i) Chattogram Terminal:
Chattogram Terminal Office Building 66,850,859 24,472,758 91,323,617 -

2,015,008 917,105 2,932,113 -
Construction of Internal Road 1,654,000 7,171,695 8,825,695 -
Construction & Renovation of  Boundary Wall 3,660,130 3,722,516 7,382,646 -
Construction of Security Post 1,412,952 291,366 1,704,318 -
Renovation of Fire Pond 2,165,475 4,658,154 6,823,629 -
Renovation of Storage Tank No. 04 22,239,669 14,581,175 36,820,844 -
Construction of Oil Storage Tank 15,837,489 8,202,500 - 24,039,989

- 1,997,344 - 1,997,344
ii) Chattogram Office:

- 545,936 - 545,936
iii) Dhaka Liaison Office:

10,122,756 126,525,981 - 136,648,737

- 7,192,350 - 7,192,350
iv) Rongpur Depot:

Construction of 3.96 Lac Ltr Storage Tank 8,050,646 592,895 8,643,541 -
v) Daulatpur Depot:

- 8,596,782 8,596,782 -
vi) Fatullah Depot:

Renovation of Jetty 12,242,860 - - 12,242,860
vii) Baghabari Depot:

Construction of Ansar Barrak - 984,392 984,392 -
Renovation of Officer's Quarter as Office Building - 1,779,077 1,779,077 -
Renovation of Tank Lorry Parking Terminal - 3,102,866 3,102,866 -
Construction of Hard Standing & Security Post - 1,433,679 1,433,679 -

viii) Barisal Depot:
Reconstraction of Jetty - 7,661,350 - 7,661,350

ix) Sylhet Depot:
49,500 8,015,430 - 8,064,930

Installation of Deep Tube Well 92,000 - - 92,000
x) Chandpur  Depot:

405,702 603,255 1,008,957 -

507,995 862,698 1,370,693 -
Construction & Renovation of Boundary Wall - 578,000 - 578,000

147,307,041 234,489,304 182,732,849 199,063,496
91,425,744 121,590,251 65,708,954 147,307,041

Particulars     
 At 

01 July 
2018 

 At 
30 June 

2019 

 Capitalized 
during the 

year 

 Expenditure 
incurred 

during the 
year 

Construction of Boundary Wall at Riverside and Airport 

30 June 2018

Dhaka Office Building (2nd Phase)

30 June 2019

Renovation of Ware House 

Renovation of Main Gate, Security House, Swearage Line & Safty Tank

Construction of 1500MT Oil Storage Tank & Retaining Wall

Land Development & Rest House Construction at Mirpur

Renovation of Generator, Electric Main Switch &
Operator room 

Renovation of Canteen & Extention of Parking Garage

Construction of Security Watch Tower & Boundary Wall

4 CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS
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5 LONG TERM INVESTMENT

In Shares
MJL Bangladesh Limited - note 5.1 5,545,971,000 5,933,308,676

In FDR - note 5.2 - 6,806,720,000
5,545,971,000 12,740,028,676

5.1 MJL Bangladesh Limited - note 5
 Market price

as on 
 Market Value

as on 
 Market Value

as on 
30 June 2019 30 June 2019 30 June 2018

8,770,000
52,851,900

Total 61,621,900 5,545,971,000 5,933,308,676 (387,337,676)
Less: Original Cost - note  5.1.1 87,700,000 87,700,000
Fair Value Gain on Investment 5,458,271,000 5,845,608,676

5.1.1 Original Cost of MJL Bangladesh Limited - note 5.1
Shares @ Tk. 10 each at per fully paid-up 87,700,000 87,700,000
Bonus Shares @ Tk. 10 each at per - -
Shares of Tk. 10 each at per 87,700,000 87,700,000

5.1.2
5.1.3

5.1.4

5.2 In FDR - note 5
Principal- Bank & Financial Institution

AB Bank Limited - 1,006,720,000
BASIC Bank Ltd. - 50,000,000
BD Commercial Bank Ltd. - 200,000,000
ICB, Chittagong - 1,000,000,000
NRB Global Bank Ltd. - 3,000,000,000
Southeast Bank Ltd - 50,000,000
Union Bank Limited - 1,500,000,000

- 6,806,720,000

The market value of each share of MJL Bangladesh Limited was TK. 90.00 on 30 June 2019 in Chittagong Stock Exchange
Limited.

JOCL earned 45% on 58,687,524 shares i.e. TK. 264,093,858 as final Cash Dividend from MJL BangladeshLimited for the year ended 30 June
2018. (Tk.264,093,858  for the year ended 30 June 2017). JOCL received 2,934,376 nos. of bonus share during the year 2018-2019. 

*During the year entire FDR was encashed , a portion of such encashment was reinvested and other portion was utilized to settle Bangladesh 
Petroleum Corporation (BPC)'s dues.

5,545,971,000

52,851,900

The Company holds 19.45%  shares of MJL Bangladesh Limited .

61,621,900

 Unrealized 
Gain/(Loss) Particulars  No of 

Shares 

Original Shares
Bonus Shares

8,770,000

(387,337,676)90.00 5,933,308,676
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5.3 INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES

Omera Fuels Limited 183,345,533 60,090,660
183,345,533 60,090,660

5.3.1 The Company holds 25% shares of Omera Fuels Limited .

5.3.2

5.3.3

5.3.4

5.3.5 Movement of Investment in Associates
Opening Balance 60,090,660 87,700,000
Right Share Value (5,000,000@ Tk.20 each Tk.10 per share premium included) 100,000,000 -
Addition during the year 
Share of profit /(Loss) of equity accounted investee (Associates) 23,254,873 17,398,431
Prior period adjustment - (45,007,771)
Closing Balance 183,345,533 60,090,660

No of Shares No of Shares
Movement of Shareholding in Associates
Opening balance 8,770,000 8,770,000
Number of Right Share 5,000,000 -
Closing balance 13,770,000 8,770,000
Total Number of Share of OFL 55,080,000 35,080,000
Percentage of Shares of associates own by Jamuna Oil Company Limited 25% 25%
Summary of finanacial information of Equity Accounted Investee
Ownership 25% 25%

Non Current Assets 4,790,347,790 4,857,038,143
Current Assets 902,725,134 355,970,641
Total Assets 5,693,072,924 5,213,008,784

Share capital 550,800,000 350,800,000
Share Premium 200,000,000 -
Accumulated Loss (17,417,899) (110,437,373)
General Reserve 1,131,511 1,131,511
Revaluation Reserve 3,117,600,000 3,117,600,000
Non- Controling Interest 317 303
Equity Attributable to owner of the company 3,852,113,929 3,359,094,441

Non-Current Liabilities 1,654,694,671 1,672,416,881
Current Liabilities 186,264,324 181,497,463
Total Liabilities 1,840,958,995 1,853,914,343
Total Equity and Liabilities 5,693,072,924 5,213,008,784

Net Assets value (NAV) per Share 69.94 95.76
Revenue 411,976,475 374,987,511
Other Income 2,424,179 773,451
Expenses (321,381,164) (306,167,237)
Profit for the Year 93,019,490 69,593,725

JOCL has got allotment of 8,770,000 shares of Tk. 10 each of Omera Fuels Limited (OFL) in considerationof 87,500,000 valued of its land and cash 200,000
by 30 June 2015. JOCL has got allotment of 5,000,000Right Shares of Tk. 20 each (TK.10 per share premium included) of Omera Fuels Limited (OFL) by 30
June 2019.

The company has accounted for it's investment in associate in Omera Fuels Limited  using the equity accounting method. 

Omera Fuels Limited (OFL) has commenced its commercial activitiesin August 2013. Previous name of OFL was Mobil Jamuna Fuels Limited (MJFL)and

renamed as Omera Fuels Limited (OFL) on 20 October 2011. OFL has set up a Tank Terminal of 14 Tanks having total storage capacity of 70,000 MT at

Guptakhal, Patenga, Chattogram on its own freehold land measuring 6.175 Acres revalued at Tk. 3,225.00Million(Original cost Tk. 87.50 Million).The Tank

Terminalhas automated custody transfer and inventorymanagementsystemwith no manual intervention and this is the first & only Tank Terminal in Bangladesh

of International Standard and Certified by "Germanischer Lloyd SE", a leading international certification body.
Omera Fuels Limited invested in its subsidiarycompany named Omera Tank Terminal Limited (Formerly known as Eastern FisheriesLimited)during the
year2015 amounting Tk. 964,251,800 and OFL holds 99.99995% shares of Omera Tank Terminal Limited . OFL also invested in Omera Logistics Limited
amounting Tk. 11,000,000  as 20% share capital.
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6 SHORT TERM INVESTMENT
Short Term Investment in FDR- Bank & Financial Institution 14,451,521,043 7,684,595,962

14,451,521,043 7,684,595,962
6.1 This represents investment in FDR up to the period of 01 (one) year.

AB Bank Limited 51,875,500 -
Agrani Bank Limited 655,321,177 560,139,882
Al-Arafah Islami Bank Limited - 50,000,000
BD Commercial Bank Limited 56,430,247 102,766,750
BRAC Bank Limited 50,000,000 -
EXIM Bank Limited 72,835,000 -
First Security Islami Bank Limited 5,961,706,240 4,456,871,075
Janata Bank Limited - 300,000,000
NCC Bank Limited 52,013,000 -
NRB Global Bank Limited 5,253,603,328 1,454,525,755
Rupali Bank Limited 71,516,426 66,757,877
Shahjalal Islami Bank Limited 51,875,500 50,000,000
Union Bank Limited 2,174,344,625 643,534,623

14,451,521,043 7,684,595,962

7 INVENTORIES
Inventories in Trade - note 7.1 10,510,087,413 10,203,442,087
Stores & Spares - note 7.2 84,740,654 94,033,979

10,594,828,067 10,297,476,066
7.1 Inventories in Trade - note 7

Major Products - note 7.1.1 10,196,318,578 10,009,983,260
Minor Products - note 7.1.2 313,768,835 193,458,827

10,510,087,413 10,203,442,087
7.1.1 Major Products - note 7.1

Quantity (Ltr.) Taka Quantity (Ltr.) Taka
3,142,507 254,794,468 4,847,412 393,028,165
5,634,337 443,873,069 4,399,880 346,622,546

10,514,643 638,869,709 9,686,421 588,546,940
135,647,013 8,099,483,146 127,429,586 7,608,820,580

13,791,084 546,264,837 21,233,929 841,075,928
2,447,161 213,033,349 2,664,920 231,889,101

171,176,745 10,196,318,578 170,262,148 10,009,983,260

7.1.2 Minor Products - note 7.1

Quantity (Ltr.) Taka Quantity (Ltr.) Taka
3,232 1,971,520 2,606 1,589,660

712,013 177,637,882 523,340 141,357,344
207,158 34,161,008 193,862 31,882,866

18,345 9,258,449 9,906 4,981,840
1,145 66,819,176 59 3,099,088

941,893 289,848,035 729,773 182,910,798
Raw Materials - Lubricants 130,504 23,920,800 63,746 10,548,029

1,072,397 313,768,835 793,519 193,458,827

30 June 2019 30 June 2018
7.2 Stores & Spares - note 7 Taka Taka

Non Returnable Empty Packages               6,940,612                   9,209,075 
L.P.G Store Materials              36,963,556                 36,963,556 
Chattogram Terminal Stores              30,881,570                 36,079,591 
Depot Stores               9,507,684                 11,334,525 
Pesticide Materials                  447,232                     447,232 

            84,740,654                94,033,979 

L.P. Gas (Cylinder)

Lubricants-Blended
Grease
Bitumen (MT)

HOBC

JBO

30 June 2019

SKO

30 June 2018
Major Products

Lubricants-MJL Products

MS

FO
HSD

30 June 2018
Minor products

30 June 2019
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8 ACCOUNTS & OTHER RECEIVABLE
Accounts Receivable - note 8.1 1,722,013,356 1,763,365,017
Other Receivable - note 8.2 384,965,772 684,869,389

2,106,979,128 2,448,234,406

8.1 Accounts Receivable - note 8
POL Products 1,696,103,048 1,759,362,735
LPG 25,757,817 9,620,528
Bitumen note-8.1.1 5,936,817 166,080

1,727,797,682 1,769,149,343
Provision for Doubtful Debts (5,784,326) (5,784,326)

1,722,013,356 1,763,365,017

Restated Reported

8.1.1 Bitumen (note -16.1.1) 166,080 -

8.1.2

8.1.3 Ageing of Accounts Receivable

Less than 6 months 1,181,186,034 861,643,105
Over 6 months but less than 12 months 269,410,327 651,872,662
Over 12 months 277,201,321 255,467,496

1,727,797,682 1,768,983,263

Less Than 6 
Months

Over 6 months 
but less than 12 

months
Over 12 months As on 30 June, 

2019

(A) POL Product
- - 134,578,955 134,578,955

652,629,925 269,410,327 21,766,620 943,806,872
- - 50,100,405 50,100,405

373,773,135 - - 373,773,135
129,219,697 - - 129,219,697

- - 44,371,237 44,371,237
- - 14,694,567 14,694,567
- - 5,558,180 5,558,180

1,155,622,757 269,410,327 271,069,964 1,696,103,048
(B) LP Gas
Defence 25,563,277 - - 25,563,277
Private (Including Dealer/Distributors) - - 194,540 194,540

25,563,277 - 194,540 25,757,817
(C) Bitumen
Chattogram City Corporation (note -8.1.4) - - 5,770,737 5,770,737
Private (Including Dealer/Distributors) - - 166,080 166,080

- - 5,936,817 5,936,817
Total (A+B+C) 1,181,186,034 269,410,327 277,201,321 1,727,797,682

8.1.4 Restated Reported
134,578,955 134,579,366
50,100,405 50,140,000

Chattogram City Corporation 5,770,737 5,771,000
190,450,097 190,490,366

* Due to clerical mistake ,earlier year figures were misstated by Tk.411, Tk. 39,595 & Tk.263 now rectified

8.2 Other Receivable - note 8
Other Receivable - Accrued Interest on FDR 384,965,772 684,869,389

384,965,772 684,869,389

Others (Including Dealer/Distributors)

Restated Accounts Receivable

Chattogram Port Authority

Bangladesh Railway

Defence

Coral Shipping Line

Name of the Customer

Bangladesh Chemical Industries Corporation

Bangladesh Chemical Industries Corporation (note -8.1.4)

Balaka Filling Station

Due to uncertainty of recovery of Tk. 44,371,237 the Company filed a case against the party and the case is in progress in the court.
Another Debtors holding Tk. 49,694,567 was also considered doubtful and the Company filed similar recovery case and in
consequence Tk. 35,000,000 was recovered on 25 October 2017 and balance Tk. 14,694,567 is expected to be recovered soon.

30 June 2018

Power Development Board

No amount was due by the Directors (including Managing Director), Managers & Officers of the Company and any of them severally
and jointly with any other person.

Power Development Board (note -8.1.4)

30 June 2018
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9 ADVANCES, DEPOSITS & PRE-PAYMENTS
Advances - note 9.1 4,247,399,627 5,289,104,167
Deposits - note 9.2 80,432,254 184,114,563
Pre-Payments - note 9.3 17,933,198 17,455,318

4,345,765,079 5,490,674,048

9.1 Advances - note 9
Bangladesh Petroleum Corporation 334,427,393 343,706,662
Padma Oil Co. Ltd. 812,300,851 802,097,782
Meghna Petroleum Limited 125,278,751 99,746,346
Eastern Refinery Limited 2,306,387 2,292,630
LPG Limited 172,454 165,575
Mobil Jamuna Lubricants Limited 30,528,359 95,908,783
Advance Income Tax 2,076,705,102 3,147,277,812
Advance against Capital Expenditures - note 9.1.1 685,746,250 685,746,250

168,546 9,420,994
Others 179,765,534 102,741,333

    4,247,399,627      5,289,104,167 

9.1.1 Advance against Capital Expenditures - note 9.1
Construction of Mongla Oil Installation         682,246,250         682,246,250 
LPG Import, Storage & Bottling Plant at Mongla            3,500,000            3,500,000 

       685,746,250        685,746,250 

9.2 Deposits - note 9
LPG Limited          24,495,450          24,495,450 
Standard Asiatic Oil Co. Ltd.            3,500,000            3,500,000 
Eastern Lubricants Blenders Ltd.               106,628               106,628 
Others          52,330,176         156,012,485 

         80,432,254         184,114,563 

9.3 Pre-Payments - note 9
Pre-paid Rent & Insurance          17,933,198          17,455,318 

          17,933,198           17,455,318 

9.4 Advance realizable in Cash
Employees - Car, House Building Loan etc.          37,153,906          34,988,345 

         37,153,906          34,988,345 

9.5
    2,244,564,528      2,305,385,160 

9.6            8,716,502           12,712,632 

9.7 Amount due by the directors of the Company.                        -   -

10 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
With different banks:

Short Notice Deposit (SND) Account-Note 10.3.2 7,738,482,075 16,315,050,803
Current Account - note 10.3.3 (435,799,988) (657,362,008)

7,302,682,087 15,657,688,795
Cash In Hand-Note-10.2 785,446 1,768,854

600,000,000 1,320,937,500
    7,903,467,533    16,980,395,148 

10.1 The credit balance arises due to issuance of cheques for an amount in excess of balance lying with banks. 

Amount recoverableor adjustablewithin twelve months from the
date of Statement of Financial Position.

Aggregate amount due by managers and officers of the Company.

Standard Asiatic Oil Company Limited

FDR Receipt-Note 10.3.1
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10.2 Cash in Hand
Bagabari Depot 1,208 6,486
Bairab Bazar Depot 6,055 2,598
Barisal Depot 18,669 37,593
Bogra Office 2,642 62,121
Chandpur Depot 14,937 8,592
Chilmary Depot 22,550 15,671
Chattogram Office 21,096 25,120
Chattogram Terminal Office 591,807 1,176,753
Daulatpur Depot 12,635 2,651
Dhaka Office 38,867 188,209
Fatullah Depot 3,062 4,600
Jalakati Depot 2,812 88,192
Khulna Office 1,371 17,454
Mongla Oil Installation 8,817 -
Natore Depot 5,983 100,001
Parbatipur Depot 8,084 3,132
Rajshahi Depot 1,002 699
Rangpur Depot 7,515 10,234
Sachana Bazar Depot 3,603 5,622
Sreemongal Depot 11,472 10,298
Sylhet Depot 1,259 2,829

785,446 1,768,854
10.3 Cash at Bank

Fixed Deposit Receipt 10.03.01 600,000,000 1,320,937,500
Short Notice Deposit  10.03.02 7,738,482,075 16,315,050,803
Current Account 10.03.03 (435,799,988) (657,362,008)

7,902,682,087 16,978,626,295
10.3.1 Fixed Deposit Receipt

BASIC Bank Ltd. - 600,000,000
BD Commercial Bank Ltd. - 250,000,000
Rupali Bank Ltd. - 317,900,000
Union Bank Limited - 153,037,500
ICB, Chattogram 600,000,000 -

600,000,000 1,320,937,500

10.3.2 Special Notice Deposit  
AB Bank Ltd 729,675,896 1,457,808,794
Agrani Bank Limited 489,733,672 1,752,648,506
Bank Asia Ltd 33,371,355 55,526,475
BRAC Bank Ltd 139,941,701 576,430,670
Citi Bank 3,050,090 3,050,090
The City Bank Ltd 81,514,656 644,159,291
Dutch Bangla Bank Ltd 31,072,572 8,829,843
Eastern Bank Ltd 183,813,296 1,057,079,533
HSBC 237,457,154 104,391,276
IFIC Bank Ltd 1,717,261,056 1,623,752,328
Mercantile Bank Ltd 706,898,976 1,948,240,588
One Bank Ltd 685,004,198 1,368,676,710
Pubali Bank Ltd 1,021,642,275 1,923,156,354
Rupali Bank Ltd 35,510,520 388,063,955
Sonali Bank Limited 405,648,659 1,875,775,867
Southeast Bank Ltd 538,548,964 721,389,007
Standard Chartered Bank 10,895,183 10,772,082
United Commercial Bank Ltd 648,777,390 756,738,108
Uttara Bank Ltd 38,664,462 38,561,324

7,738,482,075 16,315,050,803

10.3.3 Current Account 
Agrani Bank Limited (192,768,558) (3,986)
Pubali Bank Ltd (243,031,430) (657,358,022)

- -
(435,799,988) (657,362,008)

Negative balances shown in the bank book represent book overdraft.
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11 SHARE CAPITAL 

11.1 Authorised Capital :
Number

300,000,000 Ordinary shares of Tk 10 each 3,000,000,000 3,000,000,000

11.2 Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital:

105,424,600 Ordinary shares of Tk 10 each issued as bonus - note 11.2.1 1,054,246,000 1,054,246,000
110,424,600 Ordinary shares of Tk 10 each 1,104,246,000 1,104,246,000

11.2.1Bonus Share Capital

5,000,000 Bonus shares of Tk. 10 each for 2005-2006 50,000,000 50,000,000
35,000,000 Bonus shares of Tk. 10 each for 2006-2007 350,000,000 350,000,000
9,000,000 Bonus shares of Tk. 10 each for 2009-2010 90,000,000 90,000,000

16,200,000 Bonus shares of Tk. 10 each for 2010-2011 162,000,000 162,000,000
21,060,000 Bonus shares of Tk. 10 each for 2011-2012 210,600,000 210,600,000
9,126,000 Bonus shares of Tk. 10 each for 2012-2013 91,260,000 91,260,000

10,038,600 Bonus shares of Tk. 10 each for 2013-2014 100,386,000 100,386,000
105,424,600 1,054,246,000 1,054,246,000

11.3Position of shareholdings

Bangladesh Petroleum Corporation 66,346,774 60.08% 66,346,774 60.08%

Institutions (Financial & Others)
       Local 29,562,021 26.77% 26,986,958 24.44%
       Foreign 1,510,200 1.37% 2,847,120 2.58%

31,072,221 28.14% 29,834,078 27.02%

Individuals
       Local 12,909,001 11.69% 14,107,831 12.77%
       Non-resident Bangladeshi 63,928 0.06% 107,980 0.10%
       Foreign 32,676 0.03% 27,937 0.03%

13,005,605 11.78% 14,243,748 12.90%
110,424,600 100.00% 110,424,600 100.00%

11.4Classification of Shareholders by holding

No. of 
Holders

Total Holdings 
(%)

No. of 
Holders

Total Holdings 
(%)

Less than or equal 500 shares 6,065 0.79% 6,315 0.90%
501 to 5,000 shares 2,298 3.42% 2,479 3.59%
5,001 to 10,000 shares 223 1.44% 237 1.57%
10,001 to 20,000 shares 128 1.68% 144 1.94%
20,001 to 30,000 shares 53 1.17% 38 0.86%

45 1.59% 47 1.72%
50,001 to 100,000 shares 35 2.19% 40 2.56%
100,001 to 1,000,000 shares 49 10.62% 56 11.46%
Over 1,000,000 shares 8 77.10% 7 75.40%

8,904 100.00% 9,363 100.00%

11.5Market Price of Ordinary Shares.

11.6Option on Unissued Ordinary Shares
There was no option on unissued shares as on 30 June 2019.

 Percentage (%) 
of shareholding 

30 June 2019

No. of 
Shares

 Percentage (%) 
of shareholding 

No. of 
Shares

30 June 2019

Ordinary shares of Tk 10 each fully paid for consideration
otherwise than in cash.

5,000,000 50,000,000 50,000,000

Name of Shareholders

The shares are listed with Dhaka and Chittagong Stock Exchange. On 30 June 2019, each share was quoted at Tk. 173.80 in
the Dhaka Stock Exchange Ltd., Tk.  174.60 in the Chittagong Stock Exchange Ltd.

30 June 2018

Range of Holdings

30,001 to 50,000 shares

30 June 2018
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12 CAPITAL RESERVE
Capital gain on sale of land & structure at Chandpur 3,591,102 3,591,102

Capital gain on sale of 12.35 acres land at Patenga to  
Joint Venture Co. as details below:

Sale of Land 175,000,000 175,000,000
Original Cost of Land (14,428) (14,428)
Related Expenses against Transfer of Land (25,743,571) (25,743,571)

149,242,001 149,242,001
152,833,103 152,833,103

13 GENERAL RESERVE 
Opening Balance 10,000,000,000 8,660,000,000

Transferred during the year - 1,340,000,000
Closing Balance 10,000,000,000 10,000,000,000

14 PROVISION FOR GRATUITY
Opening Balance 857,076,990 814,566,870

Provision made during the year 75,473,247 85,090,979
932,550,237 899,657,849

Payment made during the year (68,799,800) (42,580,859)
Closing Balance 863,750,437 857,076,990

15 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY / (ASSET)
Restated Reported

Opening Balance 709,630,973 (151,545,309) (151,545,309)

- 1,053,784,186 -
Adjusted Opening Balance - 902,238,877 -

7,175,869 (15,665,019) (15,665,019)
Adjusted for Unrealized Gain on Quoted Share (58,100,651) (176,942,885) -

Closing Balance 658,706,191 709,630,973 (167,210,327)

DEFERRED TAX
 LIABILITY / (ASSET)

Rate Carrying Amount Tax Base Temporary 
Difference

Deferred Tax 
(Assets)/ Liabilities

At 30 June, 2019

Property, Plant & 
Equipment ( Except land) 25% 914,809,525 686,842,452 227,967,073 56,991,768
Provision For Gratuity 25% (863,750,437) - (863,750,437) (215,937,609)
Investment in Associate 25% 183,345,533 187,700,000 (4,354,467) (1,088,617)
Investment in Share 15% 5,545,971,000 87,700,000 5,458,271,000 818,740,650
Deferred Tax (Assets)/Liability 5,780,375,621 962,242,452 4,818,133,169 658,706,192

DEFERRED TAX
 LIABILITY / (ASSET)

Rate Carrying Amount Tax Base Temporary 
Difference

Deferred Tax 
(Assets)/ 
Liabilities

At 30 June, 2018(Restated)

Property, Plant & 
Equipment ( Except land) 25% 771,247,145 555,402,124 215,845,021 53,961,255
Provision For Gratuity 25% (857,076,990) - (857,076,990) (214,269,248)
Investment in Associate 25% 60,090,660 87,700,000 (27,609,340) (6,902,335)
Investment in Quoted Share 15% 5,933,308,676 87,700,000 5,845,608,676 876,841,301
Deferred Tax (Assets)/Liability 5,907,569,491 730,802,124 5,176,767,367 709,630,973

DEFERRED TAX
 LIABILITY / (ASSET)

Rate Carrying Amount Tax Base Temporary 
Difference

Deferred Tax 
(Assets)/ 
Liabilities

At 30 June, 2018(Reported)

Property, Plant & 
Equipment ( Except land) 25% 771,247,145 555,402,124 215,845,021 53,961,255
Provision For Gratuity 25% (857,076,990) - (857,076,990) (214,269,248)
Investment in Associate 25% 60,090,660 87,700,000 (27,609,340) (6,902,335)
Deferred Tax (Assets)/Liability (25,739,185) 643,102,124 (668,841,309) (167,210,327)

* Leaseholdland has not been taken into computation since the accountingbase and the tax base are same, and no temporary difference exist.

30 June 201830 June 2019

Adjusted for Deferred Tax (Assets)/Liabilities

* In the earlier year Deferred Tax on unrealized Gain/ (Loss) was not accounted for inadvertently, now prior year adjustment given to rectify earlier policy
regarding non recognition of deferred tax on unrealized gain on investment in quoted share.

Prior Year Adjustment for unrelized Loss on Investment in 
Quoted Share
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30 June 2019 30 June 2018
Taka Taka

16 CREDITORS & ACCRUALS
For Trading Supplies & Services - note 16.1        20,620,033,256       31,230,531,967 
For Expenses - note 16.2          3,148,467,575        2,183,687,258 

       23,768,500,831       33,414,219,225 

16.1Creditors for Trading Supplies & Services - note 16.1
Payable to BPC 17,774,711,264 28,078,137,860
Payable to Others note-16.1.1 2,845,321,992 3,152,394,107

20,620,033,256 31,230,531,967

Restated Reported

16.1.1 Payable to Others             3,152,394,107           3,152,228,027 

16.2 Creditors for Expenses - note 16.2
Payable to BPC 2,550,254,526 1,586,241,259
Payable to officers & staffs against salary 66,924,498 40,789,207
Tanker charge payable 77,299,436 107,571,129
Workers' Profit Participation & Welfare Fund (note - 16.2.1) 197,173,168 210,294,137
JOCL Staff Provident Fund - 2,256,268
Railway freight payable 70,375,454 24,609,352
Payable to Others 186,440,493 211,925,906

3,148,467,575 2,183,687,258

16.2.1 Workers' Profit Participation & Welfare Fund
Opening Balance 210,294,137 15,68,14,596
Provision made for the year 162,030,441 19,46,12,677
Payment made for the year (175,151,410) (141,133,136)

197,173,168 210,294,137

17 CREDITORS FOR OTHER FINANCE
Payable to Dealers & Distributors (Security Deposit) 174,136,594 170,221,595
Payable to LPG Distributors (Security Deposit) 14,977,790 15,007,790
Payable to Supplier & Contractors (Security Deposit) 49,494,582 33,120,219
BPC's Fuel Sector Development Fund 100,835,130 215,782,638

339,444,096 434,132,242

18 INCOME TAX PAYABLE
Opening Balance 3,277,635,152 2,357,666,948
Provision made during the year- note 18.1 755,077,750 919,968,204

4,032,712,902 3,277,635,152
Adjustment made during the year (1,923,853,795) -
Closing Balance 2,108,859,107 3,277,635,152

30 June 2018

* In the earlier period Receivable from Private customers of TK. 166,080 against Bitumen supply 
netted off with payable to others now rectified.
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30 June 2019 30 June 2018
Computation of Total Income
Income Year: 2018 - 2019
Assessment Year: 2019 - 2020

Accounting Profit Before Tax 3,078,578,374 3,697,640,855

Dividend Income (264,093,858) (264,093,858)
Accounting Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets (200,000) (261,677)

2,814,284,516 3,433,285,320
Add: Inadmissible Expenses
Accounting Depreciation 114,985,000 102,745,213
Provision for Gratuity 75,473,247 85,090,979

3,004,742,763 3,621,121,512
Less: Expenses Admissible But Not Shown 
Depreciation as per 3rd Schedule 126,933,653 110,098,859
Amortization of Lease Land 105,053 105,053
Payment for Gratuity 68,799,800 42,580,859

195,838,506 152,784,771
2,808,904,257 3,468,336,741

Add: Income Received from Non Business Head 
Fiscal Profit On Sale of Fixed Assets 131,654 260,991
Total Taxable Income 2,809,035,911 3,468,597,732

Current Tax Charge During the Year

i) Calculation of Regular Tax Liability 
On Taxable Income 25% 702,258,978 867,149,433
On Dividend Income 20% 52,818,772 52,818,772
Total Regular Tax Expenses 755,077,750 919,968,204

ii) Minimum Tax U/S 82 C (4)

iii) Advance Income Tax 627,588,558 691,835,503

755,077,750 919,968,204

Amount in BDT
18.1 Statement of Income Tax Provision :

Not Applicable

Current Tax liability U/S 82 C (8) ( higher one among i, ii
and iii )

Less: Non-business Income (Items for Separate
Consideration)

Note: As the company functioning as marketing of petroleum product of Bangladesh Petroleum Corporation
hence the company received only margin. For this reason minimum tax has not been applicable.
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30 June 2019 30 June 2018
Taka Taka

18.2 Year wise details are as follows:

Tax Paid/Adjustment Tax Provided Balance 
Taka Taka Taka
34,631,255 3,403,844 (31,227,411)
29,238,248 - (29,238,248)
23,900,573 1,721,000 (22,179,573)
31,701,642 120,000,000 88,298,358
85,522,440 199,321,736 113,799,296

243,916,657 175,869,357 (68,047,300)
174,819,509 140,257,353 (34,562,156)
177,608,877 190,832,700 13,223,823
357,067,878 347,514,706 (9,553,172)
582,973,032 676,773,633 93,800,601
709,526,216 646,473,592 (63,052,624)
686,363,956 744,020,180 57,656,224

- 784,636,004 784,636,004
- 681,815,000 681,815,000
- 782,298,126 782,298,126
- 919,968,204 919,968,204

1,923,853,795 755,077,750 (1,168,776,045)
5,061,124,078 7,169,983,185 2,108,859,107

(i) Assessment settled upto  the year 2010-2011.
(ii)  Assessment pending in the High Court for the year 2011-2012 & 2012-2013.
(iii) Return submitted U/S-82BB of ITO 1984 for the years 2013-2014 to 2017-2018.

19
Opening Balance 28,450,465 26,253,000

Dividend for the year 2018 1,435,519,800 1,214,670,600
1,463,970,265 1,240,923,600

Payment made during the year (1,431,312,484) (1,212,473,135)
32,657,781 28,450,465

Year wise break up:
2006-2007 3,278,508 3,278,508
2007-2008 4,146,644 4,146,644
2008-2009 1,452,085 1,452,085
2009-2010 798,949 798,949
2010-2011 1,588,076 1,588,076
2011-2012 1,415,962 1,415,962
2012-2013 2,629,642 2,629,642
2013-2014 3,077,418 3,077,418
2014-2015 2,435,408 2,748,862
2015-2016 2,458,669 2,774,987
2016-2017 39,10,020 4,539,332
2017-2018 5,466,400 -

32,657,781 28,450,465

30.06.2007

UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND

30.06.2008
30.06.2009
30.06.2010

Income
Year

30.06.1988 to 30.06.2003

30.06.2015
30.06.2016

30.06.2013

30.06.2005
30.06.2006

30.06.2004

30.06.2018
30.06.2019

30.06.2017

30.06.2011
30.06.2012

30.06.2014
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30 June 2019 30 June 2018
Taka Taka

20 NET EARNINGS ON PETROLEUM PRODUCTS     
Major Products - note 20.1 1,088,904,973 1,149,489,069
Minor Products - note 20.2 217,846,372 191,473,023

Net Earnings 1,306,751,345 1,340,962,092

20.1 Major Products - note 20

Sales 
Quantity

Net 
Earnings

Sales 
Quantity

Net 
Earnings

MT Taka MT Taka
HOBC 71,112 29,065,438 61,234 27,138,072
MS 98,665 54,570,275 88,584 46,075,149
SKO 43,427 33,251,060 48,706 32,155,539
HSD 1,333,375 802,485,625 1,374,315 811,878,171
FO 175,137 165,884,062 236,866 227,248,371
JBO 3,545 3,648,513 4,832 4,986,528
MTT - - 14 7,239

1,725,261 1,088,904,973 1,814,551 1,149,489,069

20.2 Minor Products - note 20

Sales 
Quantity

Net 
Earnings

Sales 
Quantity

Net 
Earnings

MT Taka MT Taka
Bitumen 12,410 2,481,918 11,081 2,579,832

               4,354 208,098,779 4,437 182,659,440

LPG 4,614 7,265,675 3,890 6,233,751
21,378 217,846,372 19,408 191,473,023

1,746,639 1,306,751,345 1,833,959 1,340,962,092

Sub Total

Sub Total

30 June 2019

Lubricants & 
Grease

Grand Total

30 June 2018
Major

Products

Minor 
Products

30 June 2019 30 June 2018
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30 June 2019 30 June 2018
Taka Taka

21 OTHER OPERATING INCOME
Product Handling Commission & Others

BPC Product Handling 19,039,382 12,303,238
Local & Others 284,216,049 237,947,776

303,255,431 250,251,014
Net Profit/(Loss) on Operation of Tanker MT Jamuna (6,330,762) (7,378,601)
Service Charges 46,098,538 97,386,755

343,023,207 340,259,168

22 ADMINISTRATIVE, SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES
Storage, Selling & Administration 158,064,758 150,159,866
Payroll & Benefits 545,682,359 548,516,833
Contributory Provident Fund 14,544,566 13,946,912
Rent & Other Taxes 29,726,594 23,869,715
Travelling & Office Transport 18,444,569 18,235,754
Fuel & Electricity 16,361,495 13,842,404
Repair & Maintenance 16,394,500 12,712,362
Insurance Premium 6,428,377 6,497,831
Audit Fee (Statutory) - note 29 280,000 260,000
Directors' Fee 736,000 1,008,000
Management Service Charge 700,000 700,000

807,363,218 789,749,677

23 FINANCIAL EXPENSES
Bangladesh Petroleum Corporation - note 23.1 110,398,650 115,051,790
Interest on Workers' Profit Participation & Welfare Fund 90,246,964 61,815,025
Bank Charges 3,183,979 4,137,494

203,829,593 181,004,309

23.1

24 OTHER INCOME
Dividend Income - note 5.1.3 264,093,858 264,093,858
Interest on Bank Deposits 1,081,055,351 1,608,548,206
Interest on Fixed Deposits 1,333,990,983 1,376,073,030
Licence Fee 4,714,208 4,132,507
Interest on House Building Loan 1,113,554 1,153,452
Interest on Car Loan 162,768 182,952
Rent Receipts 29,145,064 28,821,664
Profit/(Loss) on Sale of Non-Current Assets - note 24.1 200,000 261,677
Others 2,536,288 1,264,125

2,717,012,074 3,284,531,471

This represents provision made for financialexpenses which is computed on sales quantity ranging
from Tk. 0.0506 to 0.0699 per liter against major products.
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24.1 Profit/(Loss) on Sale of Non-Current Assets - note 24

30 Jun 19 30 Jun 19

         130,435            95,628         34,807           34,807                  -    Mr. Habibul Muhit Ex. 
GM (HR)  Board Decision 

           77,377            42,547         34,830           34,830                  -    Mr. Habibul Muhit Ex. 
GM (HR)  Board Decision 

         186,796          186,796                -             90,000           90,000  M/s. Hoq & Company 
Banani  Auction 

         166,113          166,113                -           110,000         110,000  M/S. Nural Huda Filling 
Station   Auction 

560,721 491,084 69,637 269,637 200,000

30 June 2019 30 June 2018
Taka Taka

25 EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS)

Earnings attributable to the Ordinary Shareholders 2,339,579,628 2,810,736,101
Weighted average number of ordinary shares during the year 110,424,600 110,424,600

Earning Per Share (EPS) 21.19 25.45
**EPS decrease due to decrease in net earnings on petroleum products and other income.

26 NET ASSETS VALUE (NAV) PER SHARE
The computation of NAV Per Share is given below:

Total Assets 46,279,811,486 56,654,215,287
Less: Total Liabilities 27,771,918,443 38,721,145,047

18,507,893,043 17,933,070,240
Number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year 110,424,600 110,424,600

Net Assets Value (NAV) Per Share 167.61 162.40

Restated Reported
Net Assets Value (NAV) Per Share (**) 162.40 170.34

**

27 NET OPERATING CASH FLOW PER SHARE
Net Operating Cash Flow (from Statement of Cash Flows) (10,159,766,931) (5,656,944,370)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares during the year 110,424,600 110,424,600

Net Operating Cash Flow Per Share (92.01) (51.23)

** Net operating cash flow per share (NOCFPS) decreased due to major reduction of collection from sales amounting to TK.517 crore

28 Reconciliation of Net Profit with cash flow from operating activities
(Notification No BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/208/Admin/81 dated 20 June 2018)
Reference Note-  5 (b) 30 June 2019 30 June 2018

Taka Taka

Profit before Income Tax 3,078,578,374 3,697,640,855
Adjustment to reconcile net income to net cash:
Depreciation 3 114,985,000 102,745,213
Gain on sale of Fixed Assets 24 (200,000) (261,677)
Dividend Income 24 (264,093,858) (264,093,858)
Interest on Bank Deposits 24 (1,081,055,351) (1,608,548,206)
Interest on Fixed Deposits 24 (1,333,990,983) (1,376,073,030)
Income Tax paid (853,281,085) (791,065,295)

(339,057,903) (239,655,998)
Changes in Working Capital:
(Increase)/Decrease  in Inventories 7 (297,352,001) (1,916,688,760)
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivable 8 41,351,661 (51,233,492)
(Increase )/Decrease  in Advances, Deposits and Pre-payments 74,336,259 77,381,162
(Decrease)/Increase in Creditors & Accruals 16 (9,645,718,394) (3,569,257,402)

(9,827,382,475) (5,459,798,492)
(Decrease)/Increase in Deferred Liabilities 6,673,447 42,510,120

(9,820,709,028) (5,417,288,372)
Net Cash Inflow / (Outflow) from Operating Activities (10,159,766,931) (5,656,944,370)

29 AUDITORS' REMUNERATION

Audit Fee (Statutory) 280,000 260,000
280,000 260,000

Audit fee represents auditors’ remuneration only which is fixed up by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting.

Acc. Dep. as 
on

Air-condition ( 1 Ton 
Capacity)

Refrigerator ( 10Cft)

Particulars of Assets Original 
Cost

Net Asset Value(NAV) for the year 30 June 2018 has been restated due to prior year adjustment of deferred tax on unrealized gain of investment in 
quoted share.

 WDV
as on Sales Price  Profit  /  

(Loss) 

Service & Filling Station 
Assets

30 June 2018

Service & Filling Station 
Assets

 Name of Parties  Mode of Disposal 
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30 REMUNERATION OF MANAGING DIRECTOR, MANAGERS & OFFICERS  

 MD & 
MANAGERS  

 OFFICERS  
 MD & 

MANAGERS  
 OFFICERS  

Salary, Allowances & Bonus 37,714,021 46,107,942 38,567,909 47,677,444
Housing

Rental 18,799,027 21,057,715 19,187,925 20,862,723
Utilities 4,819,160 6,101,492 5,012,456 6,361,250

23,618,187 27,159,207 24,200,381 27,223,973
Leave Encashment 5,090,773 7,306,705 6,170,494 7,335,998
Provident Fund 3,117,523 3,508,416 3,089,264 3,468,306

69,540,504 84,082,270 72,028,048 85,705,721

Number of Persons 45 77 44 84

30.1

30.2

30.3

30.4

30.5

30.6

31 ATTENDANCE STATUS OF BOARD MEETING OF DIRECTORS

SL Name of the Directors Representative 
By Position Meetings Held Attendance

1 Mr. Md. Akram Al Hossain BPC Chairman 2 2
2 Mr. Md. Shamsur Rahman BPC Chairman 9 9
3 Mr. Shankar Prasad Dev Independent Director 11 9
4 Mr. Md. Abdur Razzaque BPC Director 10 9
5 Mr. Md. Sarwar Alam BPC Director 11 11
6 Mr. A. Khaleque Mallick BPC Director 11 8
7 Mr. Md. Abu Yousuf Miah BPC Director 11 11
8 Mr. Mozammel Haque Bhuiyan Shareholder Director 11 10
9 Mr. Saifuddin Ahmed Bhuiyan BPC Director 11 8
10 Mr. Md. Abdul Jalil Howladar Independent Director 3 3
11 Mr. Md. Manjurul Hafiz BPC Director 1 1
12 Mr. Md. Quamrul Hasan BPC Managing Director 2 2
13 Mr. Md. Gias Uddin Ansary BPC Managing Director 9 9

During the year ended 30 June 2019, there were 11 (Eleven) Board meetings held. The attendance status of all the
meetings are as follows:

30 June 2019 30 June 2018
 Particulars

The Managing Director, General Manager, Departmental Heads, Managers and Officers are paid house rent
allowances in cash.
The Managing Director, General Manager & Departmental Heads are provided with free use of company’s car,
subject to limit. Other Managers are paid cash assistance under car loan scheme, subject to limit and other
Officers are paid cash allowances.
The Managing Director, General Manager & Managers are provided with residential telephone primarily for
Company’s business communication, subject to limit.
The Managing Director, General Manager, Managers & Officers are provided with free medical facilities
according to company’s rules.
The Managing Director, General Manager, Managers & Officers are provided with coverage for Group
Insurance Scheme.
The Directors, other than Managing Director who is an Ex-Office Director, are not paid any remuneration
except fees and expenses in connection with attending Company’s Board Meeting.
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30 June 2019 30 June 2018
Nos. Nos.

32 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES 

522 536

33 EXPENDITURE IN FOREIGN CURRENCIES

34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

30 June 2019 30 June 2018
Taka Taka

a) Key Management Personnel Compensation 

Short term employee benefits 23,578,683 22,367,977
Post eployment benefits 96,502,624 89,801,435
Other benefits - -

120,081,307 112,169,412

# Key management personnel compensation includes benefits for employees of the rank of DGM and above.

b) Transaction with BPC & Other Related Companies

30 June 2019 30 June 2018 30 June 2019 30 June 2018
Bangladesh Petroleum Corporation Mother Concern                 327,075,356,712        310,568,405,275       (20,091,373,526)       (29,536,455,094)
Padma Oil Company Limited BPC Unit                     1,497,295,385           1,841,038,485            (559,786,202)            (821,082,646)
Meghna Petroleum Limited BPC Unit                       112,163,734              456,883,959               63,339,074                56,432,408 
Eastern Refinery Limited BPC Unit                                13,758                             -                   2,306,387                  2,292,630 
MJL Bangladesh Limited Investment/Supplier                     2,856,013,925           2,727,592,364               30,434,910                95,815,333 
Omera Fuels Limited Investment                       100,000,000                             -                              -                               -   
Eastern Lubricants Blenders Limited BPC Unit                           5,639,889                  8,403,703                  (328,324)                   (328,324)
Liquefied Petroleum Gas Limited BPC Unit                       449,703,149              363,804,000                  (704,431)                 1,077,820 
Standard Asiatic Oil Company Ltd. BPC Unit                       220,531,721              276,336,362               (2,852,519)                 9,377,276 

332,316,718,273 316,242,464,148 (20,558,964,631) (30,192,870,597)

The number of employees with an aggregate annual
remuneration not being less than Tk 36,000.

No payment was made during the year in foreign currency on account of royalty, professional, consultation fees, interest & others.

Total

During the year ended 30 June 2019 , the company carried out a number of transactions with related party in the normal course of business on 
'Arms Lenghth Basis'. The name of these related parties, nature of transactions and their total value have been set in accordance with the 
provisions of IAS 24: Related party disclosures:

In accordance with IAS-24 : Related Party Disclosures, key management personnel of the company are those persons having the authority and 
responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the company, directly or indirectly

Name of Party/Company Relation Transaction During the Year Closing Balance

Number of Employees

Amount in Taka
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35 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES, ASSETS AND COMMITMENTS
35.1 Contingent Liabilities:

There were no contingent liabilities as on 30 June 2019. 
35.2 Contingent Assets:

There were no contingent assets as on 30 June 2019. 

35.3 Capital Expenditure Commitments: 30 June 2019 30 June 2018
Taka Taka

Capital Expenditure Commitments 1,415,847,660    1,536,678,355     

36 GUARANTEE
There was no guarantee to any third party as on 30 June 2019. 

30 June 2019 30 June 2018
Taka Taka

37 CLAIMS
 Claim against the company but not acknowledged as debt (Income Tax) 387,660,468      387,660,468        

38 EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
38.1

39 GENERAL
39.1 Figures appearing in these accounts have been rounded off to the nearest taka.
39.2

The capital expenditure commitment as on 30 June 2019  was Tk 14158.47660 lac 30 June 2018: Tk    
15366.78355 lac)

*The income tax assessments for the year 2011-2012 to 2012-2013 are pending for settlement in High Court Division.

These financial statements should be read in conjunction with the annexed notes
and were approved by the Board of Directors on 13 November 2019

and were signed on its behalf by :

Previous year's phrases & amounts have been re-arranged,wherever considered necessary, to conform to the
presentation for the year under review.

Subsequent to the Statement of FinancialPosition date, the Board of Directors recommended 130.00%.(one
hundred thirty percent) cash dividend i.e. Taka 13.00 (Thirteen) per share which will be recognized in the
financial statements as and when approved by the shareholders in the Annual General Meeting (AGM).
Excepting to that, no circumstances have arisen since the date of Statement of FinancialPosition which would
require adjustment to, or disclosure in, the financial statements or notes thereto. 

Company Secretary                        Managing Director                           Director                                 Chairman
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hgybv A‡qj †Kv¤úvbx wjwg‡UW
hgybv feb, AvMÖvev` ev/G

†cvt e· - 694, PÆMÖvg|

 
cÖwZwbwa cÎ
(PROXY FORM)

 AbyMÖn K‡i †kqvi AbyMÖn K‡i †dvwjI/weI

 msL¨v D‡jøL Kiæb bv¤^vi D‡jøL Kiæb

   
   
   
  

Avwg/Avgiv

                                                                          hgybv A‡qj †Kv¤úvbx wjwg‡UW Gi

m`m¨ wn‡m‡e Rbve/†eMg

†K Avgiv/Avgv‡`i cÖwZwbwa wn‡m‡e Avgvi/Avgv‡`i Abycw¯’wZ‡Z †Kv¤úvwbi 01 †deªæqvwi, 

2020 ZvwiL mKvj 11.00 NwUKvq ÔÔB›Uvib¨vkbvj Kb‡fbkb †m›UviÓ, 281, P‡Æk¦ix †ivW, 

KvRxi †`Dox, PÆMÖvg-G AbywôZe¨ 44Zg evwl©K mvaviY mfvq Ges H mfvi †h †Kvb g~jZex 

mfvq Dcw¯’Z _vKevi Ges Avgvi/Avgv‡`i c‡¶ †fvU `v‡bi Rb¨ wb‡qvM KiwQ|

Avgvi/Avgv‡`i m¤§y‡L wZwb                                   Zvwi‡L ¯^v¶i cÖ`vb Ki‡jb|

cÖwZwbwai ¯^v¶i : †kqvi‡nvìv‡ii ¯^v¶i

 †iwfwbD ó¨v¤ú
 20/- UvKv
      

K)

wet `ªt m`m¨e„›` GB mvaviY mfvq Dcw¯’Z _vK‡Z Ges †fvU cÖ`vb Ki‡Z cvi‡eb wKsev Zvi 

c‡¶ Dcw¯’Z _vK‡Z Ges †fvU `v‡bi Rb¨ Ab¨ GKRb cÖwZwbwa (cÖw·) wb‡qvM Ki‡Z 

cvi‡eb| cÖwZwbwa cÎ h_vh_fv‡e ¯^v¶i KiZt 20.00 UvKvi †iwfwbD ó¨v¤ú mn‡hv‡M 

mfvi wba©vwiZ mg‡qi 48 N›Uv c~‡e© †Kv¤úvwbi †iwRóvW© Awd‡m Aek¨B Rgv w`‡Z n‡e|

nvwRiv cÎ
(ATTENDANCE SLIP)

01 †deªæqvwi, 2020 ZvwiL ÔÔB›Uvib¨vkbvj Kb‡fbkb †m›UviÓ, 281, P‡Æk¦ix †ivW, KvRxi †`Dox, PÆMÖvg-G 

AbywôZ hgybv A‡qj †Kv¤úvbx wjwg‡UW Gi 44Zg evwl©K mvaviY mfvq Avgvi Dcw¯’wZ wjwce× Kijvg|

†dvwjI/weI bs 

†kqvi‡nvìv‡ii bvg                                                 

cÖwZwbwai bvg

                                            cÖwZwbwa/†kqvi‡nvìv‡ii ¯^v¶im¤§y‡L ¯^vÿi cÖ`vb








